

## **REQUEST FOR BIDS (by Email)**

Date: October 9, 2023	To: Potential Bidders for SHA Solicitation #5831				
The work described below is subject to	the conditions described o	on Attachment A, version	n 1 🗌 🛛 versio	n 2 🖂	
SHA Reference No.: 5831 Various Hope VI Shower Upgrades - Federal Funding	(Federal Preva <u>Federal Wage I</u> HUD Non-Routine M Rates Through	Decision No.: Maintenance Wage	OR	(State Prevailing Wages) <u>Date of State Prevailing Wage</u> <u>Schedule:</u> N/A	
Number of Calendar Days to	For Questions Contact:		Phone No.:	206-239-1553	
Complete Work: 365	Veronica Sharp, Design	and Construction	FAX No.:	N/A	
	Contract Administrator		E-mail:	purchasing@seattlehousing.org	
·	Scope of Work attached	d.			
<ul> <li>Asbestos Disclosure: SHA is reasonably certa</li> </ul>	in that asbestos will no	ot be disturbed by this	s project.		
Bid range estimated to	be between \$50,000 a	and \$60,000 per yea	ır.		
PRE-BID MEETING: Monday, October 23, 2023, at 9:00 AM, on Microsoft Teams. Meeting link provided at end of form, after submission checklist. DEADLINE FOR QUESTIONS is Tuesday, October 24, 2023, no later than 5:00 PM.					
Email your questions to: purchasir	ng@seattlehousing.org				
Small Works Roster at the time bid i	s due. SHA utilizes the Sr ister for FREE at <u>www.mi</u> mum qualifications for lic	mall Public Works Ros r <u>scrosters.org</u> and sele censing bonding, and in	ter maintained ect Seattle Hounsurance and	using Authority. All companies on the	
	BIDDER ACKNOWI	LEDGES RECEIPT O	F ADDENDA	(S) NUMBER(S):	
BIDDER MUST COMPLETE THE submit a vendor fact sheet with its If checked, Bidder must comple	bid form. Bidder must a	also submit the require	d Section 3 fo	rms with its bid form.	
Basic Bid Price (without Sales Tax	) Sales Tax on M (see Attachme			Total Bid Price (with Sales Tax)	
Bidder's Business Name:	Telephone No	).:		E-Mail Address:	
Address:	I		City, State, Z	p Code:	
Business Classification:		Contractor	Registration N	lo.:	
🗌 WBE 🗌 MBE 🗌 MWBE	E Section 3				
Signature:	Da	ate:		Printed Name and Title of Person Signing Bid:	

By signing above, the Bidder acknowledges receipt of Attachment A and any addenda issued for this project, and proposes to furnish all material and labor and to perform all work described herein for the Bid Price noted above. The Bidder also certifies the following: to have personally and carefully evaluated the Project Description and Attachment A, and to have a clear understanding of the same, including the requirement to pay prevailing wages.

- ATTACHMENT A: Version 2 (\$50,000.00 to \$250,000.00)
- ATTACHMENT B: Requirements
  - 1. Scope of Work
  - 2. General Conditions of The Contract For Construction
- ATTACHMENT C: Prevailing Wage Rates (HUD Non-Routine Maintenance Wage Rates Through 12-31-2024)
- ATTACHMENT D: Sample Documents
  - 1. Sample Contract
  - 2. Sample Work Order

#### ATTACHMENT E: Forms

- 0. Bid Price Form
- 1. SHA Vendor Fact Sheet
- 2. Section 3 documents
- 3. Suspension and Debarment Compliance Certificate for Contractor/Subcontractor
- 4. For-Profit Subgrantee and Contractor Certifications and Assurances
- 5. Certification of Compliance with Wage Payment Statutes (SSB5301)
- 6. Non-Collusive Affidavit

#### SUBMISSION CHECKLIST - THE FOLLOWING FORMS NEED TO BE COMPLETED, SIGNED AND RETURNED

- \_\_\_\_\_ Request for Bids (Page 1 and Page 2)
- Bid Price Form (Page 1 and Page 2)
- \_\_\_\_\_ SHA Vendor Fact Sheet
- \_\_\_\_\_ Section 3 documents
- \_\_\_\_\_ Suspension and Debarment Compliance Certificate for Contractor/Subcontractor
- \_\_\_\_\_ For-Profit Subgrantee and Contractor Certifications and Assurances
- \_\_\_\_\_ Certification of Compliance with Wage Payment Statutes
- \_\_\_\_\_ Non-Collusive Affidavit

## **PRE-BID MEETING INFORMATION**

Monday, October 23, 2023, at 9:00 AM, on Microsoft Teams.

# Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device <u>Click here to join the meeting</u> Meeting ID: 247 678 828 948 Passcode: ZMBV7s <u>Download Teams</u> | Join on the web Join with a video conferencing device 507130161@t.plcm.vc Video Conference ID: 111 318 988 5 <u>Alternate VTC instructions</u> Or call in (audio only) <u>+1 206-257-3799,591288559#</u> United States, Seattle Phone Conference ID: 591 288 559# <u>Find a local number | Reset PIN</u>



Learn More | Meeting options



### Attachment A, Version 2 (\$50,000 to \$250,000)

#### Request For Bid (by e-mail)

The work described in the Request For Bid (by e-mail) is subject to the following terms and conditions:

**Bidder Responsibility**: The bidder must meet the mandatory bidder responsibility criteria described below and as specified in RCW 39.04 or 2 CFR 200 in order to be considered a responsible contractor and be eligible for award consideration:

- 1. At the time of bid submittal, have a current certificate of registration in compliance with chapter 18.27 RCW, which must have been in effect at the time of the bid submittal.
- 2. Have a current Washington Unified Business Identifier (UBI) number.
- 3. If applicable:
  - Have Industrial Insurance (workers' compensation) coverage for the bidder's employees working in Washington, as required in Title 51 RCW;
  - Have a Washington Employment Security Department number, as required in Title 50 RCW;
  - Have a Washington Department of Revenue state excise tax registration number, as required in Title 82 RCW;
  - Electrical Contractor License, if required by Chapter 19.28 RCW
  - Elevator Contractor License, if required by Chapter 70.87 RCW
  - Plumbing Contractor License, if required by Chapter 18.106 RCW
- 4. Not be disqualified from bidding on any public works contract under RCW 39.06.010 or RCW 39.12.065(3).
- 5. Has not been debarred, suspended, or otherwise ineligible to contract with SHA and is not included on the Excluded Parties List System (EPLS) on GSA's SAM (System for Award Management) <u>https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/</u> or the Department of Housing and Urban Development's "Limited Denial of Participation" list. This requirement also applies to the Bidder's principals.
- 6. Have completed training requirements under RCW 39.04.350 before bidding on public works projects as determined by the Washington State Department of Industries OR are exempt from the training requirements under RCW 39.04.350.
- 7. Within the three-year period immediately preceding the date of the proposal submittal, has not have been determined by a final and binding citation and notice of assessment issued by the department of labor and industries or through a civil judgment entered by a court of limited or general jurisdiction to have willfully violated, as defined in RCW 49.48.082, any provision of chapter 49.46, 49.48, or 49.52 RCW.

**Prevailing Wages:** The Contractor must pay all workers at least the prevailing wage rate for the type of work performed in accordance with the applicable prevailing wage rate schedule referenced on the Purchase Order or Request for Bid (by e-mail) form and included in these solicitation documents. The type of wage schedule attached i.e., HUD Determined, Davis-Bacon, or the State Prevailing Wage schedule determines the appropriate labor standards that apply to the work as outlined below and contained in the General Conditions for Construction:

- 1) Part 11.13 for projects subject to the HUD-Determined wage rate schedule.
- 2) Part 11.12 for projects subject to Davis-Bacon wage schedule.
- 3) Part 5 for projects subject to the State prevailing wage schedule.

As part of its compliance with the prevailing wage requirements, the Contractor and, if applicable, subcontractor(s) shall comply with the requirement to submit a Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and Affidavit of Wages Paid forms approved by the State of Washington's Department of Labor and Industries. Upon written request from SHA, the Contractor shall also comply (and shall cause its subcontractors to comply) with any special, alternative, or supplemental filing instructions and requirements.

**<u>Bid Bond</u>**: SHA does not require a bid guarantee for small works roster construction projects estimated to cost \$100,000 or less.

**Insurance:** Within seven calendar days of award, the Contractor shall submit to SHA, and maintain throughout the contract, at no expense to SHA, the following insurance coverage at the limits noted. Refer to SHA's General Conditions Of The Contract For Construction (the "General Conditions" or "SHA's General Conditions") for more details:

- 1. <u>Commercial General Liability Insurance</u>. \$1,000,000 each occurrence, and \$2,000,000 in the aggregate.
- <u>Additional Insured Endorsement Ongoing Operations</u>: SHA (and any limited partnership when applicable) must be included as an Additional Insured on a primary and non-contributory basis on all Commercial General Liability policies of the Contractor. A Certificate of insurance (and policy endorsements if needed) must be provided to SHA as evidence of additional insured coverage.
- 3. <u>Additional Insured Endorsement Completed Operations</u>: The Contractor's CGL insurance shall include SHA (and any limited partnership when applicable) as an additional insured for Contractors Completed Operations by providing additional insured status on the CG2037 endorsement, or by an equivalent policy or endorsement provision. The Contractors Completed Operations additional insured status for SHA (and any limited partnership when applicable) shall remain in effect for not less than three (3) years following the Final Acceptance of the Work by the Owner.
- 4. <u>Employers Liability policy or Washington Stop Gap Liability insurance endorsement:</u> \$1,000,000 each accident/occupational disease.
- 5. Workers Compensation coverage.
- 6. <u>Commercial Business Auto Coverage.</u> \$1,000,000 per accident.
- 7. <u>Pollution Liability Insurance</u>: \$1,000,000 combined single limit coverage, if the work involves handling or disposal of asbestos, lead-based paint, contaminated soil, or other hazardous materials.

**Performance & Payment Bond Requirements:** Within seven calendar days of award, the Contractor shall submit to SHA, in accordance with Section 2.05 of the General Conditions, a Performance and Payment bond. Failure to furnish a Performance and Payment bond within the time specified may render the Contractor ineligible for the contract. SHA may then either award the contract to the next lowest responsible bidder or solicit new bids.

1. The bond requirement can be waived for contracts up to \$100K. If this option is exercised, SHA will hold 10% retainage in lieu of bonds.

<u>Retainage Requirements</u>: SHA requires retainage to be withheld for small works roster construction projects costing \$50,000 or more.

Tax Exempt Status of SHA: Pursuant to State law (RCW 35.82.210), SHA is exempt from paying sales tax when it obtains goods and services directly from the Contractor.

<u>Protests:</u> Any protest of award shall be resolved in accordance with SHA's Procurement Policies, which may be reviewed at <u>SHA website</u>.

**General Conditions:** SHA's General Conditions are incorporated by reference and made a part of this Request for Bid (by e-mail) and any subsequent contract or purchase order executed for this work as if fully included herein. If the event of any discrepancy between the terms of this Attachment A and the General Conditions, the General Conditions apply, except that the types and amounts of insurance specified above, and the waiver of the Contract Bond and withholding of retainage specified above, shall take precedence over the General Conditions. The General Conditions may be viewed by accessing <u>SHA website</u>, or upon request by calling SHA at (206) 615-3379.

**Performance Evaluation:** The Contractor's performance on this project will be evaluated in accordance with SHA's Contractor Performance Evaluation Program. A copy of the Program may be obtained by accessing <u>SHA website</u>.

**Section 3:** Section 3 is a provision of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968. The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by certain HUD financial assistance shall, to the greatest extent feasible, and consistent with existing Federal, State, and local laws and regulations, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who are recipients of government assistance for housing, and to business concerns which provide economic opportunities to low- and very low-income persons. Each bidder is required to submit with its Bid a Section 3 Business Certification form. Failure to complete this form may render a bid non-responsive.

A. <u>Section 3 Contract Language:</u> The following language regarding Section 3 will be included as part of the contract to be executed based on this solicitation:

Contractor will comply with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, 12 U.S.C. 1701u, and its implementing regulations set forth at 24 CFR 75 (as each of the same has been or may be amended, modified, or replaced from time to time, and including any successor statutes or regulations, collectively, "Section 3"), and with this Section.

- 1. The work to be performed under this Contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3.
- 2. Contractor will require its subcontractors to comply with Section 3. As evidenced by its execution of this Contract, Contractor certifies that it is under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent it from complying with Section 3.
- 3. Contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract and will take all necessary steps to ensure compliance with Section 3 by its subcontractors. Upon a finding that a subcontractor is in violation of Section 3, Contractor will take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this Section 3 clause. Contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the Contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of Section 3.
- 4. Contractor will provide certifications in form and substance required by Owner, at such times as Owner may request, certifying (i) Contractor's compliance with Section 3, and (ii) as to such facts and circumstances pertaining to Section 3 as Owner may require or request, including certification with respect to total number of labor hours worked under this Contract, labor hours worked by Section 3 Workers (as defined in Section 3), and labor hours worked by Targeted Section 3 Workers (as defined in Section 3).
- 5. Contractor's noncompliance with Section 3 may result in sanctions, termination of this Contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD-assisted contracts.
- 6. Contractor agrees to perform any further acts and execute and deliver any further documents that may be reasonably necessary to carry out the provisions and intent of this Section or otherwise to ensure compliance with Section 3.

#### **ATTACHMENT B - SCOPE OF WORK**

#### SECTION 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION

#### 1.01 SCOPE OF THE WORK

- A. The Contractor will be required to furnish and install, through self-performance or the management of Subcontractors, the following elements of work, including but not limited to: installation of a custom sized acrylic one-piece shower pan over the existing shower pan, installation of a custom formed one-piece acrylic shower wall system over the existing tub; conversion from tub to shower; conversion of existing tub/shower to an ADA roll-in shower; wall repair for rot/mold in walls/flooring; exposed edges capped with extruded molding, installation of new tempered glass shower doors, stainless steel grab bars, soap dish and tie-in to existing floor drain and caulking. Contractor shall remove all debris from the work site.
- B. There are three (3) installation types. Detailed information provided in Section 2.
  - 1. Tub and tub surround
  - 2. Walk-in shower
  - 3. Tub or walk in shower conversion to ADA accessible shower
- C. Contractor shall remove all debris from the work site.
- D. Provide owner with a minimum of 72-hour advance notice for work occurring in occupied units. In occupied units, the shower is not to be out of service for more than 24 hours. If for some reason the shower cannot be returned to service within 24 hours, notify the Owner immediately.
- E. Hours of work will be scheduled Monday thru Friday, 8 AM 5 PM, excluding SHA holidays.

#### **1.02 PROJECT LOCATIONS**

- A. Various locations throughout the City of Seattle. SHA anticipates a quantity of 10 showers in multiple locations in the first year. Locations as specified below are owned by SHA. Additional sites may be added as needed.
  - 1. High Point: 6040 35th Ave SW, Seattle
  - 2. Lake City Village: 12536 33rd Ave NE, Seattle
  - 3. NewHolly: 3815 S Othello St., Seattle
  - 4. Rainier Vista: 4570 Martin Luther King Jr Way S., Seattle
- B. SHA reserves the right to add or subtract properties / locations during the contract term if determined to be in the best interest of SHA. Notice of such action will be given to the contractor in writing thirty (30) days in advance.

#### 1.03 BIDDING

- B. This Request for Bids will include and require the following:
  - 1. Total bid price for the project
  - 2. Unit prices for the different installation types
  - 3. A commitment to provide a community participation plan
  - 4. Assurances of Contractor experience
  - 5. Capacity to adequately contract and perform the work.

# VARIOUS HOPE VI SHOWER UPGRADES - FEDERAL FUNDING SHA SOLICITATION NO. 5831

C. Responding to this Request for Bids, the Bidder acknowledges that for any contract signed as a result of this Request for Bids, the authority to proceed with the work is contingent upon availability of funding.

#### 1.04 ESTIMATE

A. This project cost is estimated between \$50,000 and \$60,000 per year, not to exceed \$150,000 for the entire contract.

#### **1.05 CONTRACT TERMS**

- A. Term: one year.
  - 1. SHA reserves the right to extend the contract term for an additional 365 calendar days if determined to be in the best interest of SHA.
    - a. This 365 calendar days term extension can be exercised a maximum of two (2) times under this contract.
- B. Work Order Purchase Orders will be approved and issued by Owner to be performed for each project. Each limited scope Work Order Purchase Order shall be performed in accordance with SHA Terms and Conditions per Attachment A, Version 2. Services will be provided in connection with properties located within the City of Seattle.
- C. The estimated number of installations is being given only as the basis for the comparison of bids. SHA does not warrant, expressly or by implication that the actual amount of work will correspond therewith. SHA reserves the right to add or subtract installations during the contract term if determined to be in the best interest of SHA.

#### 1.06 COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS

- A. The Contractor awarded the Contract shall comply with federal, state and local laws, statutes, and ordinances relative to the execution of the work.
- B. All required licensing must be in place at time of bid submittal.
  - 1. The Contractor is responsible for verifying with the Department of Labor and Industries whether this work requires a plumbing license.

#### **SECTION 2 – SPECS**

#### 2.01 TUB AND TUB SURROUND

- A. Estimated number of installations: Five (5)
- B. Scope of Work:
  - 1. Removal of tub surround.
  - 2. Install new tub surround, acrylic or fiberglass.
  - 3. Reinforced sides and backs for grab bars.
    - a. Install Grab bar on back wall, if applicable.
  - 4. Repair drywall with texture and paint to match.
  - 5. Proper disposal of items off site

#### C. Fixtures

- 1. Single-lever Delta or Moen Faucet or a comparable product.
- 2. Body material: solid brass.
- 3. Finish: Polished chrome-plate.

#### 2.02 WALK IN SHOWER

- A. Estimate number of installations: Three (3)
- B. Scope of Work:
  - 1. Removal of walk in shower pan, surround and shower glass.
  - 2. Install new acrylic or fiberglass shower pan and glue on shower wall system.
  - 3. Non-skid textured bottom surfaces, reinforced with wood to meet a 300# load test.
  - 4. Reinforced sides and backs for grab bars.
  - a. Install Grab bars on back wall, if applicable.
  - 5. Install new classic sliding shower glass door system:
    - a. Semi-frameless, 3/8 clear glass.
  - 6. Repair drywall with texture and paint to match.
  - 7. Proper disposal of items off site
- C. Fixtures
  - 1. Single-lever Delta or Moen Faucet or a comparable product.
  - 2. Body material: solid brass.
  - 3. Finish: Polished chrome-plate.

#### 2.03 TUB OR WALK IN SHOWER CONVERSION TO ADA ACCESSIBLE SHOWER

- A. Estimate number of installations: Two (2)
- B. Scope of Work:
  - 1. Removal of tub or walk in shower pan, surround and shower glass.
  - 2. Install roll-in shower with an entry of 36" minimum shall be provided, no door allowed.
  - 3. Reinforced sides and backs for handrails and seats.
  - Shower to be flush with adjacent wall to provide clear floor space.
     a. 180-degree flange not allowed.
  - 5. Per 2010 ADA Section 608, 2009 ICC A117.1 Section 608 and PHA Chapter 7.
  - 6. Proper disposal of items off site
- D. Fixtures
  - 1. Single-lever Delta or Moen Faucet or a comparable product.
  - 2. Body material: solid brass.
  - 3. Finish: Polished chrome-plate.
- E. ADA Regulatory Requirements: Comply with requirements in ICC A117.1, "Accessible and Usable Buildings and Facilities" for plumbing fixtures for people with disabilities.



# HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SEATTLE

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION December 5, 2022

# Table of Contents

PAR	T 1 - GENERAL PROVISIONS	1
1.01	DEFINITIONS	1
1.02	ORDER OF PRECEDENCE	4
1.03	EXECUTION AND INTENT	4
PAR	T 2 - INSURANCE AND BONDS	5
	CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY INSURANCE	
2.02	COVERAGE LIMITS	8
2.03	INSURANCE COVERAGE ENDORSEMENTS AND CERTIFICATES	8
2.04	INSURANCE NON-COMPLIANCE	9
	PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BONDS	
2.06	ADDITIONAL BOND SECURITY	. 10
	BUILDERS RISK INSURANCE (when applicable)	
2.08	CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS	. 11
	T 3 - TIME AND SCHEDULE	
3.01	PROGRESS AND COMPLETION	
3.02	PROJECT SCHEDULE	. 11
	OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK FOR CAUSE	
3.05		
3.06		
3.07	DAMAGES FOR FAILURE TO ACHIEVE TIMELY COMPLETION	. 14
PAR	T 4 - SPECIFICATIONS, DRAWINGS, DETAILS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS	. 15
4.01	DISCREPANCIES AND DUTY TO REVIEW CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	. 15
4.02	PROJECT RECORD	. 16
	SHOP DRAWINGS	
	ORGANIZATIOn OF SPECIFICATIONs	
	OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS	
PAR	T 5 - PERFORMANCE	
5.01		
5.02	PERMITS, FEES, AND NOTICES	. 19
5.03	PATENTS AND ROYALTIES	. 20
	PREVAILING WAGES. [ONLY APPLICABLE TO STATE- OR CITY-FUNDED JECTS. see section 11.12 for federally-funded projects]	. 20
	HOURS OF LABOR. [ONLY APPLICABLE TO STATE- OR CITY-FUNDED PROJECTS. ection 11.12 for federally-funded projects]	. 20

5.06	NONDISCRIMINATION	. 21
5.07	SAFETY PRECAUTIONS	. 22
5.08	OPERATIONS, MATERIAL HANDLING, AND STORAGE AREAS	. 24
5.09	PRIOR NOTICE OF EXCAVATION	. 24
5.10	UNFORESEEN PHYSICAL CONDITIONS	. 25
5.11 IMPR	PROTECTION OF EXISTING STRUCTURES, EQUIPMENT, VEGETATION, UTILITIES, AND OVEMENTS	. 25
5.12	LAYOUT OF WORK	. 26
5.13	MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT	. 26
5.14	AVAILABILITY AND USE OF UTILITY SERVICES	. 26
5.15	TESTS AND INSPECTIONS	. 27
5.16	CORRECTION OF NONCONFORMING WORK	
5.17	SITE ORGANIZATION AND CLEAN UP	. 29
5.18	ACCESS TO WORK AND OCCUPIED RESIDENTIAL UNITS	. 29
5.19	OTHER CONTRACTS	. 29
5.20	SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS	. 30
5.21	WARRANTY OF CONSTRUCTION	. 30
5.22	INDEMNIFICATION	. 31
5.23	PROHIBITION AGAINST LIENS	. 31
5.24	OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE	. 32
5.25	CONFLICTS	. 32
5.26	APPROVAL OF OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVES	. 32
5.27	ORAL AGREEMENTS	. 32
PAR	Γ 6 - PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION	. 33
6.01	CONTRACT SUM	. 33
6.02	SCHEDULE OF VALUES	. 33
6.03	APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT	. 33
6.04	PROGRESS PAYMENTS	. 34
6.05	PAYMENTS WITHHELD	. 34
6.06	RETAINAGE AND BOND CLAIM RIGHTS	. 35
6.07	SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION	. 35
6.08	PRIOR OCCUPANCY	. 35
6.09	FINAL COMPLETION, ACCEPTANCE, AND PAYMENT	. 36
PAR	Г7-CHANGES	. 36
7.01	CHANGES IN THE WORK	. 36
7.02	CHANGES IN THE CONTRACT SUM	. 37
7.03	CHANGES IN THE CONTRACT TIME	. 43

PART	8 - CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION	45
8.01	CLAIMS PROCEDURE	45
8.02	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	46
	ARBITRATION	
8.04	LITIGATION	47
8.05	CLAIMS AUDITS	47
	9 - TERMINATION OF THE WORK	
	TERMINATION BY OWNER FOR CAUSE	
	TERMINATION BY OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE	
PART	10 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	50
10.01	GOVERNING LAW	50
10.02	SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS	50
	MEANING OF WORDS	
	RIGHTS AND REMEDIES	
	CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION	
	TIME COMPUTATIONS	
10.07	RECORDS RETENTION	51
10.08	THIRD-PARTY AGREEMENTS	51
	ANTITRUST ASSIGNMENT	
10.10	NOTICES	51
	LABOR AND INDUSTRIES REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR HUD FUNDED PROJECTS:	
	11 - FEDERAL PROVISIONS	
11.01	PROHIBITION AGAINST USE OF LEAD-BASED PAINT	53
11.02	FEDERAL HEALTH, SAFETY, AND ACCIDENT PREVENTION	53
	CLEAN AIR AND WATER APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF \$150,000	
11.04	ENERGY EFFICIENCY	54
	SUBCONTRACTING WITH SMALL AND MINORITY FIRMS, WOMEN'S BUSINES	
	RPRISE, AND LABOR SURPLUS AREA FIRMS	
	EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING, AND CONTRACTING OPPORTUNITIES FOR	54
LOW-	INCOME PERSONS, SECTION 3 OF THE HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMEN OF 1968	
11.08	INTEREST OF MEMBERS OF CONGRESS	55
	INTEREST OF MEMBERS, OFFICERS, OR EMPLOYEES AND FORMER MEMBERS, ERS, OR EMPLOYEES	56
	LIMITATIONS ON PAYMENTS MADE TO INFLUENCE CERTAIN FEDERAL	56
11.11	EXAMINATION AND RETENTION OF CONTRACTOR'S RECORDS	56
11.12	LABOR STANDARDS - DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACTS	57

11.13 LABOR STANDARDS-HUD-DETERMINED NON-RO	UTINE MAINTENANCE63
11.14 NON-FEDERAL PREVAILING WAGE RATES	
11.15 PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIA	LS
PART 12 - SOCIAL EQUITY REQUIREMENTS	
12.01 EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING GOALS AND REQUIR	EMENTS
12.02 WOMEN AND MINORITY BUSINESS AND HUD SECT AND REQUIREMENTS	
12.03 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS	
12.04 VIOLATIONS	

## PART 1 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

## **1.01 DEFINITIONS**

- A. "Advertisement for Bids" A public notice published in the official newspaper, designated by the Owner, and/or on the internet, soliciting bids for the Work.
- B. "Addendum" or "Addenda" means alteration or clarification of the plans or specifications provided to bidders or proposers by the Owner prior to bid or proposal time, which becomes part of the Contract Documents when the Contract is executed.
- C. "Application for Payment" means a written request submitted by Contractor to Owner for payment of Work completed in accordance with the Contract Documents and approved Schedule of Values, supported by substantiating data as Owner.
- D. "Architect," "Engineer," or "A/E" means a person or entity lawfully entitled to practice architecture or engineering, representing the Owner within the limits of its delegated authority.
- E. "Bid Documents" means the component parts of the proposed Contract which may include the Advertisement for Bids, Bid Form, Agreement Form, Project Manual, Drawings, Addenda and any other documents incorporated into the Contract by reference.
- F. "Change Order" means a written instrument signed by Owner and Contractor stating their agreement upon all of the following: (1) a change in the Work; (2) the amount of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, if any, and (3) the extent of the adjustment in the Contract Time, if any.

- G. "Claim" means Contractor's exclusive remedy for resolving disputes with Owner arising from the Contract documents (including disputes regarding the terms of a Change Order or a request for equitable adjustment), as more fully set forth in part 8.
- H. "Contract" The written agreement between the Owner and the Contractor, which includes the signed Agreement Form, Bid Form, Contract provisions, Drawings, Addenda, certifications, supplemental agreements, Change Orders and all other documents specifically incorporated by reference comprise the Contract
- "Contract Documents" Ι. means the Advertisement for Bids or Proposals, Instructions for Bidders or Proposers, completed Bid or Proposal Form, General Conditions. Supplemental Conditions. Public Works Contract, Addenda, other Forms, Drawings Special and Specifications, (and, for federally-funded applicable projects, the wage rate determinations from either the U.S. Department of Labor or Housing and Urban Development), and all addenda and modifications thereof.
- J. "Contract Sum" is the total amount payable by Owner to Contractor for performance of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- K. "Contract Time" is the number of Days allotted in the Contract Documents for achieving Substantial Completion of the Work.
- L. "Contractor" means the person or entity who has agreed via contract with Owner to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- M. "Critical Path' means the longest, continuous sequence of interrelated activities of the Work that begins at the start of the Project (Notice to Proceed) and

extends through Substantial Completion of the Project. These activities are critical because delay to an activity on this path will extend Contract Time.

- N. "Day" means calendar day, unless otherwise specified.
- O. "Drawings" are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location, and dimensions of the Work, and may include plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams.
- P. "Field Directive" is a document titled Field Directive, prepared by the Owner directing the Contractor to proceed diligently with specific work and shall not, in and of itself, constitute a Chage Order or entitlement to an adjustment in Contract Time and/or Contract Price.
- Q. "Final Acceptance" means the written acceptance issued to Contractor by Owner after Contractor has completed the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- R. "Final Completion" means the written completion issued to Contractor that the Work is fully and finally completed in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- S. "Force Majeure" means those acts entitling Contractor to request an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time, as more fully set forth in paragraph 3.05A.
- T. "Minority-owned Business Enterprise (MBE)" means a self-identified business or a business certified by the State of Washington to be at least fifty-one percent owned by a minority (including, but not limited to, African Americans, Native Americans, Asians, Hispanics, and Hasidic Jews) group members
- U. "Minority-owned Women Business Enterprise (MWBE)" means a selfidentified business or a business certified

by the State of Washington to be at least fifty-one percent owned by a minority woman.

- V. "Notice" means a written notice which has been delivered in person to the individual or a member of the firm or entity or to an officer of the corporation for which it was intended or, if delivered or sent by registered or certified mail, to the last business address known to the party giving notice.
- W. "Notice to Proceed," means a notice from Owner to Contractor that defines the date on which the Contract Time begins to run.
- X. "Overhead" means charges that may be incurred or allocated in support of the Contract but are not part of the cost of directly performing the Work. Overhead includes Site or Field Overhead and Home Office Overhead.
- Y. "Owner" means the Housing Authority of the City of Seattle. For purposes of sections 5.03 and 5.22, "Owner" also includes all commissioners, officers, agents and employees of the Housing Authority of the City of Seattle.
- Z. "Performance and Payment Bonds" means the approved form of security furnished by the Contractor and the Contractor's Surety or Sureties guaranteeing completion of the Work required by the Contractor Construction Contract and these General Conditions and payment to persons supplying labor and materials in the prosecution of the Work, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- AA. "Person" means a corporation, partnership, or business association of any kind, trust, company, or individual.
- BB. "Prior Occupancy" means Owner's use of all or parts of the Project before Substantial Completion.

- CC. "Progress Schedule" means a schedule of the Work, in a form satisfactory to Owner, as further set forth in section 3.02.
- DD. "Project" means the total construction of which the Work is performed in accordance with the Contract Documents may be the whole or a part and which may include supplemental construction by Owner or by separate contractors.
- EE. "Project Manual" means the volume assembled for the Work, which may include the bidding requirements, sample forms, specifications, General Conditions, Supplemental Conditions and other Contract Documents.
- FF."Project Record" means the separate set of Drawings and Specifications as further set forth in paragraph 4.02A.
- GG. "Request for Competitive Proposal" A formally advertised and competitive selection process used for obtaining construction services that will cost more than \$250,000, in which the evaluation and selection of a Contractor cannot be based on price alone, but is based on established criteria that include price and other factors.
- HH. "Request for Information" means a written submission from the Contractor seeking additional information regarding the prosecution of the Work and/or the Contract Documents governing the Work.
- II. "Schedule of Values" means a written breakdown allocating the total Contract Sum to each principle category of Work, in such detail as requested by Owner.
- JJ. "Section 3" means Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, 12 U.S.C. 1701u, and its implementing regulations set forth at 24 CFR 75 (as each of the same has been or may be amended, modified, or replaced

from time to time, and including any successor statutes or regulations).

- KK. "Specifications" are the portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services.
- LL. "Subcontract" means a contract entered into by a Subcontractor for the purpose of obtaining supplies, materials, equipment, or services of any kind for or in connection with the Work.
- MM. "Subcontractor" means any person, other than Contractor, who agrees to furnish or furnishes any supplies, materials, equipment, or services of any kind in connection with the Work.
- NN. "Substantial Completion" means that stage in the progress of the Work where Owner has full and unrestricted use and benefit of the facilities for the purposes intended, as more fully set forth in section 6.07.
- OO. "Unusually Severe Weather" shall be defined, documented and calculated as follows:
  - 1. Daily rainfall equal to, or greater than, .05 inch during a month when the monthly rainfall exceeds the normal monthly average by 15 to 100 percent.
  - 2. Daily rainfall equal to, or greater than, 2.0 inch during a month when the monthly rainfall exceeds the normal monthly average by more than 100 percent.
  - 3. Daily rainfall equal to, or greater than, 1.0 inch at any time.
  - 4. Daily maximum temperature equal to or less than, 20 degrees F during a week when the maximum daily temperature never exceeds 35 degrees F.

- PP. "Work" means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, and includes, but is not limited to, labor, materials, supplies, equipment, services, permits, and the manufacture and fabrication of components, performed, furnished, or provided in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- QQ. "Authorities Having Jurisdiction" means all federal, state and local government agencies having jurisdiction or approval authority over any aspect of the Work.
- RR. ONLY APPLICABLE TO FEDERALLY-FUNDED PROJECTS.]: "HUD" means the United States of America acting through the Department of Housing and Development including Urban the Secretary, or any other person designated to act on its behalf. HUD has agreed, subject to the provisions of an Annual Contributions Contract (ACC), to provide financial assistance to Owner, which includes assistance in financing the work to be performed under this contract. Notwithstanding HUD's role, nothing in this contract shall be construed to create any contractual relationship between the Contractor and HUD.]

## 1.02 ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

Any conflict or inconsistency in the Contract Documents shall be resolved by giving the documents precedence in the following order:

- A. Signed Public Works Contract, including any Change Orders and Addenda.
- B. Supplemental Conditions.
- C. General Conditions.
- D. Specifications-as modified by Addenda or Change Orders. Provisions in Division 1 shall take precedence over provisions of any other Division.

- E. Drawings and details as modified by Addenda or Change Orders-in case of conflict within the Drawings, large-scale drawings shall take precedence over small-scale drawings or details.
- F. Signed and Completed Form of Bid or Proposal.
- G. Instructions to Bidders.
- H. Advertisement for Bids.

I. Clarification of Drawings and Detail Drawings

1. Where on any drawing a portion of the Work is drawn out and the remainder is indicated in outline, the drawn out parts shall apply also to other similar portions of the Work. Where ornament or other detail is indicated by starting only, such detail shall be continued throughout the courses or parts in which it occurs and shall apply to all other similar parts of the Work, unless otherwise indicated.

2. With regard to Drawings the following shall apply:

- a. Written dimensions shall be followed; drawings may not be to scale.
- Figure dimensions on drawings shall govern of scale dimensions; and detail drawings shall govern over general drawings.

## **1.03 EXECUTION AND INTENT**

Contractor makes the following representations to Owner:

A. The Contract Sum is reasonable compensation for the Work and the Contract Time is adequate for the performance of the Work, as represented by the Contract Documents;

- B. Contractor has carefully reviewed the Contract Documents, had an opportunity to visit and examine the Project site, has become familiar with the local conditions in which the Work is to be performed, and has satisfied itself as to the nature. location, character, quality and quantity of the Work, the labor, materials, equipment, goods, supplies, work, services and other items to be furnished and all other requirements of the Contract Documents, as well as the surface and known subsurface conditions and other matters that may be encountered at the Project site or affect performance of the Work or the cost or difficulty thereof;
- C. Contractor is financially solvent, able to pay its debts as they mature, and possesses sufficient working capital to complete the Work and perform Contractor's obligations required by the Contract Documents; and
- D. Contractor is able to furnish the plant, tools, materials, supplies, equipment and labor required to complete the Work and perform the obligations required by the Contract Documents and have sufficient experience and competence to do so.

## PART 2 - INSURANCE AND BONDS

Within seven (7) days from the date of the Notice of Award, and prior to commencement of the Work, Contractor shall obtain all the insurance required by the Contract Documents and provide evidence satisfactory to Owner that such insurance has been procured. Review and approval of the Contractor's insurance by Owner shall not relieve or decrease the Contractor's liability in any respect. Failure of the Contractor to fully comply with the insurance requirements of this Contract will be considered a material breach of contract and, at the option of Owner, is cause for such remedy or relief as may be available to Owner by law or under any provision of this Contract, including immediate termination of the Contract.

#### 2.01 CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY INSURANCE

- A. <u>General Insurance Requirements:</u> Prior to commencement of the Work, Contractor shall obtain all the insurance required by the Contract Documents and provide evidence satisfactory to Owner that such insurance has been procured. Review of the Contractor's insurance by Owner shall not relieve or decrease the liability of Contractor. The term "insurance" herein shall include but not be limited to self-insurance, alternative risk transfer techniques, capital market solutions or any other form of risk financing.
- B. Contractor shall include in its bid the cost of all insurance and bonds required to complete the base bid work and accepted alternates, no additional payments will be made.
- C. Insurance policies, deductibles, selfinsured retentions, and insurance carriers will be subject to review and approval by Owner. Except for **Professional Liability Insurance** coverage, if applicable, each insurer must either be 1) authorized to do business in the State of Washington and maintain A.M. Best's ratings of "A VII" or higher, or 2) procured as surplus lines under the provisions of RCW Chapter 48.15 ("Unauthorized Insurers"), except as may be otherwise approved by the Owner. Insurers or reinsurers of Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance must have a rating of "B+VII or higher.
- D. <u>Insurance Coverage and Terms:</u> Contractor shall maintain the following insurance coverage during the Work and for one (1) year after Final Completion, except for Products and

Completed Operations coverage which shall remain in effect for three (3) years after Final Completion. Contractor shall also maintain the following insurance coverage during the performance of any corrective Work required by section 5.16.

- <u>Commercial General Liability</u> (CGL) (this shall cover the use of all equipment, hoists, and vehicles on the site(s) not covered by Automobile Liability under paragraph 2.01D.2 written on an Occurrence Form or its equivalent which shall include coverage for:
  - a. Premises/Operations
  - b. Products/Completed Operations
  - c. Personal/Advertising Injury
  - d. Contractual
  - e. Independent Contractors
  - f. Stop Gap (unless insured as Employers Liability under Part B. of a Workers Compensation Insurance Policy
  - g. Per project aggregate per ISO CG 25 03 (Aggregate Limits of Insurance per Project) or Equivalent
  - h. Explosion, collapse, and underground
  - i. Waiver of Subrogation

In the event that the services to be provided under this Contract involve the Contractor's contact with minor children or any Vulnerable Adults as defined by RCW 74.34.020, the Contractor shall provide evidence that sexual molestation coverage has not been excluded from the CGL policy.

2. <u>Automobile Liability</u> on owned and non-owned motor vehicles, leased or hired vehicles written on an insurance industry standard form (CA 00 01) or equivalent.

- <u>Contractor's Pollution Liability</u> (<u>CPL</u>): When project scope of work includes any or all items below, the Contractor will provide a Contractors Pollution Liability policy against claims for bodily injury, property damage and cleanup costs/environmental damages arising from pollution conditions caused in the performance of covered operations when:
  - a. The Work involves remediation, abatement, repair, maintenance or other work with asbestos containing materials, leadcontaining products (paint, coatings, components), mercury, underground storage tanks, and/or other hazardous materials. A CPL policy specifically covering these exposures shall be required from the Contractor or the subcontractor performing such work.
  - b. The Work involves the transporting hazardous materials or waste, a separate policy or endorsement to the CPL policy specifically providing coverage for liability and cleanup, arising from an upset or collision during transportation of hazardous materials is required from the Contractor or subcontractor performing such work.
- 4. <u>Professional Liability:</u> When applicable, in the event that services delivered pursuant to this Contract either directly or indirectly involve or require professional services, Professional Liability, Errors and Omissions coverage shall be provided.
- 5. <u>Cyber Liability</u>: When applicable, the Contractor shall provide Cyber

Liability coverage as specified in the Supplementary Conditions section.

- 6. <u>Umbrella or Excess liability</u>: When applicable, the Contractor shall provide Excess or Umbrella Liability coverage as specified in the Supplementary Conditions section
- E. Industrial Insurance Compliance: Contractor shall comply with the Washington State Industrial Insurance Act and, if applicable, the Federal Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' Act and the Jones Act.
- F. Insurance to protect for the following: All insurance coverages shall protect against claims for damages for personal and bodily injury or death, as well as claims for property damage, which may arise from operations in connection with the Work whether such operations are by Contractor or any Subcontractor.
- G. Owner as Additional Insured: All liability policies except Professional Liability and Workers Compensation shall be endorsed to include Owner as additional insured on a primary and non-contributory basis for Work performed in accordance with the Contract Documents, and all insurance certificates shall evidence the Owner as additional insured.
- H. <u>Waiver of Subrogation</u>: Contractor's policy shall provide waiver of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise.
- The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Owner, its Commissioners, officers, employees, and agents to the extent of:
  - 1. The sole negligence of Contractor or any of its Subcontractors;

- 2. The concurrent negligence of Contractor, or any Subcontractor, but only to the extent of the negligence of Contractor or such Subcontractor; and
- 3. The use of any design, process, or equipment which constitutes an infringement of any United States patent presently issued, or violates any other proprietary interest, including copyright, trademark, and trade secret.
- J. <u>Deductibles or Self-Insured Retention:</u> Any deductibles or self-insured retentions \$25,000 or higher must be declared to, and approved by the Owner. The deductible and/or selfinsured retention of the policies shall not limit or apply to the Prime Contractor's liability to the Owner. Payment of deductibles shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.
- K. XCU and Subsidence Perils Not Excluded: The Contractor's Commercial General Liability insurance shall not exclude perils generally known as XCU (Explosion, Collapse and Underground Property Damage), Subsidence, Absolute Earth Movement (except as respects earthquake peril only) or any equivalent peril.
- L. <u>Railroad Protective Liability</u>: The Contractor and/or any subcontractor of any tier shall comply with all of a railroad's risk management requirements (including purchasing Railroad Protective Liability insurance) before performing construction services adjacent to or upon a railway's right of way and/or property.
- M. <u>No Limitation of Liability</u> The limits of liability specified herein are minimum limits only. Such minimum limits of liability requirements shall not be construed to limit the liability of the

Contractor or of any of their respective insurers. The Contractor shall include Owner as an additional insured for primary and non-contributory limits of liability for the full valid and collectible limits of liability maintained by the Contractor whether such limits are primary, excess, contingent or otherwise. This provision shall apply regardless of whether limits maintained by the Contractor are greater than the minimum limits required by this Contract, and regardless of whether the certification of insurance by the Contractor specifies lower minimum limits than those specified for or maintained by the Contractor.

## 2.02 COVERAGE LIMITS

The minimum coverage limits shall be as follows unless otherwise specified in Supplementary Conditions:

- A. <u>1) Commercial General Liability</u> Insurance.
  - \$1,000,000 each occurrence Combined Single Limit, Bodily and Property Damage and \$2,000,000 aggregate
  - 2) <u>Employers Liability or Washington</u> <u>Stop Gap Liability.</u> A policy of Employers Liability or a Washington Stop Gap Liability insurance endorsement with the following minimum coverage:
    - \$1,000,000 Bodily Injury by Accident, Bodily Injury by Disease – Each Employee, Bodily Injury by Disease – Policy Limit; Employers Liability or Washington Stop Gap

3) <u>Commercial Automobile Liability</u> <u>Insurance</u>.

• \$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit (CSL) coverage

4) Workers Compensation. A policy of Workers Compensation. As respects Workers Compensation insurance in the State of Washington, the Prime Contractor shall secure its liability for industrial injury to its employees in accordance with the provisions of Title 51 of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW). If the Prime Contractor is qualified as a selfinsurer in accordance with Chapter 51.14 RCW, the Prime Contractor shall so certify by a letter signed by a corporate officer, indicating that it is a qualified self-insured, and setting forth the limits of any policy of excess insurance covering its employees, or any similar coverage required.

- 5) Contractor's Pollution Liability.
  - \$1,000,000 Contractor's Pollution Liability, each claim

6) <u>Professional Liability, Errors and</u> <u>Omissions</u>.

- \$1,000,000 Professional Liability, Errors and Omissions, each claim
- 7) Cyber Liability.
  - Refer to Supplementary Conditions section for Cyber Liability Coverage
- 8) Umbrella or Excess Liability
  - Refer to Supplementary Conditions section for Umbrella or Excess Liability Coverage

#### 2.03 INSURANCE COVERAGE ENDORSEMENTS AND CERTIFICATES

- A. Additional Insured Endorsement.
  - 1. The Owner must be included as an Additional Insured on a primary and non-contributory basis on all

Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies of the Contractor. As respects the CGL insurance such additional insured status shall be evidenced by an ISO endorsement form CG2010 or equivalent.

- 2. Regarding to CGL insurance, such Additional Insured status shall contain a "separation of insureds" provision.
- 3. The Owner must be included as an Additional Insured for Contractors Completed Operations on the Commercial General Liability policy of the Contractor. As respects to CGL insurance, such additional insured status shall be evidenced by an ISO endorsement form CG2037 or equivalent. The endorsement shall remain in effect for not less than three (3) years after Final Completion of the Work.
- B. Proof of Insurance and Insurance Expiration:
  - The Prime Contractor shall furnish certificates of insurance and policy endorsements as evidence of compliance with the insurance requirements of the Contract. Such certificates and endorsements must be signed by a person authorized by that insurance company to bind coverage on its behalf.
  - 2. All insurance certificates shall name Owner's Project number and Project title.
  - 3. The Prime Contractor shall include all subcontractors at any tier as insureds, and ensure that the Prime Contractor's coverage of subcontractors under the Prime Contractor's policies is not excluded by any policy provision or

endorsement. Alternatively, the Prime Contractor shall:

- a. Obtain from each subcontractor not insured under the Prime Contractor's policy or policies of insurance, evidence of insurance meeting all the requirements of this Contract, and
- b. Maintain such evidence on file for a period of one (1) year after Final Completion except for Products and Completed Operations coverage which shall remain in effect for three (3) years after Final Completion and, upon request, submit such evidence to Owner for examination,
- 4. The Prime Contractor's insurance shall not be reduced or canceled without forty-five (45) days prior written notice to Owner, except for cancellation for non-payment of premium, for which notice shall not be less than ten (10) days prior to such date, unless a longer period of written notice is required under the provisions of Revised Code of Washington (RCW 48.18.290). The Prime Contractor shall not permit any required insurance coverage to expire during the term of this Contract.
- 5. Owner reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies at any time during the term of this Contract, or to waive any of the insurance requirements of this Contract at its sole discretion.

## 2.04 INSURANCE NON-COMPLIANCE

A. Failure of the Prime Contractor to fully comply with the insurance requirements of this Contract will be considered a material breach of contract and, at the option of the Owner, will be cause for such action as may be available to Owner under other provisions of this Contract or otherwise in law, including immediate termination of the Contract.

## 2.05 PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BONDS

- A. Payment and performance bonds for 100% of the Contract Sum, including all Change Orders and state sales tax, shall be furnished for the Work, and shall be in a form acceptable to the Owner.
- B. The Contractor shall provide to the Owner a provisional Payment and Performance bonds for review and approval by SHA with the signed Contract as an assurance of completion. The Contractor shall deliver the approved Payment and Performance bonds within seven (7) calendar days from the date of Contract Execution or within an extended period granted by the Owner based upon reasons determined adequate by the Owner. Failure to furnish the Payment and Performance bonds within the time specified may render the Contractor ineligible for award. The Owner may then either award the contract to the next lowest responsible bidder or resolicit for bids. The Owner may retain the ineligible bidder's bid bond.

## 2.06 ADDITIONAL BOND SECURITY

Contractor shall promptly furnish additional security required to protect Owner and persons supplying labor or materials required by the Contract Documents if:

A. Owner has a reasonable objection to the surety; or

B. Any surety fails to furnish reports on its financial condition if requested by Owner.

# 2.07 BUILDERS RISK INSURANCE (WHEN APPLICABLE)

- A. The Owner may purchase and maintain Builders Risk insurance in the amount of the Contract Sum, including all adjustments thereto by Change Order, on a replacement cost basis until Final Completion. The **Builders** Risk insurance shall cover the interests in the Work of the Owner by the Contractor and any subcontractor of any tier. Contractor shall be responsible for payment of deductibles from the Builders Risk insurance policy to be purchased by Owner, which deductible amount is currently \$25,000 unless otherwise specified in the Supplementary Conditions section. Deductible amount may be subject to increase or decrease by Owner from time to time upon written notice to Contractor.
- B. Builders Risk insurance does not cover Contractor's or Subcontractor's at any tier owned, hired, or leased property or tools, equipment, or supplies used for the construction and not intended to form a permanent part of the Work, for which Contractor and Subcontractor shall be responsible and at their sole option to insure.
- C. Owner and Contractor waive all subrogation rights against each other, any Subcontractors, A/E, A/E's subconsultants, separate contractors described in section 5.19, if any, and any of their subcontractors, for damages caused by fire or other perils to the extent covered by property insurance obtained pursuant to this section or other property insurance applicable to the Work, except such rights as they have to proceeds of such

insurance held by Owner as fiduciary. The policies shall provide such waivers of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise. A waiver of subrogation shall be effective to a person or entity even though that person or entity would otherwise have a duty of indemnification, contractual or otherwise, did not pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly, and whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the property damaged.

## 2.08 CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS

Criminal Background Investigation: The shall conduct Contractor а criminal background investigation of all employees, subcontractors volunteers. and subconsultants performing any work who may reasonably be expected to have direct or incidental contact with SHA residents, SHA staff members, or vulnerable population. In addition. criminal background а investigation shall be performed for any person performing work under this Contract who needs special entry into SHA buildings, is given temporary use of an SHA buildingaccess card or who collects payments of any kind.

The criminal background investigation shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, a Washington State Patrol background report or if the employee, volunteer, subcontractor or subconsultant resides in a state other than Washington, the background report should be obtained from the state patrol office where the employee, subcontractor or subconsultant has resided for the last 3 years. In the event a background check provides evidence of a felony conviction within the past seven years, the results of that investigation shall be disclosed to the SHA Project Manager. If any person performing work under this Contract is charged with a felony, the Contractor agrees to remove that person from performing any further work on the project unless and until SHA agrees in writing to allow the person to continue.

## PART 3 - TIME AND SCHEDULE

## 3.01 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION

Contractor shall diligently plan, coordinate and prosecute the Work, with an adequate number of qualified personnel to achieve Substantial Completion within the Contract Time, and achieve Final Completion within 90 days thereafter, but for extenuating circumstances fully documented in a timely manner and confirmed by Owner.

#### 3.02 PROJECT SCHEDULE

A. Within ten Days of contract execution, and prior to the commencement of work, unless otherwise stipulated in the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor shall attend an initiated and facilitated Owner conference preconstruction with representatives of Owner, its Architect, and all other pertinent Sub-Contractors of the Contractor and other interested parties. The conference will serve to acquaint the participants with the general plan of the construction operation and all other requirements of the contract. Owner will provide the Contractor with the date, time, and place of the conference.

The aforementioned preconstruction conference is not intended to replace any additional preconstruction conferences deemed necessary by any and all Authorities Having Jurisdiction in conjunction with the Work.

B. Unless otherwise provided in Division 1, Contractor shall, within [10, unless otherwise indicated here\_\_\_] Days after issuance of the Notice to Proceed, submit a preliminary Progress Schedule. The Progress Schedule shall show the sequence in which Contractor proposes to perform the Work, and the dates on which Contractor plans to start and finish major portions of the Work. The schedule shall also indicate dates for shop drawings and other submittals, commissioning, confidence testing, dates for acquiring materials and equipment and any other items required by Owner.

- C. The Preliminary Progress Schedule shall be in the form of a critical path method analysis. The Preliminary Progress Schedule must show the major portions of the Work, indicating the start and finish dates, Substantial and Final completion dates and the proposed progression of the Work.
- D. Owner shall return comments on the preliminary Progress Schedule to Contractor within 14 Days of receipt. of Contractor's Review bv Owner schedule does not constitute an approval or acceptance of Contractor's construction means, methods, or sequencing, or its ability to complete the Work within the Contract Time. Failure by the Owner to indicate items on the schedule that do not conform to Contract requirements shall not alter or waive Contractor's obligation to comply with all Contract Requirements. Contractor shall revise and resubmit its schedule, as deemed necessary by Owner. Owner may withhold a portion of progress payments until a Progress Schedule has been submitted which meets the requirements of this section.

E. To its fullest extent, Contractor shall utilize and comply with the Progress Schedule. On a monthly basis, or as otherwise directed by Owner, Contractor shall, at its own expense, submit an updated Progress Schedule to Owner indicating actual progress. If, in the opinion of Owner, Contractor is not in conformance with the Progress Schedule for reasons other than Force Majeure as identified in section 3.05, the Contractor shall take such steps as are necessary to bring the actual completion dates of the Work into conformance with the Progress Schedule. This shall include, but not be limited to: increasing the number of shifts. overtime operations, and/or days of work. whether on or off the Site, and submitting for acceptance any supplementary schedule or schedules as the Owner deems necessary to demonstrate how completion dates of the Work will be brought into conformance with Progress the Schedule.

Failure of the Contractor to comply with the requirements under these provisions shall be grounds for a determination by the Owner that the Contractor is not prosecuting the Work with sufficient diligence to ensure completion within the time specified in the Contract. Upon making this determination, the Owner may pursue any right or remedies it has under the Contract or in law.

- F. Contractor shall promptly notify Owner in writing of any actual or anticipated event which is delaying or could delav of achievement any milestone or performance of any critical path activity of the Work. Contractor shall indicate the expected duration of the delay, the anticipated effect of the delay on the Progress Schedule, and the action to be taken to eliminate the delay. Provision of such notice does not relieve Contractor of its obligation to complete the Work within the Contract Time.
- G. FLOAT- Float in the project Schedule shall be defined as the period of time measured by the number of days each non-critical path activity may be delayed before it and its succeeding activities become part of the Critical Path. Unless indicated otherwise, float belongs to the Project and Contractor and Owner may both utilize float to offset delays to the Work.

#### 3.03 OWNER'S RIGHT TO SUSPEND THE WORK FOR CONVENIENCE

- A. Owner may, at its sole discretion, in writing, order Contractor to suspend all or any part of the Work for such period as Owner deems necessary.
- B. Upon receipt of a written Notice suspending the Work, Contractor shall immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of cost of performance directly attributable to such suspension. Within a period up to 90 Days after the notice is delivered to Contractor, or within any extension of that period to which the parties shall have agreed, Owner shall either:
  - 1. Authorize resumption of the Work; or
  - 2. Terminate the Work covered by the notice as provided in the termination provisions of part 9.
- C. If a Notice suspending the Work is cancelled or the period of the notice or any extension thereof expires, Contractor shall resume Work.
- D. Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time, or Contract Sum, or both, for increases in the time or cost of performance directly attributable to such suspension. Contractor shall keep all costs and records related to the construction suspension separately from normal project costs and shall comply with all requirements as more fully described and set forth in Part 7.

#### 3.04 OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK FOR CAUSE

A. If Contractor fails or refuses to perform its obligations in accordance with the Contract Documents, Owner may order Contractor, in writing, to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until satisfactory corrective action has been taken.

B. Contractor shall not be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time or Contract Sum for any increased cost or time of performance attributable to Contractor's failure or refusal to perform the Work or from any reasonable remedial action taken by Owner based upon such failure.

## 3.05 DELAY

- A. Any delay in or failure of performance by Owner or Contractor, other than the payment of money, shall not constitute a default hereunder if and to the extent the cause for such delay or failure of performance was unforeseeable and beyond the control of the party ("Force Majeure"). Acts of Force Majeure include, but are not limited to:
  - 1. Acts of God or the public enemy;
  - 2. Acts or omissions of any government or City entity;
  - 3. Fire or other casualty for which Contractor is not responsible;
  - 4. Quarantine or epidemic;
  - 5. Strike or defensive lockout;
  - 6. Unusually severe weather conditions which could not have been reasonably anticipated; and
  - 7. Unusual delay in receipt of supplies or products which were ordered and expedited and for which no substitute reasonably acceptable to Owner was available.
- B. Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time for changes in the time of performance directly attributable to an act of Force

Majeure, provided it makes a request for equitable adjustment according to section 7.03. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Sum resulting from an act of Force Majeure.

- C. Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Time, and may be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Sum, if the cost or time of Contractor's performance is changed due to the fault or negligence of Owner, provided the Contractor makes a request according to sections 7.02 and 7.03.
- D. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Time or in the Contract Sum for any delay or failure of performance to the extent such delay or failure was caused by Contractor or anyone for whose acts Contractor is responsible.
- E. To the extent any delay or failure of performance was concurrently caused by the Owner and Contractor, Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Time for that portion of the delay or failure of performance that was concurrently caused, provided Contractor makes a request for equitable adjustment according to section 7.03, but shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Sum.
- F. Contractor shall make all reasonable efforts to prevent and mitigate the effects of any delay, whether occasioned by an act of Force Majeure or otherwise.
- G. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Time if the act of Force Majeure did not impact progress of the Work on the Critical Path and prevent the Contractor from completing Contract Work within the Contract Time.

## 3.06 NOTICE TO OWNER OF LABOR DISPUTES

- A. If Contractor has knowledge that any actual or potential labor dispute is delaying or threatens to delay timely performance in accordance with the Contract Documents, Contractor shall immediately give written notice, including all relevant information, to Owner.
- B. Contractor agrees to insert a provision in its Subcontracts and to require insertion in all sub-subcontracts, that in the event timely performance of any such contract is delayed or threatened by delay by any actual or potential labor dispute, the Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor shall immediately notify the next higher tier Subcontractor or Contractor, as the case may be, of all relevant information concerning the dispute.

## 3.07 DAMAGES FOR FAILURE TO ACHIEVE TIMELY COMPLETION

- A. Liquidated Damages
  - Timely performance and completion of the Work is essential to Owner and time limits stated in the Contract are of the essence. Owner will incur serious and substantial damages if Substantial Completion and Final Completion of the Work does not occur within the Contract Time. However, it would be difficult if not impossible to determine the exact amount of such damages. Consequently, liquidated damages of \_\_\_\_\_ [\$150.00 per calendar day unless otherwise specified in the Supplemental Conditions1 will be

unless otherwise specified in the Supplemental Conditions] will be assessed.

2. The liquidated damage amounts set forth above will be assessed not as a penalty, but as damages for breach of this Contract. This amount is fixed and agreed upon by and between the Contractor and Owner because of the impracticability and extreme difficulty of fixing and ascertaining the actual damages the Owner would in such event sustain. This amount shall be construed as the actual amount of damages sustained by the Owner, and may be retained by the Owner and deducted from any payments to the Contractor.

- 3. Assessment of liquidated damages shall not release Contractor from any further obligations or liabilities pursuant to the Contract Documents.
- 4. If different completion dates are specified in the contract for separate parts, phases or stages of the work, the amount of liquidated damages shall be assessed only on those relevant parts or stages which are immediately delayed.
- B. Actual Damages

Actual damages will be assessed for failure to achieve Final Completion within the time provided. Actual damages will be calculated on the basis of direct architectural, administrative, and other related costs attributable to the Project from the date when Final Completion should have been achieved, based on the date Substantial Completion is actually achieved, to the date Final Completion is actually achieved. The amount of these costs may be retained by Owner and deducted from any payment due Contractor.

## PART 4 - SPECIFICATIONS, DRAWINGS, DETAILS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

## 4.01 DISCREPANCIES AND DUTY TO REVIEW CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

A. The intent of the Specifications, Drawings and Details is to describe and depict the complete Project to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, tools, transportation, permits, and supplies, and perform the Work required in accordance with the Drawings, Details, Specifications, and other provisions of the Contract Documents, unless otherwise noted.

- Contract B. The Documents are complementary. What is required or shown in one part of the Contract Documents shall be binding as if required and shown in all parts. Anything mentioned in the Specifications and not shown on the Drawings, or shown on the Drawings and not mentioned in the Specifications, shall be of like effect as if shown or mentioned in both. Anything shown in one section of the drawings and not shown in another section of the drawings of which implies the elements are to be coordinated, shall be as if shown in both sections. The organization of the specification into divisions, provisions and parts and the organization of the drawings shall not control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be performed by any trade.
- C. Contractor shall carefully study, compare and reconcile the Contract Documents with each other and shall confer and coordinate with each sub-contractor. If, during the performance of the Work, Contractor finds conflict. а error. inconsistency, or omission in the Contract Documents, it shall promptly, and before proceeding with the Work affected thereby, report such conflict. error. inconsistency, or omission to Owner in writing.
- D. Contractor shall do no Work without consulting applicable Drawings, Details, Specifications, or written modifications, or Shop Drawings where required, unless instructed to do so in writing by Owner. If Contractor performs any construction activity that it knows or should have known is in conflict with Drawings, Details, Specifications, or written modifications, or Shop Drawings or is based upon an, error,

inconsistency, or omission in Drawings, Details, Specifications, or written modifications, or Shop Drawings, Contractor shall be responsible for the cost of performance and, shall bear the cost for its correction.

- E. Contractor shall provide any work or materials the provision of which is clearly implied and is within the scope of the Contract Documents even if the Contract Documents do not mention them specifically.
- F. Questions regarding interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents shall be submitted to the Owner.

## 4.02 PROJECT RECORD

- A. Contractor shall legibly mark in ink on a separate set of the Drawings and Specifications all actual construction, including depths of foundations, horizontal and vertical locations of internal and underground utilities and appurtenances referenced to permanent visible and accessible surface improvements, locations of all ducting. HVAC. mechanical, electrical, and any systems not visible in walls, floors, and ceilings, field changes of dimensions and details, actual suppliers, manufacturers and trade names, models of installed equipment, and Change Order proposals. This Drawings of separate set and Specifications shall be known as the "Project Record."
- B. The Project Record shall be maintained on the project site throughout the construction and shall be clearly labeled "PROJECT RECORD". The Project Record shall be updated at least weekly noting all current changes and shall be available for review by Owner at all times. At the time of Substantial Completion, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner's A/E, three (3) draft copies of the project record for review and comment. The

Contractor shall make all noted corrections per the comments and resubmit to A/E for final review and acceptance. Review costs incurred for additional review cycles if required, shall be at the sole expense of the Contractor.

- C. The Contractor shall indicate on the Project Record any unforeseen items that may remain on site. Whether or not the unforeseen items can remain will be determined by the Owner.
- D. Contractor shall submit the completed and finalized conformed Project Record documents with all pages of the same size, with all pages marked "Project Record" along with three (3) copies of the same in digital format to Owner prior to Final Acceptance.

## 4.03 SHOP DRAWINGS

A. "Shop Drawings" means documents and other information required to be submitted to Owner by Contractor pursuant to the Contract Documents, showing in detail: the proposed fabrication and assembly of structural elements; and the installation (i.e. form, fit, and attachment details) of materials and equipment. Shop Drawings include, but are not limited to, drawings, erection drawings, diagrams, layouts, descriptive schematics, literature. illustrations, schedules, performance and test data, samples, and similar materials furnished by Contractor to explain in detail specific portions of the Work required by the Contract Documents. For materials and equipment to be incorporated into the Work, Contractor submittal shall include the name of the manufacturer, the model number, and other information concerning the performance, capacity, nature, and rating of the item. When directed, Contractor shall submit all samples at its own expense. Owner may duplicate, use, and disclose Shop Drawings provided in accordance with the Contract Documents.

- B. Contractor shall coordinate all Shop Drawings, and review them for accuracy, completeness, and compliance with the Contract Documents and shall indicate its approval thereon with a stamped date and authorized signature as evidence of such coordination and review prior to submitting them to the Owner for its review. Where required by law, Shop Drawings shall be stamped by an appropriate professional licensed by the State of Washington. Shop Drawings submitted to Owner without evidence of Contractor's approval shall be returned for resubmission. Additional review costs incurred by the Owner resulting from incomplete submissions of Shop Drawings will be at the sole expense of the Contractor. Contractor shall review, approve, and submit Shop Drawings with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of Owner or contractors. Contractor's separate submittal schedule allow shall а reasonable time for A/E review. Owner will review, approve, or take other appropriate action on the Shop Drawings. Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work requiring submittal and review of Shop Drawings until the respective full submittal has been reviewed and the Owner has accepted or taken other appropriate action. Owner shall respond to Shop Drawing submittals with reasonable promptness. Any Work by Contractor shall be in accordance with the final reviewed Shop Drawings. Submittals made by Contractor which are not required by the Contract Documents will be returned without action.
- C. Review and acceptance or other appropriate action with regard to Shop Drawings, by Owner or A/E shall not relieve Contractor of responsibility for any errors or omissions in such Shop Drawings, nor from responsibility for compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. Unless specified in the Contract Documents, review by Owner

or A/E shall not constitute an approval of the safety precautions employed by Contractor during construction, or constitute an approval of Contractor's means or methods of construction. If Contractor fails to obtain review and acceptance before installation and the item or work is subsequently rejected, Contractor shall be responsible for all costs for any and all corrections.

- D. If Shop Drawings show variations from the requirements of the Contract Documents, Contractor shall describe such variations in writing on a separate document from the Shop Drawings, at the time it submits the Shop Drawings containing such variations. If Owner reviews and accepts any such variation, an appropriate Change Order may be issued. If the variation is considered minor and does not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, a Change Order will not be issued; however, the modification shall be recorded by the Contractor on the Project Record.
- E. Unless otherwise provided in Division 1, Contractor shall submit to Owner for review 4 copies of all Shop Drawings. Unless otherwise indicated, 3 sets of all Shop Drawings shall be retained by Owner and 1 reviewed set shall be returned to Contractor.

## 4.04 ORGANIZATION OF SPECIFICATIONS

Specifications are prepared in sections which conform generally with trade practices. These sections are for Owner and Contractor convenience and shall not control Contractor in dividing the Work among the Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of the Work to be performed by any trade.

#### 4.05 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

- A. The Drawings, Specifications, and other prepared A/E documents by are instruments of A/E's service through which the Work to be executed by Contractor is described. Neither Contractor nor any Subcontractor shall own or claim a copyright to the Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by A/E, and A/E shall be deemed the author of them and will, along with any rights of Owner, retain all common law, statutory, and other reserved rights, in addition to the copyright. All copies of these documents, except Contractor's set, shall be returned or suitably accounted for to A/E, on request, upon completion of the Work.
- B. The Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by the A/E, and copies thereof furnished to Contractor, are for use solely with respect to Work of this Project. They are not to be used by Contractor or any Subcontractor on other projects or for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written consent of Owner and A/E. Contractor and Subcontractors are granted a limited license to use and applicable portions of the reproduce Specifications. Drawings, and other documents prepared by A/E appropriate to and for use in the execution of the Work.
- C. Contractor, and all Subcontractors of any tier, or material or equipment supplier of any tier, grant a non-exclusive license to Owner, without additional cost or royalty, to use for its own purposes (including reproduction) all Shop Drawings, together with the information and diagrams contained therein, prepared by them. In providing Shop Drawings, they warrant that they have authority to grant to Owner a license to use the Shop Drawings, and that such license is not in violation of any

copyright or other intellectual property right. Contractor agrees to defend and indemnify Owner pursuant to the indemnity provisions in section 5.03 from any violations of copyright or other intellectual property rights arising out of Owner's use of the Shop Drawings hereunder, or to secure for Owner, at Contractor's own cost, licenses in conformity with this section.

D. The Shop Drawings and other submittals prepared by Contractor, Subcontractors of any tier, or its or their equipment or material suppliers, and copies thereof furnished to Contractor, are for use solely with respect to this Project. They are not to be used by Contractor or any Subcontractor of any tier, or material or equipment supplier of any tier, on other projects or for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written consent of Owner. The Contractor, Subcontractors of any tier, and material or equipment suppliers of any tier are granted a limited license to use and reproduce applicable portions of the Shop Drawings and other submittals appropriate to and for use in the execution of their Work under the Contract Documents.

## PART 5 - PERFORMANCE

## 5.01 CONTRACTOR CONTROL AND SUPERVISION

A. Contractor shall at all times supervise and direct the Work, using its best skill and attention, and shall perform the Work in a skillful manner with adequate resources. Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have full control over, construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the Work, unless otherwise noted in the Contract Documents. Contractor shall disclose its means and methods of construction when requested by Owner.

- 1. Failure to notify the Owner of changes in the project team members and the teams staffing levels established at the start of the Project may entitle the Owner to a credit for excess General Conditions previously allocated at the start of the Project. The Owner reserves the right to withhold General Conditions for staff removed without written notice to the Owner.
- 2. The Contractor shall also provide sufficient staffing and supervision to review and process Requests for Information, Change Order Proposals, Change Order Requests, Change Orders, closeout documentation, and to perform all other requirements of the Contract and all Work.
- B. Performance of the Work shall be directly supervised by a competent superintendent who is satisfactory to Owner and has authority to act for Contractor. The superintendent shall be assigned only to this Project unless approved by Owner and shall not be changed without the prior written notice and consent of Owner.
- C. Contractor shall be responsible for acts and omissions of Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, Vendors and their employees and agents.
- D. Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among Contractor's employees and all other persons performing the Work. Contractor shall not permit employment of persons not skilled in tasks assigned to them. Contractor's employees shall at all times conduct business in a manner which assures fair, equal, and nondiscriminatory treatment of

all persons. Owner may, by written notice, request Contractor remove from the Work or Project site any employee Owner reasonably deems incompetent, careless, unsafe or otherwise objectionable.

- E. Contractor shall keep on the Project site a copy of the Drawings, Specifications, addenda, reviewed Shop Drawings, inspection reports, permits and permit drawings.
- F. The Contractor shall perform on the site, and with its own organization, work equivalent to at least (12 percent unless otherwise indicated here\_\_\_\_) of the total amount of work to be performed under the contract. This percentage may be reduced by a change order to this contract if, during performance of the work, the Contractor requests a reduction and the Owner determines that the reduction would be to the advantage of the Project and Owner.

## 5.02 PERMITS, FEES, AND NOTICES

- A. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall obtain and pay for all permits, licenses. and inspections necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work. Where Owner can arrange for the issuance of all or part of these permits, fees and licenses, without cost to the Contractor, the Contract Sum shall be reduced accordingly by Change Order. Prior to Final Acceptance, all approved, signed permits and all Certificates of Occupancy shall be delivered to Owner.
- B. If allowances for permits or utility fees are called for in the Contract Documents and set forth in Contractor's bid or proposal, and the actual costs of those permits or fees differ from the allowances in the Contract Documents, the difference either increase or decrease shall be adjusted by Change Order.

C. Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.

## 5.03 PATENTS AND ROYALTIES

Contractor is responsible for, and shall pay, all royalties and license fees. Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold Owner harmless from any costs, expenses, and liabilities arising out of the infringement by Contractor of any patent, copyright, or other intellectual property right used in the Work; however, provided that Contractor gives prompt notice, Contractor shall not be responsible for such defense or indemnity when a particular design, process, or product of a particular manufacturer or manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents. If Contractor has reason to believe that use of the required design, process, or product constitutes an infringement of a patent or copyright, it shall promptly notify Owner of such potential infringement. Failure to give such notice shall make the Contractor responsible for resultant loss.

#### 5.04 PREVAILING WAGES. [ONLY APPLICABLE TO STATE- OR CITY-FUNDED PROJECTS. SEE SECTION 11.12 FOR FEDERALLY-FUNDED PROJECTS].

A. Contractor shall pay the prevailing rate of wages to all workers, laborers, or mechanics employed in the performance of any part of the Work in accordance with RCW 39.12 and the rules and regulations of the Department of Labor and Industries. The schedule of prevailing wage rates for the locality or localities of the Work is determined by the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries. It is the Contractor's responsibility to verify the applicable prevailing wage rate.

- B. Before commencing the Work, Contractor shall file a statement under oath with Owner and with the Director of Labor and Industries certifying the rate of hourly wage paid and to be paid each classification of laborers, workers, or mechanics employed upon the Work by Contractor and Subcontractors. Such rates of hourly wage shall not be less than the prevailing wage rate.
- C. Disputes regarding prevailing wage rates shall be referred for arbitration to the Director of the Department of Labor and Industries. The arbitration decision shall be final and conclusive and binding on all parties involved in the dispute as provided for by RCW 39.12.060. See Section 8.
- D. Each Application for Payment submitted by Contractor shall state that prevailing wages have been paid in accordance with the prefiled statement(s) of intent, as approved. Copies of the approved intent statement(s) shall be posted on the job site with the address and telephone number of the Industrial Statistician of the Department of Labor and Industries where a complaint or inquiry concerning prevailing wages may be made.
- E. In compliance with chapter 296-127 WAC, Contractor shall pay to the Department of Labor and Industries the currently established fee for each statement of intent and/or affidavit of wages paid submitted to the Department of Labor and Industries for certification.

#### 5.05 HOURS OF LABOR. [ONLY APPLICABLE TO STATE- OR CITY-FUNDED PROJECTS. SEE SECTION 11.12 FOR FEDERALLY-FUNDED PROJECTS].

A. Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of RCW 49.28 and they are incorporated herein by reference. Pursuant to that statute, no laborer, worker, or mechanic employed by Contractor, any Subcontractor, or any other person performing or contracting to do the whole or any part of the Work, shall be permitted or required to work more than eight hours in any one Day, provided, that in cases of extraordinary emergency, such as danger to life or property, the hours of work may be extended, but in such cases the rate of pay for time employed in excess of eight hours of each Day shall be not less than one and onehalf times the rate allowed for this same amount of time during eight hours' service.

B. Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, RCW 49.28 permits a contractor or subcontractor in any public works contract subject to those provisions, to enter into an agreement with its employees in which the employees work up to ten hours in a Day. No such agreement may provide that the employees work ten-hour days for more than four Days a week. Any such agreement is subject to approval by the employees. The overtime provisions of RCW 49.28 shall not apply to the hours, up to forty hours per week, worked pursuant to any such agreement.

## 5.06 NONDISCRIMINATION

A. Discrimination in all phases of employment is prohibited by, among other laws and regulations, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Act of 1974, sections 503 and 504 of the Vocational Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Equal Employment Act of 1972, the Age Discrimination Act of 1967, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, Presidential Executive Order 11246, Executive Order 11375, the Washington State Law Against Discrimination, RCW 49.60, and the Employment Seattle Fair Practices Ordinance. These laws and regulations establish minimum requirements for affirmative action and fair employment practices which Contractor must meet.

- B. During performance of the Work:
  - 1. Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, marital status, the presence of any physical, sensory, or mental disability, sexual orientation, Vietnam-era veteran status, disabled veteran status or political affiliation, nor commit any unfair practices as defined in RCW 49.60.
  - 2. The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, of any physical, sensory, or mental disability, sexual orientation. Vietnam-era veteran status, disabled veteran status, or political affiliation. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, (1) employment, (2) upgrading, (3)demotion, (4) transfer, (5) recruitment or recruitment advertising, (6) layoff or termination, (7) rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and (8) selection for training, including apprenticeship.
  - 3. The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment the notices to be provided by the Owner that explain this clause.
  - 4. Contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or for it, state that all qualified applicants will be considered for employment, without regard to race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, marital status, the presence of any physical, sensory, or mental disability, sexual orientation, Vietnam-era veteran status, disabled veteran status or political affiliation.

- 5. Contractor shall send to each labor union. employment agency, or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice advising the labor union, employment agency, or workers' representative of Contractor's obligations according to the Contract Documents and RCW 49.60.
- Contractor shall permit access to its books, records, and accounts, and to its premises by Owner, the Washington State Human Rights Commission, and the Seattle Office of Civil Rights, for the purpose of investigation to ascertain compliance with this section of the Contract Documents.
- 7. Contractor shall include the provisions of this section in every Subcontract.

## 5.07 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS

- A. Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the performance of the Work.
- B. In carrying out its responsibilities according to the Contract Documents, Contractor shall protect the lives and health of employees performing the Work and other persons who may be affected by the Work; prevent damage to materials, supplies, and equipment whether on site or stored off-site; and prevent damage to other property at the site or adjacent thereto. Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances. rules. regulations, and orders of any public body having jurisdiction for the safety of persons or property, or to protect them from damage, injury, or loss; shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection; and shall

notify owners of adjacent property and utilities when prosecution of the Work may affect them.

- C. Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of exposure data on all incidents relating to the Work resulting in death, traumatic injury, occupational disease including all medical treatments or damage to property, materials, supplies, or equipment. Contractor shall <u>immediately</u> report any such incident to Owner. Owner shall, at all times, have a right of access to all records of exposure.
- D. Contractor shall provide all persons working on the Project site with information and training on hazardous materials of the Work at the time of their initial assignment, and whenever a new hazard is introduced into their work area.
  - 1. Information. At a minimum, Contractor shall inform persons working on the Project site of:
    - a. The requirements of chapter 296-62 WAC, General Occupational Health Standards;
    - Any operations in their work area where hazardous materials are present; and
    - c. The location and availability of written hazard communication programs, including the required list(s) of hazardous chemicals and material safety data sheets required by chapter 296-62 WAC.
  - 2. Training. At a minimum, Contractor shall provide training for persons working on the Project site which includes:
    - a. Methods and observations that may be used to detect the presence or release of a hazardous materials in the work area (such as

monitoring conducted by the employer, continuous monitoring devices, visual appearance or odor of hazardous chemicals when being released, etc.);

- b. The physical and health hazards of the materials in the work area;
- c. The measures such persons can take to protect themselves from these hazards, including specific procedures Contractor, or its Subcontractors, or others have implemented to protect those on the Project site from exposure to hazardous materials, such as appropriate practices, work emergency procedures, and personal protective equipment to be used; and
- d. The details of the hazard communication program developed by Contractor, or its Subcontractors, including an explanation of the labeling system and the material safety data sheet, and how employees can obtain and appropriate use the hazard information.
- E. Contractor's responsibility for hazardous, toxic, or harmful substances shall include the following duties:
  - 1. Contractor shall not keep, use, dispose, transport, generate, or sell on or about the Project site, any materials now or hereafter designated as, or which are subject to regulation as, toxic. dangerous, hazardous. or harmful by any federal, state or local law, regulation, statute or ordinance (hereinafter collectively referred to as "hazardous materials"), in violation of any such law, regulation, statute, or ordinance, but in no case shall any such hazardous material be stored more than 90 Days on the Project site.

- 2. Contractor shall promptly notify Owner of all spills or releases of any hazardous substances which are otherwise required to be reported to any regulatory agency and shall pay the full cost of cleanup. Contractor shall promptly notify Owner of all failures to comply with any federal, state, or local law, regulation, or ordinance; all inspections of the Project site by any regulatory entity concerning the same; all regulatory orders or fines; and all responses or interim cleanup actions taken by or proposed to be taken by any government entity or private party on the Project site.
- F. All Work shall be performed with due regard for the safety of the public. Contractor shall perform the Work so as to cause a minimum of interruption of vehicular traffic or inconvenience to pedestrians. All arrangements to care for such traffic shall be Contractor's responsibilities. All expenses involved in the maintenance of traffic by way of detours shall be borne by Contractor.
- G. In an emergency affecting the safety of life or the Work or of adjoining property, Contractor is permitted to act, at its discretion, to prevent such threatened loss or injury, and Contractor shall so act if so authorized or instructed.
- H. Nothing provided in this section shall be construed as imposing any duty upon Owner or A/E with regard to, or as constituting any express or implied assumption of control or responsibility over, Project site safety, or over any other safety conditions relating to employees or agents of Contractor or any of its Subcontractors, or the public.
- I. The Contractor shall be responsible for its subcontractors' compliance with the provisions of this clause. The Contractor

shall take such action with respect to any subcontract as Owner, Labor & Industries, the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

#### 5.08 OPERATIONS, MATERIAL HANDLING, AND STORAGE AREAS

- A. Contractor shall confine all operations, including storage of materials, to Owner-approved areas.
- B. Temporary buildings (e.g., storage sheds, shops, offices) and utilities may be provided by Contractor only with the consent of Owner and without expense to Owner. The temporary buildings and utilities shall remain the property of Contractor and shall be removed, and the site restored to the Owner's satisfaction, by Contractor at its expense upon completion of the Work.
- C. Contractor shall use only established roadways or temporary roadways authorized by Owner. When materials are transported in prosecuting the Work, vehicles shall not be loaded beyond the loading capacity recommended by the manufacturer of the vehicle or prescribed by federal, state, or local law or regulation.
- D. Ownership and control of all materials or facility components to be demolished or removed from the Project site bv Contractor shall immediately vest in Contractor upon severance of the component from the facility or severance of the material from the Project site. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with all laws governing the storage and ultimate proper/legal disposal off site. Contractor shall provide Owner with a copy of all manifests and receipts evidencing proper disposal when required by Owner or applicable law.
- E. Contractor shall be responsible for the proper care and protection of its materials and equipment delivered to the Project site. Materials and equipment may be stored on the premises subject to approval

of Owner. When Contractor uses any portion of the Project site as a shop, Contractor shall be responsible for dust control, any repairs, patching, or cleaning arising from such use.

F. Contractor shall protect and be responsible for any damage or loss to the Work, or to the materials or equipment until the date of Substantial Completion, and shall repair or replace without cost to Owner any damage or loss that may occur, except damages or loss caused by acts or omissions of Owner. the Contractor shall also protect and be responsible for any damage or loss to the Work, or to the materials or equipment, after the date of Substantial Completion, and shall repair or replace without cost to Owner any such damage or loss that might occur, to the extent such damages or loss are caused by the acts or omissions of Contractor, or any Subcontractor.

# 5.09 PRIOR NOTICE OF EXCAVATION

"Excavation" means an operation in which earth, rock, or other material on or below the existing grade is moved or otherwise displaced by any means, except the tilling of soil less than 12 inches in depth for agricultural purposes, or road ditch maintenance that does not change the original road grade or ditch flow line. Before commencing any excavation, Contractor shall provide proper notice of scheduled commencement the of excavation to all owners of underground facilities or utilities, through locator services. Contractor shall provide adequate, ongoing locator services as required to accommodate the Work, during the course of the Work and pay all fees for locator services. Any utilities affected from Contractor activities or damaged due to the Contractors failure to adequately protect or locate utilities per Contract Documents the per the requirements set forth by the Authorities

Having Jurisdiction shall be corrected and paid for by the Contractor. No additional days will be added to Contract Time due to these impacts.

#### 5.10 UNFORESEEN PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

- A. If Contractor encounters conditions at the site which are subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions which differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents. or unknown physical conditions that differ materially from those ordinarily found and generally recognized in construction activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents, then Contractor shall give Notice to Owner promptly and in no event later than one-work day after the first observance of the conditions. Continued disturbance of areas encountered by the Contractor before adequate Notice is provided to the Owner, or prior to allowing the Owner ample time to observe the conditions, will constitute waiver of the Contractor's right to an equitable adjustment.
- B. If such conditions differ materially and cause a change in Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, the Contractor may be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time or Contract Sum, or both, provided it makes a request therefor as provided in part 7.

#### 5.11 PROTECTION OF EXISTING STRUCTURES, EQUIPMENT, VEGETATION, UTILITIES, AND IMPROVEMENTS

A. Contractor shall protect from damage all existing conditions, including soils, structures, equipment, improvements, utilities, and vegetation at or adjacent the Project site. Damages on adjacent property of a third party, the locations of which are made known to or should be known by Contractor shall be promptly reported by either the Owner or Contractor to the other party. Contractor shall repair any damage, including that to the property of a third party, resulting from failure to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, any defects of equipment, material, workmanship or design furnished by the Contractor, or failure by Contractor or subcontractor at any tier to exercise reasonable care in performing the Work. If Contractor fails or refuses to repair the damage within 7 days, Owner may have the necessary work performed and charge the cost to Contractor.

- B. Contractor shall only remove trees when specifically authorized to do so by Contract Documents and verified by owner. Contractor shall protect all vegetation that will remain in place.
- C. The Contractor shall shore up, brace, underpin, secure, and protect as necessary all foundations and other parts of existing structures adjacent to, adjoining, and in the vicinity of the site, which may be affected by the excavations or other operations connected with the construction of the project.
- D. Any equipment temporarily removed as a result of work under this contract shall be protected, cleaned, and replaced in the original condition.
- E. New work which connects to existing work shall correspond in all respects with that to which it connects and/or be similar to existing work unless otherwise required by the Contract.
- F. No structural members shall be altered or in any way weakened without the written authorization of the Owner, unless such work is clearly specified in the Contract.
- G. If the removal of the existing work exposes discolored or unfinished surfaces, or work out of alignment, such surfaces shall be refinished, or the material replaced as

necessary to make the continuous work uniform and harmonious. This, however, shall not be construed to require the refinishing or reconstruction of dissimilar finishes previously exposed, or finished surfaces in good condition, but in different planes or on different levels when brought together by the removal of intervening work, unless such refinishing or reconstruction is specified in the Contract.

H. Contractor shall conform to requirements in Part 7 in the event conditions noted in G above generate additional costs.

# 5.12 LAYOUT OF WORK

- A. Contractor shall plan and lay out the Work in advance of operations so as to coordinate all work without delay or revision.
- B. Contractor shall lay out the Work from baselines and bench marks indicated on the Drawings, and shall be responsible for all field measurements in connection with the layout. Contractor shall furnish, at its own expense, all stakes, templates, platforms, equipment, tools, materials, and labor required to lay out any part of the Work. Contractor shall be responsible for executing the Work to the lines and that may be established. arades Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining or restoring all stakes and other established marks.

1. Contractor shall limit tolerances of layout to an absolute minimum. Standard industry building tolerances shall govern.

# 5.13 MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT

A. All equipment, material, and articles incorporated into the Work shall be new and of the most suitable grade for the purpose intended, unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents. References in the Specifications to equipment, material, articles, or patented processes by trade name, make, or catalog number, shall be regarded as establishing a standard quality and shall not be construed as limiting competition. Contractor may, at its option, use any equipment, material, article, or process that, in the judgment of Owner, is equal to that named in the Specifications, unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents.

- B. Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, or patching that may be required to make its parts fit together properly, or receive or be received by work of others set forth in, or reasonably implied by, the Contract Documents. Contractor shall not endanger or compromise any work by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering the Work and shall not cut or alter the work of any other contractor unless approved in advance by Owner.
- C. Should any of the Work be found defective, or in any way not in accordance with the Contract Documents, this work, in whatever stage of completion, may be rejected by Owner.

#### 5.14 AVAILABILITY AND USE OF UTILITY SERVICES

- A. Owner shall make all reasonable utilities available to Contractor from existing outlets and supplies, or as specified in the Contract Documents. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the utility service consumed shall be charged to or paid for by Contractor at current rates charged to Owner or, where the utility is produced by Owner, at reasonable rates determined by Owner. Contractor will carefully conserve any utilities.
- B. Contractor shall, at its expense and in a skillful manner satisfactory to Owner, coordinate use with the Authority, install and maintain all necessary temporary connections and distribution lines, together with appropriate protective

devices, and all meters required to measure the amount of each utility used for the purpose of determining charges. Prior to the date of Final Acceptance, Contractor shall remove all temporary connections, distribution lines, meters, and associated equipment and materials.

- C. The Contractor shall provide and pay for including but not limited to all temporary heating, electricity, water, gas, covering, and enclosures and generated power necessary to properly protect all work and materials against damage by moisture and temperature to dry out the work, and to facilitate the completion of the work. No permanent heating or cooling equipment installed during the course of the Work shall be used to facilitate the Contractors work. Contractor shall turn over to Owner all major systems. in new condition and at the time required by the Contract Documents.
- D. Commissioning of heating and cooling equipment installed during the course of the Work shall be considered "testing" of such equipment and all utilities consumed for this purpose shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to pay for. System testing activities occurring beyond Substantial Completion are subject to utility use fees and will be pro-rated by the Owner and will be the responsibility of the Contractor to pay for.

# 5.15 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

A. Contractor shall document and maintain an adequate testing and inspection program and perform such tests and inspections as are necessary or required to ensure that the Work conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents. Contractor shall be responsible for inspection and quality surveillance of all its Work and all Work performed by any Subcontractor or other service related entity. Unless otherwise provided, Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections, and approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to Owner, or with the appropriate public Authorities Having Jurisdiction, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections, and approvals. Contractor shall provide Owner timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made. Contractor shall maintain complete inspection records and make them available to Owner.

- **B. OWNER** INITIATED TESTS OR **INSPECTIONS** Contractor shall participate, and cooperate fully with any field tests that may have performed by consultants or testing agencies on behalf of the Owner, and shall make accommodations for that testing. sampling, etc. as required by Owner.
- C. Owner may, at any time, conduct such inspections and tests as it deems necessary to ensure that the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. Owner shall notify Contractor when an inspection is scheduled and if an inspection or test reveals that the Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents. Unless the subject items are expressly accepted by Owner, such Owner inspection and tests are for the sole benefit of Owner and do not:
  - 1. Constitute or imply acceptance;
  - Relieve Contractor of responsibility for providing adequate quality control measures;
  - 3. Relieve Contractor of responsibility for risk of loss or damage to the Work, materials, or equipment;
  - 4. Relieve Contractor of its responsibility to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; or

- 5. Impair Owner's right to reject defective or nonconforming items, or to avail itself of any other remedy to which it may be entitled.
- C. Neither observations by an inspector retained by Owner, the presence or absence of such inspector on the site, nor inspections, tests, or approvals by others, shall relieve Contractor from any requirement of the Contract Documents, nor is any such inspector authorized to change any term or condition of the Contract Documents.
- D. Contractor shall promptly furnish, without additional charge to Owner, all facilities, labor, material and equipment reasonably needed for performing such safe and convenient inspections and tests as may be required by Owner. Owner may charge Contractor any additional cost of inspection or testing when Work is not ready at the time agreed to by Contractor and Owner for inspection or testing, or when prior rejection makes reinspection or retest necessary. Owner shall attempt to schedule inspections and tests in a manner that will cause no delay in the Work.

#### 5.16 CORRECTION OF NONCONFORMING WORK

- A. If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the requirements of the Contract Documents, it must, if required in writing by Owner, be uncovered for Owner's observation and if found to be nonconforming, it shall be replaced at the Contractor's expense and without change in the Contract Time.
- B. If at any time prior to Final Completion Owner desires to examine the Work, or any portion of it, which has been covered, Owner may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by Contractor. If such Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall

be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Sum for the actual costs of uncovering and replacement, and, if completion of the Work is thereby delayed, an adjustment in the Contract Time, provided it makes a request as provided in part 7. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay the full costs of uncovering and reconstruction in accordance with the Contract Documents.

- C. Contractor shall promptly correct Work found by Owner not to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, whether observed before or after Substantial Completion. Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting such nonconforming Work, including additional testing and inspections as required.
- D. If, within one year after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof, or within one year after the date for commencement of any system warranties established under section 6.08, or within the terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the Work that is found to be not in accordance with requirements the of the Contract Documents, Contractor shall correct the Work promptly after receipt of Notice from Owner to do so. Owner shall give such notice within 7 work days after discovery of the condition. This period of one year shall be extended, with respect to portions of Work first performed after Substantial Completion, by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual performance of the Work. Contractor's duty to correct with respect to Work repaired or replaced shall run for one year from the date of repair or replacement. Obligations under this paragraph shall survive Final Acceptance.
- E. Contractor shall remove from the Project site portions of the Work which were found not in accordance with the requirements of

the Contract Documents and are neither corrected by Contractor nor accepted by Owner.

- F. If Contractor fails to begin correction of nonconforming Work within 15 days after Notice to do so, Owner may replace, correct, or remove the nonconforming Work and charge the full cost thereof to the Contractor.
- G. Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged Work, whether completed or partially completed, caused by Contractor's correction or removal of Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- H. Nothing contained in this section shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to other obligations which Contractor might have according to the Contract Documents. Establishment of the time period of one year as described in paragraph 5.16D relates only to the specific obligation of Contractor to correct the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the Contractor's obligation to comply with the Contract Documents may be sought to be enforced, including the time within which such proceedings may be commenced.
- I. If Owner prefers to accept Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum shall be reduced as appropriate and equitable.
- J. This warranty shall not limit the Owner's rights under paragraph 6.09B with respect to latent defects, gross mistakes or fraud.

# 5.17 SITE ORGANIZATION AND CLEAN UP

Contractor shall at all times keep all Construction areas and Project site areas organized and orderly, including but not limited to hauling routes, infrastructures, utilities, and storage areas free from accumulations of waste materials. Contractor shall remove from the premises during the course of the Work as appropriate and upon completion of the Work, its rubbish, tools, scaffolding, equipment, and unused materials.. Upon completing the Work, Contractor shall leave the Project site in a clean, neat, and orderly condition satisfactory to Owner. If Contractor fails to clean up as provided herein, and after reasonable notice from Owner to do so, Owner may do so and the cost thereof shall be charged to Contractor.

# 5.18 ACCESS TO WORK AND OCCUPIED RESIDENTIAL UNITS.

- A Contractor shall provide Owner and A/E access to the Work in progress wherever located.
- B. Contractor shall conform to RCW Landlord Tenant Laws relating to accessing occupied residential units. The Owner and resident shall be notified according to RCW 59.18.070; (1) Not more than twenty-four hours, where the defective condition deprives the tenant of hot or cold water, heat, or electricity, or is imminently hazardous to life;

# **5.19 OTHER CONTRACTS**

Owner may undertake or award other contracts for additional work at or near the Project site. Contractor shall cooperate with any other contractors and with Owner's employees and shall carefully adapt scheduling and performance of the Work in accordance with these Contract Documents to reasonably accommodate the other work. Contractor shall promptly notify Owner of unexpected conditions or circumstances that may hamper Contractor's ability to perform the Work.

#### 5.20 SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

- A. At the time of each subcontract award. Contractor shall furnish in writing to Owner the names. addresses, telephone numbers, Tax Identification Numbers (TIN) and Unified Business Identifier Numbers (UBI) of all Subcontractors, as well as suppliers providing materials in excess of \$2,500. Contractor shall utilize Subcontractors and suppliers which are experienced and qualified, and meet the requirements of the Contract Documents. Contractor shall not utilize anv Subcontractor or supplier to whom the Owner has a reasonable objection, and shall obtain Owner's written consent before making any substitutions or additions.
- B. All Subcontracts must be in writing. By appropriate written agreement, Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, so far as applicable to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to Contractor by terms of those Contract Documents, and to assume toward Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities which Contractor assumes toward Owner in accordance with the Contract Documents. Each Subcontract shall preserve and protect the rights of Owner in accordance with the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will not prejudice appropriate, such rights. Where Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. However, nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to alter the contractual relations between Contractor and its Subcontractors with respect to insurance or bonds.

- C. Contractor shall schedule, supervise, and coordinate the operations of all Subcontractors. No Subcontracting of any of the Work shall relieve Contractor from its responsibility for the performance of the Work or any other obligations in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- D. Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is hereby assigned by Contractor to Owner provided that:
  - 1. The assignment is effective only after termination by Owner for cause pursuant to section 9.01 and only for those Subcontracts which Owner accepts by notifying the Subcontractor in writing; and
  - 2. After the assignment is effective, Owner will assume all future duties and obligations toward the Subcontractor which Contractor assumed in the Subcontract.
  - 3. The assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under any bond provided in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- E. The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any subcontractor whose firm or any of its principals have been suspended, debarred, declared ineligible or otherwise excluded from participation in this transaction by any agency of the United States Government or by any state, territory, or municipality. The Contractor will submit signed а certification of compliance with this section for itself and for any of its subcontractors as subcontract agreements are issued and will submit an annual certification of compliance for Contracts extending beyond one year in The Owner will provide the duration. certification form to the Contractor.

# 5.21 WARRANTY OF CONSTRUCTION

- A. Contractor warrants that all Work conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents and is free of any defect in equipment, material, or design furnished, or workmanship performed by Contractor or Sub Contractors.
- B. With respect to all warranties, express or implied, for Work performed or materials furnished according to the Contract Documents, Contractor shall:
  - 1. Obtain all warranties that would be given in normal residential or commercial practice;
  - 2. Require all warranties to be executed, in writing, for the benefit of Owner;
  - 3. Enforce all warranties for the benefit of Owner ; and
  - 4. Be responsible to enforce any subcontractor's, manufacturer's, or supplier's warranty should they extend beyond the period specified in the Contract Documents.
- C. Contractor to perform warranty repairs pursuant to RCW 59.18.070: (1) Not more than twenty-four hours, where the defective condition deprives the tenant of hot or cold water, heat, or electricity, or is imminently hazardous to life.

Contractor shall notice the Owner so that proper entry authorization may be arranged by Owner.

D. The obligations under this section may survive Final Acceptance.

# 5.22 INDEMNIFICATION

A. Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold Owner and its officers, agents, and

employees harmless from and against all claims, demands, suits, judgments, losses, damages, costs and any other kinds of expense:

> Arising out of or in any manner connected with the Work performed or to be performed under this Contract; or

2. Caused or occasioned by the use of any design, process, or equipment which constitutes an infringement of any United States patent presently issued or which violates any other proprietary interest, including copyright, trademark, and trade secret.

This section shall not apply to any claims, demands, suits, judgments, losses, damages, costs or any other kinds of expense that are caused by or result from the sole negligence of the Owner. This section shall apply to all claims, demands, suits, judgments, losses, damages, costs and any other kinds of expense that are caused by or result from the concurrent negligence of the Contractor or its officers, agents, or employees and the Owner or its officers, agents, or employees, but only to the extent of the negligence of the Contractor or its officers, agents, and employees.

B. In any action against Owner or its officers, agents, and employees by any employee of Contractor or any of its subcontractors, the indemnification obligations of Contractor under this section shall not be limited by any limit on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable under RCW Title 51 or under any other employee benefit acts. In any such action, Contractor waives any immunity under RCW Title 51 as to Owner and its officers, agents, and employees.

#### 5.23 PROHIBITION AGAINST LIENS

The Contractor is prohibited from placing a lien on the Owner's property. This prohibition shall apply to all subcontractors of any tier and all materials suppliers.

#### 5.24 OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE

- A. Owner's Representatives. The Owner's Project Coordinator is authorized to act on behalf of the Owner in all matters pertaining to the Work and the Contract Documents. The Owner's Project Coordinator may delegate all or part of authority to others and will this communicate this authorization in writing. No representative or employee of the Owner, other than the Owner's Project Coordinator, shall have authority to obligate the Owner for any purpose unless authorized in writing to do so by the Owner's Project Coordinator. The Owner's Project Coordinator shall have the authority to reject defective material and suspend work that is not consistent with the Contract Documents.
- B. Owner's decisions, as delegated to the Owner's Representatives, will be final on all questions including, but not limited to, the following:
  - 1. Quality and acceptability of materials and Work, as specified by the Contract Documents;
  - 2. Measurement of unit price work;
  - 3. Acceptability of rates of progress on the Work; and
  - 4. Interpretation of Drawings and Specifications.
- C. The following decisions are the exclusive province of the Owner's Project Coordinator, the Executive Director of Owner, and the Deputy Executive Director of Owner:
  - Determination as to the existence of Material Differing Site Conditions;
  - 2. Fulfillment of the Contract by Contractor;
  - 3. Payments under the Contract;

- 4. Issuance of a Field Authorization or Change Order; and
- 5. Adjustment of Critical Milestone Dates
- 6. Achieving Critical Milestones, Substantial Completion and Final Completion.

#### 5.25 CONFLICTS

In the event of any conflict between the Owner's Project Coordinator and any other Owner's Representative regarding any decision or directive, the Owner's Project Coordinator's decision or directive shall control.

# 5.26 APPROVAL OF OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVES

Nothing in the Contract requires the Owner's Representatives provide to Contractor with direction or advice on how to do the Work. Although an Owner's Representative may advise Contractor of any faulty work or materials. or infringements of the terms of the Contract Documents, failure of any Owner's Representative to do so shall not constitute acceptance or approval. If an Owner's Representative approves or recommends any method or manner for doing the Work or producing materials, the approval or recommendation shall not:

- A. Constitute a representation that following the method or manner employed by Contractor will result in compliance with the Contract,
- Relieve Contractor or its Surety of any risks or obligations under the Contract, or
- C. Create any liability for Owner.

#### 5.27 ORAL AGREEMENTS

No oral agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or employee of Owner, either before or after execution of the Contract, shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations contained in any of the documents comprising the Contract. Such oral agreement or conversation shall be considered as unofficial information and in no way binding upon Owner or Contractor unless subsequently put in writing.

# PART 6 - PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

#### 6.01 CONTRACT SUM

Owner shall pay Contractor the Contract Sum for performance of the Work, in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Contract Sum shall include all taxes imposed by law and properly chargeable to the Project, including sales tax.

#### 6.02 SCHEDULE OF VALUES

Within 7 days of Notice of Award the Contractor shall submit to Owner for approval a detailed breakdown allocating the total Contract Sum to each principle category of work, in such detail as requested by Owner ("Schedule of Values"). The approved Schedule of Values shall include appropriate amounts demobilization, for punchlists, record drawings, Operating & Maintenance manuals, warranties, as-built drawings and any other requirements for Project closeout in the Contract Documents. This shall be used by Owner as the sole basis for progress payments. The Contractor shall prorate its overhead and profit over the construction period of the contract. Payment for Work shall be made only for and in accordance with those items included in the approved Schedule of Values.

# 6.03 APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

A. At monthly intervals, unless determined otherwise by Owner, Contractor shall submit to Owner an itemized Application for Payment for Work completed in accordance with the Contract Documents and the approved Schedule of Values. Each application shall be supported by such substantiating data as Owner may require.

- B. By submitting an Application for Payment, Contractor is certifying that all Subcontractors have been paid, less earned retainage in accordance with RCW 60.28.011, as their interests appeared in the last preceding certificate of payment. By submitting an Application for Payment, is recertifying Contractor that the representations set forth in section 1.03 are true and correct, to the best of Contractor's knowledge, as of the date of the Application for Payment.
- C. At the time Contractor submits an Application for Payment, Contractor shall analyze and reconcile, to the satisfaction of Owner, the actual progress of the Work on the Progress Schedule.
- D. If authorized by Owner, the Application for Payment may include a request for payment for material delivered to the Project site and suitably stored. Contractor is at all times fully responsible for any materials stored on site and not yet installed. Payment may similarly be requested for material stored off the Project site, provided Contractor complies with or furnishes satisfactory evidence of the following:
  - The material will be placed in a warehouse that is structurally sound, dry, lighted and suitable for the materials to be stored;
  - 2. The warehouse is located within a 10mile radius of the Project. Other locations may be utilized, if approved in writing, by Owner;
  - 3. Only materials for the Project are stored within the warehouse (or a secure portion of a warehouse set aside for the Project);
  - 4. Contractor furnishes Owner a certificate of insurance extending Contractor's insurance coverage for

damage, fire, and theft to cover the full value of all materials stored, or in transit;

- 5. The warehouse (or secure portion thereof) is continuously under lock and key, and only Contractor's authorized personnel shall have access;
- 6. Owner shall at all times have the right of access in company of Contractor;
- Contractor and its surety assume total responsibility for the stored materials; and
- 8. Contractor furnishes to Owner certified lists of materials stored, bills of lading, invoices, and other information as may be required, and shall also furnish notice to Owner when materials are moved from storage to the Project site.

# 6.04 PROGRESS PAYMENTS

- A. Owner shall make progress payments, in such amounts as Owner and any funding/lending agents determine are properly due, within 30 Days from date of Owner approval of a properly executed Application for Payment. Owner shall notify Contractor in accordance with RCW 39.76 if the Application for Payment does not comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- B. Owner shall retain 5% of the amount of each progress payment until no less than 45 days after Final Acceptance and receipt of all documents required by law or the Contract Documents including, at Owner's request, consent of surety to release the retainage. In accordance with RCW 60.28, Contractor may request that monies reserved be retained in a fund by Owner, deposited by Owner in a bank or savings and loan, or placed in escrow with a bank or trust company to be converted into bonds and securities to be held in

escrow with interest to be paid to Contractor. Owner may permit Contractor to provide an appropriate bond in lieu of the retained funds.

- C. Title to all Work and materials covered by a progress payment shall pass to Owner at the time of such payment free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests, and encumbrances. Passage of title shall not, however, relieve Contractor from any of its duties and responsibilities for the Work or materials, or waive any rights of Owner to insist on full compliance by Contractor with the Contract Documents.
- D. Payments due and unpaid in accordance with the Contract Documents shall bear interest as specified in RCW 39.76 to the same extent as if the Work was a "public work" as defined in that statute.
- E. <u>Method of Payment</u>: Unless the Owner has granted a waiver, for contracts of one million or more, the Contractor's payments will be made electronically through a credit card issued by the Owner's banking services provider as part of its epayables program. The application for payment and Owner's review of the Contractor's progress payments shall remain unchanged by this method of payment. For all other contracts, SHA strongly encourages enrollment in the program.

# 6.05 PAYMENTS WITHHELD

- A. Owner may withhold or, on account of subsequently discovered evidence, nullify the whole or part of any payment to such extent as may be necessary to protect Owner from loss or damage for reasons including but not limited to:
  - 1. Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents;
  - 2. Reasonable evidence that the Work required by the Contract Documents

cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;

- 3. Work by Owner to correct defective Work or complete the Work in accordance with section 5.16;
- 4. Failure to perform in accordance with the Contract Documents; or
- 5. Cost or liability that may occur to Owner as the result of Contractor's fault or negligent acts or omissions.
- B. In any case where part or all of a payment is going to be withheld for unsatisfactory performance, Owner shall notify Contractor in accordance with RCW 39.76.

#### 6.06 RETAINAGE AND BOND CLAIM RIGHTS

RCW chapters 39.08 and 60.28, concerning the rights and responsibilities of Contractor and Owner with regard to the performance and payment bonds and retainage, are made a part of the Contract Documents by reference as though fully set forth herein, and to the same extent as if the work was a "public work" and/or "public improvement" as defined in those statutes.

# 6.07 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work (or portion thereof designated and approved by Owner) when the construction is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so Owner can fully occupy the Work (or the designated portion thereof) for the use for which it is intended. All Work other than incidental corrective or punch list work shall have been completed. Before requesting Substantial Completion, the Contractor shall furnish the Owner, a comprehensive punchlist of items of work remaining to be performed or intended to be corrected by the Contractor on the portion of work the Contractor intends to

turnover to the Owner and the dates the remaining items on the list are to be completed. Substantial Completion shall not be achieved if any system(s) and part(s) are not fully commissioned, fully tested or fully functional at the time of acceptance by Owner; if utilities, appliances are not connected: or documentation has been provided to the Owner and proven to conform per the Contract Documents and operating normally as intended or; if all required occupancy permits have not been issued: or if the Work is not accessible by normal vehicular and pedestrian traffic routes. The date Substantial Completion is achieved shall be established in writing by Owner after a written request is submitted by Contractor.

# 6.08 PRIOR OCCUPANCY

- A. Owner may, upon Notice to Contractor, take possession of or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work ("Prior Occupancy") at any time prior to Substantial Completion. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, Prior Occupancy shall not: be deemed an acceptance or constitute Substantial Completion of any portion of the Work; accelerate the time for any payment to Contractor: prejudice any rights of Owner provided by anv insurance, bond, guaranty, or the Contract Documents: relieve Contractor of the risk of loss or any of the obligations established by the Contract Documents; establish a date for termination or partial termination of the assessment of liquidated damages; or constitute a waiver of claims.
- B. Notwithstanding anything in the preceding paragraph, Owner shall be responsible for loss of or damage to the Work resulting from its Prior Occupancy. Contractor's one year duty to repair and any system warranties shall begin on building systems activated and used by Owner as agreed in writing by Owner and Contractor.
- C. Before taking Prior Occupancy possession of or using any work, the

Owner shall furnish the Contractor a list of items of work remaining to be performed or corrected on those portions of the work that Owner intends to take possession of or use. However, failure of the Owner to list any item of work shall not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for complying with the terms of the contract.

#### 6.09 FINAL COMPLETION, ACCEPTANCE, AND PAYMENT

- A. Final Completion shall be achieved when the Work is fully and finally complete in accordance with the Contract Documents. The date Final Completion is achieved shall be established by Owner in writing.
- B. Contractor shall request Final Acceptance from Owner. Final Acceptance is the formal action of Owner acknowledging Final Completion of the Work. Acceptance shall be final and conclusive except for latent defects, fraud, gross mistakes amounting to fraud, or the Owner's rights under any warranty or guarantee. Prior to Final Acceptance, Contractor shall, in addition to all other requirements in the Contract Documents, submit to Owner a Notice of any outstanding disputes or claims between Contractor and any of its Subcontractors, including the amounts and other details thereof. Neither Final Acceptance, nor final payment, shall release Contractor or its sureties from any obligations of these Contract Documents or the Public Works Bond, or constitute a waiver of any claims by Owner arising from Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- C. Acceptance of final payment by Contractor, or any Subcontractor, shall constitute a waiver and release to Owner of all claims by Contractor, or any such Subcontractor, for an increase in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time, and for every act or omission of Owner relating to or arising out of the Work, except for

those Claims made in accordance with the procedures, including the time limits, set forth in part 8.

# PART 7 - CHANGES

# 7.01 CHANGES IN THE WORK

- A. Owner may, at any time and without notice to Contractor's surety, order additions, deletions, revisions, or other changes in the Work. These changes in the Work shall be incorporated into the Contract Documents through the execution of Change Orders. If any change in the Work ordered by Owner causes an increase or decrease in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time, an equitable adjustment shall be made as provided in section 7.02 respectively, 7.03, or and such adjustment(s) shall be incorporated into a Change Order.
- B. If Owner desires to order a change in the Work, the Owner may request a written Change Order Proposal (COP) from Contractor. Contractor shall submit a Change Order Proposal within 14 Days of the request from Owner, or within such as mutually period agreed. other Contractor's Change Order Proposal shall be full compensation for implementing the proposed change in the Work, including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, and including compensation for all delays in connection with such change in the Work and for any expense or inconvenience, disruption of schedule, or loss of efficiency or productivity that may result from the change in the Work.
- C. Upon receipt of the Change Order Proposal, or a request for equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both, as provided in sections 7.02 and 7.03, Owner may accept or reject the proposal, request further documentation, or negotiate acceptable terms with Contractor.

Pending agreement on the terms of the Change Order Proposal, Owner may direct Contractor to proceed immediately with the Change Order Proposal Work. Contractor shall proceed with any change in the Work only after it has obtained Owner's approval. All Work done pursuant to any Owner-directed change in the Work shall be executed in accordance with the Contract Documents.

- D. If Owner and Contractor reach agreement on the terms of any change in the Work, including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, such agreement shall be incorporated in a Change Order. The Change Order shall constitute full payment and final settlement of all claims for time and for direct, indirect, and consequential costs, including costs of delays, inconvenience, disruption of schedule, or loss of efficiency or productivity, related to any Work either covered or affected by the Change Order, or related to the events giving rise to the request for equitable adjustment.
- E. If Owner and Contractor are unable to reach agreement on the terms of any change in the Work, including any adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, Contractor may in writing, request a final offer from Owner. Owner shall provide Contractor with its written response within 14 Days of Contractor's request. Owner may also provide Contractor with a final offer at any time. If Contractor rejects Owner's final offer, or the parties are otherwise unable to reach agreement, Contractor's only remedy shall be to file a Claim as provided in part 8.

# 7.02 CHANGES IN THE CONTRACT SUM

- A. General Application
  - 1. The Contract Sum shall only be changed by a Change Order. Contractor shall include any request

for a change in the Contract Sum in its Change Order Proposal.

- 2. If the cost of Contractor's performance is changed due to the fault or negligence of Owner, or anyone for whose acts Owner is responsible, Contractor shall be entitled to make a request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum in accordance with the following procedure. No change in the Contract Sum shall be allowed to the extent: Contractor's changed cost of performance is due to the fault or negligence of Contractor, or anyone for whose acts Contractor is responsible; the change is concurrently caused by Contractor and Owner; or the change is caused by an act of Force Majeure as defined in Section 3.05.
  - a. A request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum shall be based on a written Notice delivered to Owner within 7 Days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the request. For purposes of this part, "occurrence" means when Contractor knew, or in its diligent prosecution of the Work should have known, of the event giving rise to the request. If Contractor believes it is entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Sum, Contractor shall immediately notify Owner in writing and begin to keep and maintain complete, accurate, and specific daily records including photographs, daily logs. accounting of labor, materials and equipment associated with the occurrence. Contractor shall give Owner access to any such records and, if requested shall promptly furnish copies of such records to Owner.
  - b. Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract

Sum for any occurrence of events or costs that occurred more than 7 Days before Contractor's written Notice to Owner. The Notice shall provide. minimum: at а а description of the event giving rise to the request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum; the nature of the impacts to Contractor and its Subcontractors and to the extent of any tier, possible the full amount of the adjustment in Contract Sum requested. Failure to provide a timely written notice with this information shall, to the extent Owner's interests are prejudiced, constitute a waiver of Contractor's right to an equitable adjustment. Owner's interests are prejudiced, for example, if Owner receives knowledge of facts after Owner incurs costs that could have been avoided or reduced if the notice had been timely. In this case, Contractor shall receive an equitable adjustment if otherwise entitled to it, less the costs incurred. A separate Notice must accompany each request for equitable adjustment. If Owner approval of equitable adjustment been aranted. has the correspondence containing such approval shall accompany the request for equitable adjustment. Owner must approve all requests for equitable adjustments before any Change Order is executed.

c. Within 30 Days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the request, Owner may allow an additional period of time to ascertain more accurate data unless Owner agrees to the initial Change Order Proposal in writing,. Contractor shall supplement Notice provided in accordance with subparagraph a. above with

additional supporting data. Such additional data shall include, at a minimum: the amount of compensation requested, itemized in accordance with the procedure set forth herein; specific facts, circumstances, and analysis that confirms not only that Contractor suffered the damages claimed, but that the damages claimed were actually a result of the act, event, or condition complained of and that the Contract Documents provide entitlement to an equitable adjustment to Contractor for such act, event, or condition; and documentation sufficiently detailed to permit an informed analysis of the request by Owner. When the request for compensation relates to a delay, or other change in Contract Time, Contractor shall demonstrate the impact on the critical path schedule, in accordance with section 7.03C. Failure to provide such additional information and documentation within the time allowed or within the format required shall, to the extent Owner's interests are prejudiced, constitute a waiver of Contractor's right to an equitable adjustment. Owner's interests are prejudiced, for example,

- If Owner is deprived of full knowledge of all material facts needed to verify the request or make an informed decision on Contractor's request; or
- (2) If Owner receives knowledge of facts after Owner incurs costs that could have been avoided if the notice had been timely. In this case, Contractor shall receive an equitable adjustment only if otherwise entitled to it, less the costs incurred.

- Pending final resolution of any request made in accordance with this paragraph, unless otherwise agreed in writing, Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Work.
- e. Any requests by Contractor for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum and in the Contract Time that arise out of the same be event(s) shall submitted together. Failure to do SO constitutes a waiver of Contractor's right to an equitable adjustment.
- 3. The value of any Work covered by a Change Order Proposal, or of any request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum, shall be determined by one of the following methods:
  - a. On the basis of a fixed price as determined in paragraph 7.02B.
  - b. By application of unit prices to the quantities of the items involved as determined in paragraph 7.02C.
- 4. When Owner has requested Contractor to submit a Change Order Proposal, Owner may direct Contractor as to which method in subparagraph 3. above to use when submitting its proposal. Otherwise, Contractor shall determine the value of the Work, or of a request for an equitable adjustment, on the basis of the fixed price method.
- B. Change Order Pricing -- Fixed Price

When the fixed price method is used to determine the value of any Work covered by a Change Order, or of a request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum, the following procedures shall apply:

1. Contractor's Change Order Proposal, or request for adjustment in the Contract Sum, shall be accompanied by a complete itemization of the costs, including labor, material, subcontractor costs, and overhead and profit. The costs shall be itemized in the manner set forth below, and shall be submitted on breakdown sheets in a form approved by Owner.

- 2. All costs shall be calculated based upon appropriate industry standard methods of calculating current Contractor labor rates for the Project and local material prices and local equipment costs.
- 3. If any of Contractor's pricing assumptions are contingent upon anticipated actions of Owner, Contractor shall clearly state them in the proposal or request for an equitable adjustment.
- 4. The cost of any additive or deductive changes in the Work shall be calculated as set forth below, except that overhead and profit shall not be included on deductive changes in the Work. Where a change in the Work involves additive and deductive work by the same Contractor or Subcontractor, small tools, overhead, profit, bond and insurance markups will apply to the net difference.
- 5. If the total cost of the change in the Work or request for equitable adjustment does not exceed \$2,500, Contractor may submit a breakdown in the following level of detail if the description of the change in the Work or if the request for equitable adjustment is sufficiently definitive to permit the Owner to determine fair value:
  - a. lump sum labor;
  - b. lump sum material;

- c. lump sum equipment usage;
- d. overhead and profit as set forth below; and
- e. insurance and bond costs as set forth below.
- 6. Any request for adjustment of Contract Sum based upon the fixed price method shall include only the following items:
  - a. Craft labor costs: These are the labor costs determined by multiplying the estimated or actual additional number of craft hours needed to perform the change in the Work by the hourly labor costs. Craft hours should cover direct labor, as well as indirect labor due to trade inefficiencies. The hourly costs shall be based on the following:
    - (1) Basic wages and benefits: Hourly rates benefits and according applicable to prevailing wages. Direct supervision shall be а reasonable percentage not to exceed 15% of the cost of direct labor. No supervision markup shall be allowed for a working supervisor's hours.
    - (2) Worker's insurance: Direct contributions to the state of Washington for industrial insurance; medical aid; and supplemental pension, by the class and rates established by the State Department of Labor and Industries.
    - (3) Federal insurance: Direct contributions required by the Federal Insurance Compensation Act; Federal Unemployment Tax Act; and

the State Unemployment Compensation Act.

- (4) Safety: Cost incurred due to the Washington Industrial Safety and Health Act, which shall be a reasonable percentage not to exceed 2% of the sum of the amounts calculated in (1), (2), and (3) above.
- b. Material costs: This is an itemization of the quantity and cost of materials needed to perform the change in the Work. Material costs shall be developed first from actual known costs, second from supplier quotations or if these are not available, from standard industry pricing guides for the local area. Material costs shall consider all available discounts. Freight costs, express charges, or special delivery charges, shall be itemized.
- c. Equipment costs: This is an itemization of the type of equipment and the estimated or actual length of time the construction equipment appropriate for the Work is or will be used on the change in the Work. Costs will be allowed for construction equipment only if used entirely and exclusively for the changed Work, or for additional rental costs actually incurred by the Equipment charges Contractor. shall be computed on the basis of actual invoice costs or if owned. from the current edition of one of the following sources in the order in which they are listed:
  - (1) Associated General Contractors - Washington State Department of Transportation Equipment Rental Agreement; latest edition;

- (2) The state of Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission for trucks used on highways.
- (3) The National Electrical Contractors Association for equipment used on electrical work.
- (4) The Mechanical Contractors Association of America for equipment used on mechanical work.

The most recent edition of the Data Quest Rental Rate (Blue Book) shall be used as a basis for establishing rental rates of equipment not listed in the above sources. The maximum rate for standby equipment shall not exceed that shown in the AGC WSDOT Equipment Rental Agreement, latest edition.

- Allowance for small tools, expendables & consumable supplies: Small tools consist of tools which cost \$250 or less and are normally furnished by the performing contractor. The maximum rate for small tools shall not exceed the following:
  - (1) For Contractor, 3% of direct labor costs.
  - (2) For Subcontractors, 5% of direct labor costs.

Expendables and consumable supplies directly associated with the change in Work must be itemized.

e. Subcontractor costs: This is defined as payments Contractor makes to Subcontractors for changed Work performed by Subcontractors of any tier. The Sub contractors' cost of Work shall be calculated and itemized in the same manner as prescribed herein for Contractor.

- f. Allowance for overhead: This is defined as costs of any kind attributable to direct and indirect delay, acceleration, or impact, added to the total cost to Owner of any change in the Contract Sum but not to the cost of any change in the Contract Time for which contractor has been, or could have (had contractor filed a been sufficient. timely claim), compensated pursuant to the conditions set forth in Section 7.03. This allowance shall compensate Contractor for all noncraft labor, temporary construction facilities, engineering, field schedule updating, as-built drawings, home office cost, B&O taxes, office engineering, estimating costs. additional overhead because of extended time, and any other cost incidental to the change in the Work. It shall be strictly limited in all cases to a reasonable amount, mutually acceptable, or if none can be agreed upon to an amount not to exceed the rates below:
  - For Contractor, for any Work actually performed by Contractor's own forces, 10% of the cost.
  - (2) For each Subcontractor (including lower tier subcontractors), for any Work actually performed by its own forces, 10% of the cost.
  - (3) For Contractor, for any Work performed by its Subcontractor(s), no additional percentage allowance.

- (4) For each Subcontractor, for any Work performed by its Subcontractor(s) of any lower tier, no additional percentage allowance.
- (5) The cost to which overhead is to be applied shall be determined in accordance with subparagraphs a.-e. above.
- g. Allowance for profit: This is an amount to be added to the cost of any change in contract sum, but not to the cost of change in Contract Time for which contractor has been, or could have been (had contractor filed a sufficient, timely claim), compensated pursuant to the conditions set forth in section 7.03. It shall be limited to a reasonable amount, mutually acceptable, or if none can be agreed upon, to an amount not to exceed the rates below:
  - For Contractor or Subcontractor of any tier for work performed by their forces, 5% of the cost developed in accordance with 7.02B.6a.- e. above.
  - (2) For Contractor for work performed by its Subcontractor(s), 10% of the Subcontractor cost developed in accordance with 7.02B.6a. – e, less the Subcontractor(s)' profit.
  - (3) For Subcontractors of any tier for work performed by a subcontractor of a lower tier, no additional percentage allowance.
- h. Cost of change in insurance or bond premium: This is defined as:
  - (1) Contractor's liability insurance: The cost of any changes in Contractor's liability insurance

arising directly from execution of the changed Work;

(2) Public works bond(s): The cost of the additional premium for Contractor's bond arising directly from the changed Work.

The costs of any change in insurance or bond premium shall be added after overhead and profit are calculated in accordance with subparagraphs f. and g. above.

- C. Change Order Pricing -- Unit Prices
  - 1. If Owner authorizes Contractor to perform Work on a unit-price basis, Owner's authorization shall clearly state:
    - a. Scope of work to be performed;
    - Type of reimbursement including pre-agreed rates for material quantities; and
    - c. Cost limit of reimbursement.
  - 2. Contractor shall:
    - a. Cooperate with Owner and assist in monitoring the Work being performed. As requested by Owner, Contractor shall identify workers assigned to the Change Order Work and areas in which they are working;
    - b. Leave access as appropriate for quantity measurement; and
    - c. Not exceed any cost limit(s) without Owner's prior written approval.
  - 3. Contractor shall submit costs in accordance with paragraph 7.02B. and satisfy the following requirements:
    - a. Unit prices shall include reimbursement for all direct and

indirect costs of the Work, including but not limited to: overhead and profit, general conditions, supervision, safety, small tools and bond and insurance costs; and

b. Quantities must be supported by field measurement statements signed by Owner.

# 7.03 CHANGES IN THE CONTRACT TIME

- A. The Contract Time shall only be changed by a Change Order. Contractor shall include any request for a change in the Contract Time in its Change Order Proposal.
- B. If the time of Contractor's performance is changed due to an act of Force Majeure, or due to the fault or negligence of Owner or anyone for whose acts Owner is responsible, Contractor shall be entitled to make a request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time in accordance with the following procedure. No adjustment in the Contract Time shall be allowed to the extent Contractor's changed time of performance is due to the fault or negligence of Contractor, or anyone for whose acts Contractor is responsible.
  - 1. A Contractor's request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time shall be based on Notice delivered to Owner within 7 Days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the request. If Contractor believes it is entitled to adjustment of Contract Time. Contractor shall immediately begin to keep and maintain complete, accurate, and specific daily records including photographs, and track daily loss of productivity specific to the established critical path schedule in sufficient detail as to fully document the claim. Contractor shall give Owner access to any such record and, if requested,

shall promptly furnish copies of such record to Owner.

- 2. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Time for any events that occurred more than 7 Days before Contractor's Notice to Owner. The Notice shall provide, at a minimum: a description of the event giving rise to the request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time; the nature of the impacts to Contractor and its Subcontractors of any tier, if any; and to the extent possible the amount of the adjustment in Contract Time requested. Failure to provide this information in the Notice shall, to the extent Owner's interests are prejudiced, constitute a waiver of Contractor's right to an equitable adjustment. Owner's interests are prejudiced, for example, if Owner receives knowledge of facts after the Work incurs delay that could have been avoided if the notice had been timely. In this case, Contractor shall receive an equitable adjustment if otherwise entitled to it, less the delay incurred.
- 3. Within 30 Days of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the request, unless Owner agrees in writing to allow an additional period of time to ascertain more accurate data. Contractor shall supplement the Notice provided in accordance with subparagraph 7.03B.2 with additional supporting data. Such additional data shall include, at a minimum: the amount of delay claimed, itemized in accordance with the procedure set specific forth herein: facts. circumstances, and analysis that confirms not only that Contractor suffered the delay claimed, but that the delay claimed was actually a result of the act, event, or condition complained of, and that the Contract Documents provide entitlement to an equitable

adjustment in Contract Time for such act, event, or condition; and supporting documentation sufficiently detailed to permit an informed analysis of the request by Owner. Failure to provide additional information such and documentation within the time allowed or within the format required shall, to the extent Owner's interests are prejudiced, constitute a waiver of Contractor's right to an equitable adjustment. Owner's interests are prejudiced, for example,

- a. If Owner is deprived of full knowledge of all material facts needed to make an informed decision on Contractor's request; or
- b. If Owner receives knowledge of facts after the Work incurs delay that could have been avoided if the notice had been timely. In this case, Contractor shall receive an equitable adjustment if otherwise entitled to it, less the delay incurred.
- 4. Pending final resolution of any request in accordance with this paragraph, unless otherwise agreed in writing, Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Work.
- C. Any change in the Contract Time covered by a Change Order, or based on a request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time, shall be limited to the change in the critical path of Contractor's schedule attributable to the change of Work or event(s) giving rise to the request for equitable adjustment. Any Change Order proposal or request for an adjustment in the Contract Time shall demonstrate the impact on the critical path of the schedule. Contractor shall be responsible for showing clearly on the Progress Schedule that the change or event: had a specific impact on the critical path, and except in

case of concurrent delay, was the sole cause of such impact; and could not have been avoided by resequencing of the Work or other reasonable alternatives.

- D. Contractor may request compensation for the cost of a change in Contract Time in accordance with this paragraph 7.03D, subject to the following conditions:
  - 1. The change in Contract Time shall solely be substantiated as caused by the fault or negligence of Owner or anyone for whose acts Owner is responsible;
  - 2. Compensation under this paragraph is limited to changes in Contract Time for which Contractor is not entitled to be compensated under section 7.02;
  - 3. Contractor shall follow the procedure set forth in paragraph 7.03B;
  - 4. Contractor shall establish the extent of the change in Contract Time in accordance with paragraph 7.03C; and
  - 5. The daily cost of any change in Contract Time shall be limited to the items below, less funds that may, or could (had contractor filed a sufficient, timely claim), have been paid pursuant to a change in the Contract Sum that contributed to this change in Contract Time:
    - a. cost of nonproductive field supervision or labor extended because of the delay;
    - b. cost of weekly meetings or similar indirect activities extended because of the delay;
    - c. cost of temporary facilities or equipment rental extended because of the delay;

- d. cost of insurance extended because of the delay;
- e. general and administrative overhead in an amount to be agreed upon, but not to exceed 3% of Contract Sum divided by the Contract Time for each Day of the delay.

#### PART 8 - CLAIMS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

# 8.01 CLAIMS PROCEDURE

- A. Except as otherwise provided in paragraph 5.04C or paragraph 11.12H, whichever is applicable, if the parties fail to reach agreement regarding any dispute arising from the Contract Documents, including a failure to reach agreement on the terms of any Change Order for Ownerdirected Work as provided in section 7.01, or on the resolution of any request for an equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum as provided in section 7.02 or the Contract Time as provided in section 7.03, Contractor's only remedy shall be to file a Claim with Owner as provided in this section.
- B. Contractor shall file its Claim within the earlier of 120 Days from Owner's final offer in accordance with paragraph 7.01E; or the date of Final Acceptance.
- C. The Claim shall be deemed to cover all changes in cost and time (including direct, indirect, impact, and consequential) to which Contractor may be entitled. It shall be fully substantiated and documented. At a minimum, the Claim shall contain the following information:
  - A detailed factual statement of the Claim for additional compensation and time, if any, providing all necessary dates, locations, and items of Work affected by the Claim;

- 2. The date on which facts arose which gave rise to the Claim;
- The name of each employee of Owner or A/E knowledgeable about the Claim;
- 4. The specific provisions of the Contract Documents which support the Claim;
- 5. The identification of any documents and the substance of any written communications that support the Claim;
- Copies of any identified documents, other than the Contract Documents, that support the Claim;
- 7. If an adjustment in the Contract Time is sought: the specific Days and dates for which it is sought; the specific reasons Contractor believes an extension in the Contract Time should be granted; and Contractor's analysis its Progress Schedule of to demonstrate the reason for the extension in Contract Time:
- 8. If an adjustment in the Contract Sum is sought, the exact amount sought and a breakdown of that amount into the categories set forth in, and in the detail required by, section 7.02; and
- 9. A statement certifying, under penalty of perjury, that the Claim is made in good faith, that the supporting cost and pricing data are true and accurate to the best of Contractor's knowledge and belief, that the Claim is fully supported by the accompanying data, and that the amount requested accurately reflects the adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time for which Contractor believes Owner is liable.
- D. After Contractor has submitted a fullydocumented Claim that complies with all applicable provisions of parts 7 and 8,

Owner shall respond, in writing, to Contractor with a decision within 60 Days from the date the Claim is received, or with notice to Contractor of the date by which it will render its decision.

- E. To assist in the review of Contractor's Claim, Owner may visit the Project site, or request additional information, in order to fully evaluate the issues raised by the Claim. Contractor shall proceed with performance of the Work pending final resolution of any Claim. Owner's written decision as set forth above shall be final and conclusive as to all matters set forth in the Claim, unless Contractor follows the procedure set forth in section 8.02.
- F. Any Claim of the Contractor against the Owner for damages, additional compensation, or additional time, shall be conclusively deemed to have been waived by the Contractor unless timely made in accordance with the requirements of this section.

# 8.02 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- A. All Claims arising out of the Work shall be attempted to be resolved by both parties in good faith. If Contractor disagrees with Owner's decision rendered in accordance with paragraph 8.01D Contractor shall provide Owner with a written request for Dispute Resolution. No request for Dispute Resolution of any such Claim shall be made later than 30 Days after the receipt date of Owner's decision on such Claim: failure to request Dispute Resolution within said 30 Day period shall result in Owner's decision being final and binding upon Contractor and its Subcontractors. All other rights to equitable adjustment from this point are deemed waived.
- B. Notice of the request for Dispute Resolution shall contain all claims Contractor has against Owner and state the Contractor's specific disagreement with the Owner's decision. Within ten business

days of receipt of Contractor's Notice of Request for Dispute Resolution, Owner shall advise Contractor whether the dispute will be resolved by mediation, arbitration or litigation. If the dispute is to be mediated, the parties shall mediate under the then current Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the AAA. If the parties do not agree to another location, the mediation shall take place in Seattle, Washington.

- C. Claims between Owner and Contractor, Contractor and its Subcontractors, Contractor and A/E, and Owner and A/E shall be submitted in the same mediation.
- D. If the parties resolve the Claim(s) prior to a mediation decision, the terms of their agreement shall be incorporated in a Change Order. The Change Order shall constitute full payment and final settlement of the Claim(s), including all claims for time and for direct, indirect, or consequential costs, including costs of delays, inconvenience, disruption of schedule, or loss of efficiency or productivity.
- E. If any Claim is not resolved through mediation, Owner may elect to have the disputed claim(s) resolved through arbitration or litigation. Owner shall within ten working days of conclusion of the mediation, informs Contractor of its election to proceed with arbitration or litigation.

# 8.03 ARBITRATION

If Owner elects to have the dispute resolved through arbitration, Contractor shall file a notice, of Demand for Arbitration with the American Arbitration Association (AAA), with a copy provided to Owner, in accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of AAA as follows:

1. Claims involving \$75,000 or less, exclusive of claimed interest, attorney's fees, arbitration fees and costs hall be conducted in accordance with the AAA Fast Track Procedures

- 2. Disputes over \$75,000 shall be conducted in accordance with the AAA Procedures for Large Complex Construction Disputes unless the parties agree to use the expedited rules.
- 3. For disputes conducted according to this section, notwithstanding any contrary provision of the referenced rules,
  - a. the arbitrator shall determine the rights and obligations of the parties according to the substantive and procedural laws of Washington;
  - b The obligations of Contractor under section 8.05 shall continue and shall not be affected;
  - c. the arbitrator shall be an attorney with at least 10 years experience in construction law;
  - d. the arbitrator shall issue a written decision setting out: a) each of the findings of facts; b) the evidence supporting each finding of fact; c) a statement of the applicable law; and d) an explanation of how the arbitrator applied the law to those facts;
  - e. if the parties do not agree to another location, the arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in Seattle, Washington.
- C. The judgment upon the arbitration award may be entered, or review of the award may occur, in the court having jurisdiction thereof. No independent legal action relating to or arising from the Work shall be maintained.

- D. Claims between Owner and Contractor, Contractor and its Subcontractors, Contractor and A/E, and Owner and A/E shall be submitted in the same arbitration.
- E. If the parties resolve the Claim prior to an arbitration award, the terms of the party's agreement shall be incorporated in a Change Order. The Change Order shall payment constitute full and final settlement of the Claim, including all claims for time and for direct, indirect, or consequential costs, including costs of delays, inconvenience, disruption of schedule. or loss of efficiency or productivity.

# 8.04 LITIGATION

If Owner elects to resolve the dispute through litigation, Contractor shall file suit in a court of competent jurisdiction in the City of Seattle.

#### 8.05 CLAIMS AUDITS

- A. All Claims filed against Owner shall be subject to audit at any time following the filing of the Claim. Failure of Contractor, or Subcontractors of any tier, to maintain and retain sufficient records to allow Owner to verify all or a portion of the Claim or to permit Owner access to the books and records of Contractor, or Subcontractors of any tier, shall constitute a waiver of the Claim and shall bar any recovery.
- B. In support of Owner audit of any Claim, Contractor shall, upon request, promptly make available to Owner the following documents:
  - 1. Daily time sheets and supervisor's daily reports;
  - 2. Collective bargaining agreements;
  - 3. Insurance, welfare, and benefits records;

- 4. Payroll registers;
- 5. Earnings records;
- 6. Payroll tax forms;
- 7. Material invoices, requisitions, and delivery confirmations;
- 8. Material cost distribution worksheet;
- 9. Equipment records (list of company equipment, rates, etc.);
- 10. Vendors', rental agencies', Subcontractors', and agents' invoices;
- 11. Contracts between Contractor and each of its Subcontractors, and all lower-tier Subcontractor contracts and supplier contracts;
- 12. Subcontractors' and agents' payment certificates;
- 13. Cancelled checks (payroll and vendors);
- 14. Job cost report, including monthly totals;
- 15. Job payroll ledger;
- 16. Planned resource loading schedules and summaries;
- 17. General ledger;
- 18. Cash disbursements journal;
- 19. Financial statements for all years reflecting the operations on the Work. In addition, the Owner may require, if it deems it appropriate, additional financial statements for 3 years preceding execution of the Work;
- 20. Depreciation records on all company equipment whether these records are

maintained by the company involved, its accountant, or others;

- 21. If a source other than depreciation records is used to develop costs for Contractor's internal purposes in establishing the actual cost of owning and operating equipment, all such other source documents;
- 22. All nonprivileged documents which relate to each and every Claim together with all documents which support the amount of any adjustment in Contract Sum or Contract Time sought by each Claim;
- 23. Work sheets or software used to prepare the Claim establishing the cost components for items of the Claim including but not limited to labor, benefits and insurance, materials, equipment, Subcontractors, all documents which establish the time periods, individuals involved, the hours for the individuals, and the rates for the individuals; and
- 24. Work sheets, software, and all other documents used by Contractor to prepare its bid.
- B. The audit may be performed by employees of Owner or a representative of Owner. Contractor, and its Subcontractors, shall provide adequate facilities acceptable to Owner, for the audit during normal business hours. Contractor, and all Subcontractors, shall make a good faith effort to cooperate with Owner's auditors.

# PART 9 - TERMINATION OF THE WORK

#### 9.01 TERMINATION BY OWNER FOR CAUSE

A. Owner may, upon 7 Days Notice to Contractor and to its surety, terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of Owner) the Work, or any part of it, for cause upon the occurrence of any one or more of the following events:

- Contractor fails to prosecute the Work or any portion thereof with sufficient diligence to ensure Substantial Completion of the Work within the Contract Time;
- Contractor is adjudged bankrupt, makes a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors or a receiver is appointed on account of its insolvency;
- Contractor fails in a material way to replace or correct Work not in conformance with the Contract Documents;
- Contractor fails to supply adequately skilled workers, an adequate number of skilled workers to do the Work, proper materials or equipment verified by actual progress made against the approved schedule.
- 5. Contractor fails to make prompt payment due to Subcontractors, suppliers, or for labor;
- Contractor materially disregards or fails to comply with recognized and established safety measures, laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction; or
- 7. Contractor is otherwise in material breach of any provision of the Contract Documents.
- B. Upon termination, Owner may at its option:
  - 1. Take possession of the Project site and take possession of or use all materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by

Contractor to maintain the orderly progress of, and to finish, the Work;

- 2. Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to section 5.20; and
- 3. Finish the Work by whatever other reasonable method it deems expedient.
- C. Owner's rights and duties upon termination are subject to the prior rights and duties of the surety, if any, obligated under any bond provided in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- D. When Owner terminates the Work in accordance with this section, Contractor shall take the actions set forth in paragraph 9.02B, and shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is accepted.
- E. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds the cost of finishing the Work, including compensation for A/E's services and expenses made necessary thereby and any other extra costs or damages incurred by Owner in completing the Work, or as a result of Contractor's actions, such excess shall be paid to Contractor. If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, Contractor shall pay the difference to Owner. Contractor shall also be liable for liquidated damages until such reasonable time as may be required for Completion. Substantial These obligations for payment shall survive termination.
- F. Termination of the Work in accordance with this section shall not relieve Contractor or its surety of any responsibilities for Work performed.
- G. If Owner terminates Contractor for cause, and it is later determined that none of the circumstances set forth in paragraph 9.01A exist, then such termination shall be

deemed a termination for convenience pursuant to section 9.02.

#### 9.02 TERMINATION BY OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE

- A. Owner may, upon Notice, terminate (without prejudice to any right or remedy of Owner) the Work, or any part of it, for the convenience of Owner.
- B. Unless Owner directs otherwise, after receipt of a Notice of termination for either cause or convenience, Contractor shall promptly:
  - 1. Stop performing Work on the date as specified in the notice of termination;
  - Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, equipment, services or facilities, except as may be necessary for completion of such portion of the Work which is not terminated;
  - Cancel all orders and subcontracts, upon terms acceptable to Owner, to the extent that they relate to the performance of Work terminated;
  - 4. Assign to Owner all of the rights, titles, and interests of Contractor in all orders and subcontracts;
  - 5. Take such action as may be necessary or as directed by Owner to preserve and protect the Work, Project site, and any other property related to this Project in the possession of Contractor in which Owner has an interest; and
  - 6. Continue performance only to the extent not terminated.
- C. If Owner terminates the Work or any portion thereof for convenience, Contractor shall be entitled to make a request for an equitable adjustment for its reasonable direct costs incurred prior to the effective date of the termination, plus

a reasonable allowance for overhead and profit on Work performed prior to termination, plus the reasonable administrative costs of the termination, but shall not be entitled to any other costs or damages, whatsoever, provided however, the total sum payable upon termination shall not exceed the Contract Sum reduced by prior payments. Contractor shall be required to make its request in accordance with the provisions of part 7.

D. If Owner terminates the Work or any portion thereof for convenience, the Contract Time shall be adjusted as determined by Owner.

#### PART 10 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

#### 10.01 GOVERNING LAW

The Contract Documents and the rights of the parties herein shall be governed by the laws of the state of Washington. Venue shall be in the county in which Owner's principal place of business is located, unless otherwise specified.

#### 10.02 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors. assigns, and legal representatives to the other party hereto and to partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives of such other party in respect to covenants. agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Neither party shall assign the Work without written consent of the other, except that Contractor may assign the Work for security purposes, to a bank or lending institution authorized to do business in the state of Washington. If either party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that shall nevertheless remain legally party responsible for all obligations set forth in the Contract Documents.

#### **10.03 MEANING OF WORDS**

Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words which have well-known technical or construction industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings. Reference to standard specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or to the code of any governmental authority, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall be to the latest standard specification, manual, or code in effect on the date for submission of bids, except as may be otherwise specifically stated. Wherever in these Drawings and Specifications an article, device, or piece of equipment is referred to in the singular manner, such reference shall apply to as many such articles as are shown on the or required to complete Drawings, the installation.

# 10.04 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

No action or failure to act by Owner or A/E shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty afforded them under the Contract Documents, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of an acquiescence in a breach therein, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

# 10.05 CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION

Contractor shall be registered or licensed as required by the laws of the State of Washington, including but not limited to RCW 18.27.

# **10.06 TIME COMPUTATIONS**

When computing any period of time, the Day of the event from which the period of time begins shall not be counted. The last Day is counted unless it falls on a weekend or legal holiday, in which event the period runs until the end of the next Day that is not a weekend or holiday. When the period of time allowed is less than 7 Days, intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and Owner-observed holidays are excluded from the computation. "Owner-observed holidays" are New Year's Day; Martin Luther King, Jr. Day; Presidents' Day; Memorial Day; Fourth of July; Labor Day; Thanksgiving, the day after Thanksgiving; and Christmas. If New Year's Day, the Fourth of July, or Christmas fall on a Saturday, they shall be observed on the preceding Friday; if on a Sunday, they shall be observed on the following Monday.

# 10.07 RECORDS RETENTION

The wage, payroll, and cost records of Contractor, and its Subcontractors, and all records subject to audit in accordance with section 8.03, shall be retained for a period of not less than 6 years after the date of Final Acceptance.

# 10.08 THIRD-PARTY AGREEMENTS

The Contract Documents shall not be construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind between A/E and Contractor; Owner and any Subcontractor; or any persons other than Owner and Contractor.

# **10.09 ANTITRUST ASSIGNMENT**

Owner and Contractor recognize that in actual economic practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are in fact usually borne by the purchaser. Therefore, Contractor hereby assigns to Owner any and all claims for such overcharges as to goods, materials, and equipment purchased in connection with the Work performed in accordance with the Contract Documents, except as to overcharges which from antitrust violations result commencing after the Contract Sum is established and which are not passed on to Owner under a Change Order. Contractor shall put a similar clause in its Subcontracts, and require a similar clause in its sub-Subcontracts. such that all claims for such overcharges on the Work are passed to Owner by Contractor.

# 10.10 NOTICES

A. Method of Serving Notices. Any and all notices required under this Contract (each, a "Notice") shall be in writing and shall be deemed delivered:

- Three (3) Business Days after being posted by certified or registered mail to the other party's contact person at the address specified below;
- One (1) Business Day after being sent by recognized national overnight courier service to the other party's contact person at the address specified below;
- 3. On the same Day when sent by facsimile to the contact person at the designated facsimile number of the party with confirmed receipt, provided the facsimile is sent on a Business Day and prior to 3:00 pm on that Business Day, and otherwise, the Notice shall be deemed delivered one (1) Business Day after being sent by facsimile with confirmed receipt; or
- 4. On the same Day when delivered in person to an Authorized Representative of the other Party on the Development Site.
- 5. On the same Day when delivered via email to the Project Coordinator by 3:00 pm.
- B. Owner's Address. The Owner's address for all Notices, other than those certain submittals described in the next paragraph, shall be:

Seattle Housing Authority 190 Queen Anne Avenue North P.O. Box 19028 Seattle, Washington 98109-1028 Contact Person:

Email:

@seattlehousing.org

Submittals of Performance and Payment Bond and Proof of Insurance, and submittal of Prevailing Wage, EEO, Apprentice Utilization, Section 3 Resident Utilization, WMBE, and Section 3 Benchmarks for Creating Economic Opportunities for Low- and Very Low-Income Persons and Eligible Businesses information and reports will be addressed to:

Seattle Housing Authority 190 Queen Anne Avenue North P.O. Box 19028 Seattle, Washington 98109-1028 Contact Person: \_\_\_\_\_, Sr. Contract Administrator Email: \_\_\_\_\_@seattlehousing.org

C. Contractor's Address. The address of the Contractor for all Notice shall be:

Contact Person:

Email:

Fax:

D. Change in Notice Address.

Either party may change its address and contact person for Notice by delivering a Notice of such change to the other party in accordance with this Article 10.

Ε. Importance of Contractor Compliance with Notice Requirements. The Contract Documents contain many important provisions regarding delivery of notices. particularly with regards to delays, Contract Sum adjustments in or Contract Time, and other claims. Contractor's failure to comply with the applicable notice requirements in the Contract Documents, whether in terms of timely delivery or delivery in required form and substance, can and will result in the absolute forfeiture, waiver, bar and release of rights, remedies and claims that Contractor might otherwise have against Owner.

#### 10.11 LABOR AND INDUSTRIES REQUIRED DOCUMENTS FOR HUD FUNDED PROJECTS:

Contractors must comply with the Prevailing Wage Policy Memorandum dated April 20, 2011 from the State of Washington's L&I regarding HUD Housing Projects -Federal Preemption, The Housing Act of 1937 and 24 CFR 965.101, accessible on Labor and Industries website at http://www.lni.wa.gov/TradesLicensing/Prev Wage/files/Policies/HUDHousingProjects-HousingActOf1937.pdf. Pursuant to this Directive from the State of Washington, effective May 15, 2011, regardless of the federal wage preemption, contractors are required to file the Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages & the Affidavit of Wages Paid forms on HUD Housing Projects. This requirement is now in addition to the observance of the required federal labor standards requirements specified in the Contract Documents.

# PART 11 - FEDERAL PROVISIONS

These provisions supplement other provisions in this Contract.

#### 11.01 PROHIBITION AGAINST USE OF LEAD-BASED PAINT

The Contractor shall comply with the prohibition against the use of lead-based paint contained in the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821-4846) as implemented by 24 CFR Part 35.

# 11.02 FEDERAL HEALTH, SAFETY, AND ACCIDENT PREVENTION

A. In performing this contract, the Contractor will ensure that no laborer or mechanic will be required to work in surroundings or in or under any working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his/her health and/or safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation.

B. For these purposes, the Contractor will comply with section 5.07 and with regulations and standards issued by the Secretary of Labor at 29 CFR Parts 1904 and 1926. Failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C 3701-3708)

#### 11.03 CLEAN AIR AND WATER APPLICABLE TO CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF \$150,000

- A. Definition. "Facility" means any building, plant, installation, structure, mine, vessel or other floating craft, location, or site of operations, owned, leased, or supervised by the Contractor or any subcontractor, used in the performance of the contract or any subcontract. When a location or site of operations includes more than one building, plant, installation, or structure, the entire location or site shall be deemed a facility except when the Administrator, or designee. of the Environmental а Protection Agency (EPA) determines that independent facilities are collocated in one geographical area.
- B. In compliance with regulations issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), 40 CFR Part 15, pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended ("Air Act"), 42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q, et seq., the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended ("Water Act"), 33 U.S.C. 1251-1387, et seq., and Executive Order 11738, the Contractor agrees to
  - Not utilize any facility in the performance of this contract or any subcontract which is listed on the EPA List of Violating Facilities pursuant to Part 15 of the regulations for the duration of time that the facility remains on the list;

- 2. Promptly notify the Owner if a facility the Contractor intends to use in the performance of this contract is on the EPA List of Violating Facilities or the Contractor knows that it has been recommended to be placed on the List;
- 3. Comply with all requirements of the Air Act and the Water Act, including the requirements of Section 114 of the Air Act and Section 308 of the Water Act, and all applicable clean air and clean water standards; and,
- Include or cause to be included the provisions of this clause in every subcontract, and take such action as HUD may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

# **11.04 ENERGY EFFICIENCY**

The Contractor shall comply with all standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 U.S.C. 6201) for the State in which the work under the contract is performed.

#### 11.05 SUBCONTRACTING WITH SMALL AND MINORITY FIRMS, WOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE, AND LABOR SURPLUS AREA FIRMS

The Contractor shall take the following steps to ensure that, whenever possible, subcontracts are awarded to qualified small business firms, minority firms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms:

- A. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
- Ensuring that qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;

- C. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises;
- D. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirements of the contract permit, which encourage participation by qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises; and
- E. Using the services and assistance of the U.S. Small Business Administration, the Minority Business Development Agency of the U.S. Department of Commerce. and State and local governmental small business agencies.

# 11.06 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

- A. Contractor shall comply with Executive Order 11246, as amended, and the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- B. The Contractor shall furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246, as amended, Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto. The Contractor shall permit access to its books, records, and accounts by the Owner, or the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with this section of the Contract, and/or such rules, regulations, and orders.
- C. In the event of a determination that the Contractor is not in compliance with this clause or any rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part, and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts. Federally or assisted construction contracts under the

procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246, as amended. In addition, sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked against the Contractor as provided in Executive Order 11246, as amended, the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

D. Contractor shall include the terms and conditions of this clause in every subcontract or purchase order so that these terms and conditions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance; provided that if the Contractor becomes involved in, or is with, litigation with threatened а subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

#### 11.07 CREATING ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES FOR LOW- AND VERY LOW-INCOME PERSONS AND ELIGIBLE BUSINESSES, SECTION 3

Contractor will comply with Section 3 and with this Section 11.07.

- A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3.
- B. Contractor will require its subcontractors to comply with Section 3. As evidenced by its execution of this Contract, Contractor certifies that it is under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent it from complying with Section 3.

- C. Contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract will take all necessary steps to ensure compliance with Section 3 by its subcontractors. Upon a finding that a subcontractor is in violation of Section 3, Contractor will take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this Section 3 clause. Contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the Contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of Section 3.
- D. Contractor will provide certifications in form and substance required by Owner, at such times as Owner may request, certifying (i) Contractor's compliance with Section 3, and (ii) as to such facts and circumstances pertaining to Section 3 as Owner may require or request, including certification with respect to total number of labor hours worked under this Contract, labor hours worked by Section 3 Workers (as defined in Section 3), and labor hours worked by Targeted Section 3 Workers (as defined in Section 3).
- E. Contractor's noncompliance with Section 3 may result in sanctions, termination of this Contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD assisted contracts.
- F. Contractor agrees to perform any further acts and execute and deliver any further documents that may be reasonably necessary to carry out the provisions and intent of this Section 11.07 or otherwise to ensure compliance with Section 3.

#### 11.08 INTEREST OF MEMBERS OF CONGRESS

No member of or delegate to the Congress of the United States of America shall be admitted to any share or part of this contract or to any benefit that may arise therefrom.

#### 11.09 INTEREST OF MEMBERS, OFFICERS, OR EMPLOYEES AND FORMER MEMBERS, OFFICERS, OR EMPLOYEES

During his or her tenure or for one year thereafter, none of the following classes of people may have an interest, direct or indirect, in this contract or the proceeds thereof:

- A. Any present or former Commissioner of Owner's Board of Commissioners, or any member of the Commissioner's immediate family. This prohibition does not apply to any present or former resident commissioner who does not serve on the governing body of a resident corporation, and who otherwise does not occupy a policymaking position with the resident corporation, Owner, or a business entity.
- B. Any employee of Owner who formulates policy or who influences decisions with respect to the Project, or any member of the employee's immediate family, or the employee's partner.
- C. Any public official, member of the local governing body, or State or local legislator, or any member of such individuals' immediate family, who exercises functions or responsibilities with respect to the Project or Owner.

#### 11.10 LIMITATIONS ON PAYMENTS MADE TO INFLUENCE CERTAIN FEDERAL FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS

A. The Contractor agrees to comply with Section 1352 of title 31, United States Code which prohibits the use of Federal appropriated funds to pay any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with any of the following covered Federal actions: the awarding of any Federal grant; the making of any Federal loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement; or the modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

B. The Contractor further agrees to comply with the requirement of the Act to furnish a disclosure (OMB Standard Form LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities) if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds (including profit or fee received under a covered Federal transaction) have been paid, or will be paid, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

#### 11.11 EXAMINATION AND RETENTION OF CONTRACTOR'S RECORDS

- A. Owner, HUD, or Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives shall, until 3 years after final payment under this contract, have access to and the right to examine any of the Contractor's, Sub-Contractor's and Supplier's directly pertinent books, documents, papers, or other records involving transactions related to this contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.
- B. The Contractor agrees to include in firsttier subcontracts under this contract a clause substantially the same as paragraph 11.02A. "Subcontract," as used in this clause, excludes purchase orders not exceeding \$10,000.
- C. The periods of access and examination in paragraphs (a) and (b) above for records relating to (1) appeals under the Disputes clause of this contract, (2) litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, or (3) costs

and expenses of this contract to which Owner, HUD, or Comptroller General or any of their duly authorized representatives has taken exception shall continue until disposition of such appeals, litigation, claims, or exceptions.

#### 11.12 LABOR STANDARDS - DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACTS

If the total amount of this contract exceeds \$2,000, the Federal labor standards set forth in the clause below shall apply to the construction work to be performed under the contract, except if the construction work has been determined to be "Nonroutine Maintenance" subject to the terms of that clause of this contract.

A. Minimum Wages.

1. All laborers and mechanics employed under this contract in the development or construction of the project(s) involved will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the Contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under Section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period

(but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the regular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits in the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein; provided, that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the Contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- 2. a. Any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. HUD shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when all the following criteria have been met:
  - i. The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a

classification in the wage determination; and

- ii. The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- iii. The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.

b. If the Contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and HUD or its designee agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated fringe benefits for where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employee Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator. or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove additional classification everv action within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

c. In the event the Contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

d. The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (2)(a)(ii) or (iii) of this clause shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in classification.

3. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the Contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

4. If the Contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the Contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program; provided, that the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the Contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the Contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

В. Withholding of funds. HUD or its designee shall, upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the Contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime Contractor, or any other Federallyassisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime Contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees. and helpers, employed by the Contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or any including apprentice. mechanic. trainee, or helper, employed or working in the construction or development of the project, all or part of the wages required by the contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on account of the Contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees to whom they are due.

# C. Payrolls and basic records.

1. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the Contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working in the construction or development of the project. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including contributions rates of or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits

or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made. and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found, under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv), that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the Contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan program financially or is responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

2. a. The Contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Contracting Officer for transmission to HUD or its designee. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under subparagraph (C)(1) of this clause. This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1) is available for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office. The Washington, D.C. 20402. Contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all

subcontractors. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1214-0149.)

b. Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the Contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

i. That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under paragraph (C)(1) of this clause and that such information is correct and complete;

ii. That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice. and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3: and

iii. That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.

c. The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirements for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by subparagraph (2)(b)(ii) of this clause.

d. The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the Contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 3729 of Title 31 of the United States Code.

3. The Contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under subparagraph (C)(1) available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or its designee, the Contracting Officer, or the Department of Labor and shall permit representatives such to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the Contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

D. 1. Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Employment Labor. and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship and Training, Employer and Labor Services (OATELS), or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by OATELS, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by OATELS

or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the Contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated in this paragraph, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on determination for the wage the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the Contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered for the program apprentice's level progress, of expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the determination. applicable wage Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. lf the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the classification. applicable lf the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be accordance with paid in that determination. In the event OATELS, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by OATELS, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the Contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

2. Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they employed pursuant are to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment Training Administration. Every and trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits. trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed in the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate in the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate in the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition,

any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate in the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the Contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

3. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees, and journeymen under this clause shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

E. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are hereby incorporated by reference in this contract.

F. Contract termination; debarment. A breach of this contract clause may be grounds for termination of the contract and for debarment as a Contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

G. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.

H. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this clause shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the Contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the PHA, HUD, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

I. Certification of eligibility.

1. By entering into this contract, the Contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the Contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded contracts by the United States Government by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

2. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a United States Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

3. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U. S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

J. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. As used in this paragraph, the terms "laborers" and "mechanics" include watchmen and guards.

1. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics, including watchmen and guards, shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which the individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.

2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the provisions set forth in subparagraph (J)(1) of this clause, the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic (including watchmen and guards) employed in violation of the provisions set forth in subparagraph (J)(1) of this clause, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment of the overtime wages required by provisions set forth in subparagraph (J)(1) of this clause.

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any Federal contract with the same prime Contractor. or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the provisions set forth in subparagraph (J)(2) of this clause.

K. Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts

all the provisions contained in this clause, and such other clauses as HUD or its designee may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these provisions in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all these provisions.

## 11.13 LABOR STANDARDS - HUD-DETERMINED NON-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE

#### *If Prevailing Wage for this Contract is HUD Non-Routine Maintenance, the following section applies:*

For contracts exceeding \$2,000, HUD has determined that the construction covered by this contract consists of non-routine maintenance (as defined in 24 CFR 968.203) necessary for the operation of the Public Housing project; and the labor standards set forth below and the provisions of Section 12 of the United States Housing Act of 1937 which pertain to such work shall apply. Section 11.12 does not apply to this Contract.

# A. Minimum Wages.

1. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work will be paid unconditionally and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3), the full amount of wages due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Housing Secretary of and Urban Development which is attached hereto and made a part hereof. These payments must be made no later than one pay period following the end of the regular pay period in which the wages were earned or accrued. A pay period may not be of any duration longer than semimonthly. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill. Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be

compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein; provided, that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination shall be posted at all times by the Contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

2. (a) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. HUD shall approve an additional classification and wage rate only when the following criteria have been met:

(i) The work to be performed by the classification required is not performed by a classification in the wage determination;(ii) The classification is utilized in the area by the industry; and

(iii) The proposed wage rate bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(b) The wage rate determined pursuant to this paragraph shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

B. Withholding of funds. The Owner, upon its own action or upon request of HUD shall withhold or cause to be withheld from the Contractor under this contract or any other contract subject to HUD-determined wage rates, with the same Contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics employed by the Contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by this clause. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic employed or working on the site of the work all or part of the wages required by the contract, the Contracting Officer or HUD may, after written notice to the Contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, or advance, until such violations have ceased. The Owner or HUD may, after written notice to the Contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on account of the Contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees to whom they are due.

C. Payrolls and basic records.

1. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the Contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid.

2. The Contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under subparagraph (C)(1) available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or the Owner and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the Contractor or subcontractor fails to make them available. HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the Contractor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to make such records available may be grounds for debarment or denial of participation in HUD's programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

D. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

E. Contract termination; debarment. A breach of this contract clause may be grounds for termination of the contract and for debarment as a Contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 24 CFR Part 24.

# F. Disputes concerning labor standards.

1. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of paragraphs (A), (B), (C), and (E) of this clause shall be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract.

2. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of paragraphs (D), and (G) of this clause shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this paragraph (F) (2) include disputes between the Contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the Owner, HUD, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

G. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. As used in this paragraph, the terms "laborers" and "mechanics" include watchmen and guards.

1. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which the individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.

2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the provisions set forth in subparagraph (G) (1) of this clause, the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. addition. Contractor In such and subcontractor shall be liable to the United liquidated States. for damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the provisions set forth in subparagraph (G) (1) of this clause, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment of the overtime wages required by provisions set forth in subparagraph (G) (1) of this clause.

Withholding for unpaid wages and 3. liquidated damages. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any federal contract with the same Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same Contractor such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the provisions set forth in subparagraph (G)(2) of this clause.

Η. Subcontracts. The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts all the provisions contained in this clause and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these provisions in any lower tier subcontracts. The Contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the provisions contained in this clause.

## 11.14 NON-FEDERAL PREVAILING WAGE RATES

Any prevailing wage rate (including basic hourly rate and any fringe benefits), determined under State law to be prevailing, with respect to any employee in any trade or position employed under the contract, is inapplicable to the contract and shall not be enforced against the Contractor or any subcontractor, with respect to employees engaged under the contract whenever either of the following occurs:

- A. Such non-Federal prevailing wage rate exceeds: (1) the applicable wage rate determined by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a et seq.) to be prevailing in the locality with respect to such trade; (2) an applicable apprentice wage rate based thereon specified in an apprenticeship registered with the program U.S. Department of Labor or a DOL-recognized State Apprenticeship Agency; or (3) an applicable trainee wage rate based thereon specified in a DOL-certified trainee program; or
- B. Such non-Federal prevailing wage rate, exclusive of any fringe benefits, exceeds the applicable wage rate determined by the Secretary of HUD to be prevailing in the locality with respect to such trade or position.

# 11.15 PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

A. In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, Contractor shall items the procure guidelines designated of the in Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the highest materials percentage of recovered practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition. The Contractor shall procure items designated in the EPA guidelines that contain the highest recovered percentage of materials practicable unless the Contractor determines that such items: (1) are not reasonably available in a reasonable period of time; (2) fail to reasonable performance meet standards, which shall be determined on the basis of the guidelines of the National Institute of Standards and Technology, if applicable to the item; or (3) are only available at an unreasonable price.

B. Paragraph (A) of this clause shall apply to items purchased under this contract where: (1) the Contractor purchases in excess of \$10,000 of the item under this contract; or (2) during the preceding Federal fiscal year, the Contractor: (i) purchased any amount of the items for use under a contract that was funded with Federal appropriations and was with a Federal agency or a State agency or agency of a political subdivision of a State; and (ii) purchased a total of in excess of \$10,000 of the item both under and outside that contract.

# PART 12 - SOCIAL EQUITY REQUIREMENTS

### 12.01 EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING GOALS AND REQUIREMENTS

- A. <u>Section 3 Employment Goal and</u> <u>Requirements</u>
  - 1. Definitions

**New Hire:** A New Hire is defined as an employee of Contractor or any of its subcontractors who is hired specifically for the Project as a full-time employee for permanent, temporary, or seasonal employment, and who has not been a regular employee of Contractor or any of its subcontractors during the preceding twelve-month period.

- 1. <u>General</u>: The Owner is committed to, and has a strong policy of, maximizing the employment and training opportunities provided to Section 3 Eligible Persons on the Project. This commitment includes a commitment to ensuring both formal and on-the-job training and working experiences for Section 3 Eligible Persons.
- 2. <u>New Hire Utilization Goal:</u> In order to promote the use of Section 3 Eligible Persons on the Project, Owner has established a goal that 30% of all New

Hires for the Project (including both the Contractor and all subcontractors) will be Section 3 Eligible Persons. Unless otherwise specified in the Bid Documents, as part of the Community Participation Plan to be submitted with the Bid or Proposal, the Bidder will provide an estimated total project work force breakdown (including prime and subcontractors) for this Project. In submitting its Bid for this Project, the Bidder agrees to aspire to meet this goal consistent with the following:

- a. Contractor and subcontractors will hire non-Section 3 Eligible Persons for a New Hire position only if no Section 3 Eligible Person is qualified and available for the position. Contractor will provide an explanation to the Owner if a Section 3 Eligible Person is available but is not hired.
- b. Contractor will report monthly to the Owner on an Owner-provided form, the status of hiring Section 3 Eligible Persons on the Project, including but not limited to the following information: documenting all New Hires hired by the Contractor or any subcontractor during the previous month, and the results of all reviews, interviews, and hiring of Section 3 Eligible Persons from the Owner's list of Section 3 Eligible Persons, and the cumulative percentage of new hires of the total workforce on the job.
- c. The Contractor shall ensure that the Section 3 requirements of its contract with the Owner are included in all of its subcontracts for the Project.
- d. Failure of the Contractor to meet the Section 3 goal described above shall be considered a material breach of the contract, and the

Owner may terminate the contract, withhold funds due to the Contractor, or take other actions as may be permitted by contract or otherwise.

B. Apprentice Utilization Goals: (Applicable for contracts estimated to cost one million dollars or more)

The Contractor shall ensure that apprentices, registered with the Washington State Apprenticeship and Training Council ("SAC"), perform at least fifteen percent (15%) of the total Contract labor hours on this project.

1. Total Contract labor hours include the hours worked by supervisors, foremen, and superintendents if it is determined that they are subject to prevailing wage requirements pursuant to WAC 296-127-015 or federal labor standards and all hours worked as a result of change orders.

2. Total Contract labor hours do not include hours worked by foremen, superintendents, supervisors, owners, and workers who are not subject to prevailing wage requirements.

3. The Contractor shall include the apprentice utilization requirements in all subcontracts executed under this Contract and ensure that all subcontractors are notified of the apprentice utilization requirements.

4. The Contractor shall use good faith efforts to meet the 15% apprentice utilization requirements of the Contract, including overall compliance on all Contract labor hours worked by subcontractors.

5. The Contractor shall comply with the apprenticeship training standards for each trade/craft classification used on the Project, as set forth by the Washington

State Department of Labor and Industries.

- C. Apprentice Utilization Monitoring and Enforcement
  - 1. The Owner's Representative will verify the registration of each apprentice used on the Project with the Washington State Apprenticeship and Training Council.
  - 2. The Owner's Representative will monitor the apprentice utilization data provided by the Contractor. If the Contractor is deficient in its use of apprentices, the Owner's Representative will meet with the Contractor to discuss the reasons for the deficiency and help the Contractor develop a written Plan for rectifying the deficiency.
  - 3. The Owner's Representative will make routine visits to the Site for the purpose of confirming the use of apprentices. The Contractor will provide access to the site to the person designated by Owner to make visits to the Site for the purpose of confirming the use of apprentices. The person designated will be required to abide by any applicable work rules and safety Plan.
- D. Workforce Goals: The Owner has established employment goals for the workforce of the Project of not less than 21 percent minorities and 20 percent women, with an employment subgoal of 4.5 percent for minority women.

# 12.02 WOMEN AND MINORITY BUSINESS AND SECTION 3 BUSINESS UTILIZATION GOALS AND REQUIREMENTS

A. <u>Women and Minority Business Enterprise</u> (WMBE) Subcontractor Utilization Goal and Plan:

The Owner's aspirational goal for WMBE utilization is 14%. As part of the

Community Participation Plan to be submitted with the Bid or as otherwise specified, the Bidder shall document its plans for how it intends to solicit the participation of, and encourage the utilization of Small, Minority and Women **Business Enterprises (hereinafter** "WMBEs") on the Project. Consistent with the requirements of federal regulation HUD 2 CFR 200, the Bidder's plan must demonstrate the Bidder's commitment to take all necessary affirmative steps to provide contracting opportunities for WMBEs to the greatest extent possible. Such efforts shall include, but will not be limited to:

- Identifying WMBE firms by a variety of methods, including but not limited to working with community based organizations, such as the Contractor's Resource Center (CRC) to identify a diverse group of Subcontractors.
- 2. Using a variety of recruitment methods, including but not limited to:
  - a. Participating in community job fairs, conferences, and trade shows
  - b. Advertising in local community publications
  - c. Placing Project information signs in strategic locations on the jobsite
  - d. Distributing bid notifications to targeted mailers/faxes
  - e. Hosting "Information Nights" for WMBE subcontractors at local area gathering places such as community centers and churches
- 3. Placing identified firms on formal and informal solicitation/bid lists.
- 4. Encouraging identified firms' participation through direct solicitation of bids or proposals whenever they are potential sources.
- 5. Encouraging the establishment of joint ventures among subcontractors between non-WMBE and WMBE subcontractors

and/or between two WMBE subcontractors in order to increase opportunities for as many Subcontractors as possible.

- 6. Advertising in minority and women's publications and/or submitting copies of competitive solicitations to minority and women's plan centers.
- 7. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by such firms.
- 8. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by such firms.
- 9. Encouraging subcontractors to subcontract with qualified WMBEs.

10.Using the services and assistance of the U. S. Small Business Administration (SBA), the State of Washington Office of Minority and Women's Business Enterprises (OMWBE), the Northwest Minority Business Council (NWMBC), and Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.

- B. Section 3 Benchmarks:
  - Section 3 Business Benchmarks: As specified in Section 3, the benchmarks for Section 3 on a PHA construction contract are:
    - a. For Section 3 Workers 25 percent or more of the total number of labor hours worked by all workers employed with public housing financial assistance for SHA's fiscal year.
    - b. For Targeted Section 3 Workers 5 percent or more of the total number of labor hours worked by all workers employed with public housing financial assistance for SHA's fiscal year.

2. Contractor will document in Part 3, the Community Participation Plan to be submitted with the bid, or as otherwise specified, use its best efforts to meet the benchmarks above with respect to the work to be performed under this Contract, and will prioritize its efforts in the manner required by Section 3. Contractor's efforts may include working closely with the Owner's job assistance offices to help identify potential Section 3 Workers and taking other actions or implementing procedures as Owner may reasonably request from time to time in order to maximize the number of labor hours performed by Section 3 Workers.

# 12.03 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

- A. Contractor, for itself and all subcontractors, will submit to the Owner's Representative a monthly report in form and substance acceptable to Owner. Each monthly report is due no later than the time specified for the Contractor's Monthly Pay Application. If the reports are not submitted in a timely manner, the Contractor's progress payment for that month will not be processed.
- B. Contractor will report workforce and apprentice utilization data required by Owner beginning on the first day of work for each person. Contractor's first submittals are due at the end of the first month after the Contract start date specified in the Notice to Proceed, and at monthly intervals thereafter as specified above.
  Subcontractor submittals are due at the end of the month after they commenced work and monthly thereafter as specified above.
- C. Contractor will report the following information, or such additional information as required by Section 3 or by Owner, on each apprentice:
  - 1. Apprentice's Name
  - 2. Home Zip Code
  - 3. Employment Status: New Hire or Existing Staff
  - 4. Section 3 status

- 5. Trade/Craft
- 6. State Apprentice Registration I.D. Number
- 7. Program Sponsor and/or Hiring Source
- 8. Apprentice Progression Period or Percentage
- 9. Ethnicity/Gender
- 10. Labor hours for Reporting Period by Ethnicity/Gender
- D. Contractor will report the following information, or such additional information as required by Section 3 or by Owner, on all apprentices:
  - 1. Total labor hours and number of apprentice employees for reporting period by ethnicity and gender
  - 2. Total apprentice labor hours and number of employees to-date
  - 3. Total Section 3 apprentice labor hours and number of Section 3 employees for reporting period by ethnicity and gender
  - 4. Total Section 3 apprentice labor hours and number of Section 3 employees to date
  - 5. Other information as noted on the form
- E. Contractor will report the following information, or such additional information as required by Section 3 or by Owner, on journey level employees:
  - 1. Labor hours for reporting period by ethnicity and gender, for each trade/craft
  - 2. Labor hours for reporting period for Section 3 employees
  - 3. Total labor hours for Section 3 employees
  - 4. Total journey level labor hours by ethnicity and gender, for each trade/craft
  - 5. Total labor hours and number of journey level employees for reporting period by ethnicity and gender.
  - 6. Total journey level labor hours and number of employees to-date
  - 7. Summary information as noted on the reporting form
- E. WMBE and Section 3 Business Reporting Requirements

- On a weekly basis and in a form acceptable to Owner, Contractor shall submit to Owner's Representative a Subcontractors on Site Report which shall be completed by the Contractor for all Subcontractors performing work on the Contract for the previous week.
- On a monthly basis, on a form acceptable to Owner, Contractor will document the Contractor's progress in meeting its Section 3 benchmarks and WMBE goal commitments.
- F. Contractor will submit such other information as may be requested by Owner to verify compliance with the requirements of the Contract. Owner reserves the right to add, delete, or change as necessary, the information required.
- G. Monthly Community Participation Plan Meetings: Contractor may be required to attend the Owner's monthly Section 3 Advisory Committee meetings to discuss implementation of the Community Participation Plan throughout the duration of the Project. At Owner's request, Contractor will ensure that specified subcontractor(s) attend the meeting.

# **12.04 VIOLATIONS**

Any material violation of the mandatory requirements of the Contract will be considered a breach of the Contract and the Owner may withhold payment, stop the work for cause, or terminate the Contract for cause pursuant to the terms of the Contract.

Maintenance Wage Rate Decision	U.S. Depa	rtment of Housing and	HUD FORM 52158		
_	Urb	e of Labor Relations	(06/2006)		
Agency Name:		LR 2000 Agency ID No:	Wage Decision Type:		
Seattle Housing Authority		WA002A	Routine Maintenance		
190 Queen Anne North			☑ Nonroutine Maintenance		
Seattle, WA 98109		Effective Date:	Expiration Date:		
		January 17, 2023	December 31, 2024		
The following wage rate determination is made pursu agencies), or pursuant to Section 104(b) of the Native housing agencies). The agency and its contractors m the type of work they actually perform.	American Housir	ng Assistance and Self-determination nance laborers and mechanics no les	n Act of 1996, as amended, (Indian		
Melanie Hertel, SLRS		1-17-2023			
HUD Labor Relations (Name, Title, Signature)		Date			
(Name, The, Signature)					
WORK CLASSIFICATION(S)			Y WAGE RATES		
		BASIC WAGE	FRINGE BENEFIT(S) (if any)		
Elevator Mechanic Sheet Metal Worker Furnace Installer Roofer Truck Driver Laborer Asphalt Raker Carpenter Electrician Floor Coverer Glazier Painter Low Voltage Technician Plumber Tree Arborist Landscaper Fence Installer Power Equipment Operator Brick Mason		\$61.74 \$49.52 \$31.77 \$30.43 \$30.34 \$34.95 \$31.52 \$54.47 \$54.49 \$39.23 \$44.99 \$39.23 \$34.04 \$54.33 \$30.61 \$25.29 \$21.21 \$40.26 \$39.21	\$24.46 \$21.62 \$17.51 \$17.20 \$17.18 \$17.79 \$1745 \$22.07 \$22.07 \$22.07 \$18.73 \$19.99 \$18.73 \$18.04 \$22.04 \$17.24 \$15.68 \$16.01 \$19.48 \$19.23		
			<ul> <li>The agency employee benefit program has been determined by HUD to be acceptable for meeting the prevailing fringe benefit requirements.</li> <li>(HUD Labor Relations: If applicable, check box and initial below.)</li> <li>LR Staff Initial</li> </ul>		
			FOR HUD USE ONLY LR2000:		
			Log in:		
			Log out:		

Maintenance Wage Rate Decision U.S. De		rtment of Housing and	HUD FORM 52158			
		an Development e of Labor Relations	(06/2006)			
Agency Name:		LR 2000 Agency ID No:	Wage Decision Type:			
Seattle Housing Authority		WA002A	Routine Maintenance			
190 Queen Anne North			Nonroutine Maintenance			
Seattle, WA 98109		Effective Date:	Expiration Date:			
		January 17, 2023	December 31, 2024			
The following wage rate determination is made pursu agencies), or pursuant to Section 104(b) of the Native housing agencies). The agency and its contractors m the type of work they actually perform.	American Housin	g Assistance and Self-determination	n Act of 1996, as amended, (Indian			
Melanie Hertel, SLRS		1-17-2023				
HUD Labor Relations		Date				
(Name, Title, Signature)						
WORK CLASSIFICATION(S)		HOURI	LY WAGE RATES			
		BASIC WAGE	FRINGE BENEFIT(S) (if any)			
continued - Page 2 Pipe Layer Vehicle Mechanic Engineer Pest Control Technician Solid Waste Laborer Solid Waste Vehicle Mechanic Solid Waste Worker, CDL Window cleaner: Scaffold Non-Scaffold		\$38.81 \$42.53 \$57.72 \$39.26 \$35.60 \$44.65 \$46.16 \$19.46 \$19.46	<ul> <li>\$19.14</li> <li>\$19.45</li> <li>\$22.78</li> <li>\$18.74</li> <li>\$17.94</li> <li>\$19.92</li> <li>\$20.25</li> <li>\$14.66</li> <li>\$14.66</li> <li>\$14.66</li> <li>\$14.66</li> <li>\$14.66</li> <li>\$14.66</li> <li>\$14.66</li> <li>\$14.66</li> </ul>			
			by HUD to be acceptable for meeting the prevailing fringe benefit requirements. (HUD Labor Relations: If applicable, check box and initial below.)			
			FOR HUD USE ONLY LR2000:			
			Log in:			
			Log out:			

PREVIOUS EDITION IS OBSOLETE

#### Contract No.XXXX

#### CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

for

This Contract is made and entered into as of the last signature date below between the Seattle Housing Authority, a public body corporate and politic, hereinafter referred to as "Owner," and \_\_\_\_\_\_, hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor." The Contractor and the Owner agree as follows:

**<u>SECTION 1</u>**: This Contract incorporates by reference and is subject to the following as though fully included herein, whether attached or not attached:

- The Contractor's response to the Request for Bids (by E-M ail) (attached)
- Attachment A, version 1 (attached)
- Technical scope of work included as part of the Request for Bids (by E-M ail)
- Owner's General Conditions
- Prevailing wage rates as established in Select One dated (attached)
- Federal Labor Standards Provisions (attached)

**SECTION 2:** The Contractor shall perform or cause to be performed all work and shall furnish or cause to be furnished all labor, materials, tools, and equipment necessary to complete the above-referenced project in strict accordance with the Contract Documents and documents described in Section 1 above for the following Contract Sum:

Base Bid	\$
Additive No.(s)	\$
Deductive No.(s)	\$
Subtotal	\$
Sales Tax	\$
Contract Sum	\$

**SECTION 3:** The Contractor shall begin the work of the Contract immediately after receipt of a written Notice to Proceed issued by the Owner, and to perform the work regularly and without interruption thereafter (unless the Owner shall otherwise, in writing, specifically direct) with such forces as necessary to complete said work in a manner acceptable to the owner within consecutive calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed.

The parties have executed this Contract by having their authorized representatives sign below.

#### Seattle Housing Authority

190 Queen Anne Avenue North P.O. Box 19028 Seattle, WA 98109-1028

By:\_\_\_\_\_

By:\_

Mike Tarantino Interim Deputy Director of Procurement and Contracts

Date

Date

# Seattle Housing Authority Work Order

Work Order No.: 5831	ederal Funding	
Contract No.: 5831	Contract Name: Shower Upgradge- Hope VI_Yesler	
Business Name:	Contract Execution Date:	
SHA Project Manager: Cindy Sribhibhadh (Seattl		

THIS WORK ORDER is made and entered into between the Housing Authority of the City of Seattle, a public body corporate and politic, hereinafter referred to as "SHA" and/or "Owner" and , hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant" and/or "Service Provider."

WHEREAS, this Work Order incorporates by reference and is subject to the terms and conditions (unless otherwise amended herein) of the Contract No. shown above as though fully included herein:

**SECTION 1: SCOPE OF WORK:** The Consultant shall perform such services as required by SHA to complete the work as defined in <u>ATTACHMENT A– SCOPE OF WORK AND/OR ENGAGEMENT LETTER</u>, and shall provide all labor, materials, equipment, and services necessary to perform and complete in an acceptable manner the tasks contemplated or otherwise required herein. The Scope of Work shall serve as the progress schedule and be used to measure work performed. Consultant shall perform its duties under this Work Order with the care, skill, prudence and diligence that a reasonable, careful, skillful, prudent and diligent person would exercise in similar circumstances.

<u>Section 2 – TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION</u>: The Consultant shall not begin any work under the terms of this Work Order until authorized to do so in writing by SHA. All work under this Work Order shall be completed between the date authorized to begin work and the completion date, both specified in <u>ATTACHMENT B – TERMS AND CONDITIONS</u>, attached and made a part of this Work Order. The established completion time for the tasks and the entire Work Order period shall not be extended because of any delays attributable to the Consultant, but may be extended by SHA in the event of a delay attributable to SHA, or because of unavoidable delay caused by an act of God or governmental actions or other conditions beyond the control of the Consultant. Any extension agreed upon by the parties must be in writing, signed by both parties, and incorporated as a Change Order to this Work Order.

<u>Section 3 – PAYMENTS</u>: The Consultant agrees to perform all of the work set forth herein and further described in <u>ATTACHMENT A– SCOPE OF WORK AND/OR ENGAGEMENT LETTER</u>, attached hereto for an amount shown in <u>ATTACHMENT B– TERMS AND CONDITIONS</u>, herein referred to as the "Work Order Amount" without further authorization by Change Order. Such payment shall be full compensation for work performed and/or services rendered and for all supervision, labor, supplies, materials, equipment or use thereof, and for all other expenses and incidentals necessary to complete all the work. It is understood that this is a not-to-exceed amount and Consultant will be reimbursed on a time-and-material basis for services performed and equipment & materials used as described in herein. Invoices and applicable attachments shall be emailed to the attention of SHA's Project Manager.

**SECTION 4 – INSURANCE:** The insurance requirements for the Contract No. shown above shall be the same for this Work Order and such policy(ies) shall apply to the work included in this Work Order unless changed herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Work Order by having their representatives affix their signatures below.

,		Housing Authority of the City of Seattle 190 Queen Anne Avenue North P.O. Box 19028 Seattle, WA 98109-1028	
By:		By:	
	Date	Date	

Attachments:

- A SCOPE OF WORK AND/OR ENGAGEMENT LETTER
- **B** TERMS AND CONDITIONS

# ATTACHMENT A- SCOPE OF WORK AND/OR ENGAGEMENT LETTER

(Work Order No. 5831 to Contract No. 5831)

# ATTACHMENT B- TERMS AND CONDITIONS

(Work Order No. 5831 to Contract No. 5831)

Project Completion Date (Section 2 of the Work Orde Authorization to Begin Work on: Completion Date:	r): Work Order Amount (Section 3 of Work Order): \$0.00
Basis of Payment (hourly rate, lump sum, etc.) (Section	on 3 of Work Order):
Subcontractors or Sub-consultants Authorized	
Name of Consultant's Key Personnel Essential to the	Work
SHA's Project Manager Name Cindy Sribhibhadh (Seattle Housing Authority)	
Consultant's Name and Address for Delivery of Notices	<ul> <li>SHA's Name and Address for Delivery of Notices (Section 11 of the Contract)</li> <li>Housing Authority of the City of Seattle Attn: Cindy Sribhibhadh (Seattle Housing Authority)</li> <li>190 Queen Anne Avenue N.</li> <li>P.O. Box 19028</li> <li>Seattle, WA 98109-1028</li> </ul>

#### Project Identification: Various Hope VI Shower Upgrades - Federal Funding

Pursuant to, and in compliance with the Request for Bids and other documents relating thereto, and subject to all conditions thereof, the undersigned hereby proposes and agrees to furnish all labor, materials, equipment and testing necessary to perform and furnish the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents, and in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.

In submitting this Bid, the Bidder represents that:

- A. This Bid will remain subject to acceptance for 60 days after the day of opening.
- B. The Owner has a right to reject this Bid.
- C. Bidder will sign and submit the Agreement with Bonds, Insurance, and other documents required by the bid documents within 7 calendar days after the date of Owner's Notice of Award.
  - 1. The bond requirement can be waived for contracts up to \$100K. If this option is exercised, SHA will hold 10% retainage in lieu of bonds.
- D. Bidder has examined all bidding documents and has visited the site and become familiar with the general, local and site conditions.
- E. Bidder will ensure equal opportunity for employment and to engage in Affirmative Efforts in the solicitation of women and minorities, Section 3 residents, WMBE and Section 3 firms for participation on this Contract.
- F. Bidder accepts the provisions of and represents that Bid is in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following price. It's mandatory to provide pricing for all items listed on the form.

Item #	Description	Quantity	Unit Bid Price	Extended Price
1	Complete Tub and Tub Surround installation as described in attachment B - Scope of Work for a total of 5 units.	5*	\$	\$

Any required repairs revealed during inspection and Tub and Tub Surround installation will be based on an hourly rate provided for a Not To Exceed amount of \$1,000.00 per repair to include any reimbursable materials needed for such repair. The hourly quantities shown below are an estimate only and SHA does not guarantee that the work actually performed will be equal to the estimated quantity given below.

Item #	Description	Quantity	Unit Bid Price	Extended Price	
2	Complete Walk in Shower installation as described in attachment B - Scope of Work for a total of 3 units.	3*	\$	\$	

Any required repairs revealed during inspection and Tub and Tub Surround installation will be based on an hourly rate provided for a Not To Exceed amount of \$1,000.00 per repair to include any reimbursable materials needed for such repair. The hourly quantities shown below are an estimate only and SHA does not guarantee that the work actually performed will be equal to the estimated quantity given below.

#### VARIOUS HOPE VI SHOWER UPGRADES – FEDERAL FUNDING SHA SOLICITATION NO. 5831

Item #	Description	Quantity	Unit Bid Price	Extended Price
3	Complete Tub or Walk in Shower Conversion to ADA Accessible Shower installation as described in attachment B - Scope of Work for a total of 2 units.	2*	\$	\$

Any required repairs revealed during inspection and Tub and Tub Surround installation will be based on an hourly rate provided for a Not To Exceed amount of \$1,000.00 per repair to include any reimbursable materials needed for such repair. The hourly quantities shown below are an estimate only and SHA does not guarantee that the work actually performed will be equal to the estimated quantity given below.

Iter	m #	Description	Quantity	Unit Bid Price	Extended Price
2	4	Hourly billing rate for unforeseen or additional repairs. This may include but is not limited to: replacing damaged or missing drywall, mold remediation, and/or repairing water damage.	100 Hours*	\$	\$

Any required repairs revealed during inspection and Tub and Tub Surround installation will be based on an hourly rate provided for a Not To Exceed amount of \$1,000.00 per repair to include any reimbursable materials needed for such repair. The hourly quantities shown below are an estimate only and SHA does not guarantee that the work actually performed will be equal to the estimated quantity given below.

BASE BID PRICE (WITHOUT WA STATE SALES TAX):	\$
WA STATE SALES TAX ON MATERIALS AND LABOR:	\$
TOTAL BID PRICE INCLUDING WA STATE SALES TAX:	\$

\*The estimated number of installations is being given only as the basis for the comparison of bids. SHA does not warrant, expressly or by implication that the actual amount of work will correspond therewith. SHA reserves the right to add or subtract installations during the contract term if determined to be in the best interest of SHA.

#### END OF BID PRICE FORM



# **VENDOR FACT SHEET**

Return this Form TO: Seattle Housing Authority, Purchasing Division, ATTN: Veronica Sharp, Design and Construction Contract Administrator 190 Queen Anne Ave N, P.O Box 19028, Seattle WA 98109-1028

General Busin	ess Informa	tion:						Fo	· SHA	Use Only:	
Name of Business, Organization, or Name of Person (if payment is to an individua				al):	JDE Vendor No	D.	Purchasin	g contracts			
Mailing Address for	Payments:										
City:		State:		Zip Coo	de:		E-N	lail Address:			
Telephone No.:		1	Fax No.:					DUNS No.:			
Washington UBI No			City of Se	attle Bus	iness Licens	e No	0.:	Washington Cont	ractor	's License	No.:
Employee Tax ID N	o. (TIN) or Soci	al Securi	ity No. (if Ind	lividual):							
President/General N	lanager:	Pi	rincipal prod	lucts and	l/or services	offer	red:				
Type of Organi	zation (che	ck one	):								
Individual	Sole Prop	rietor	Partner	rship 1	Corpora	ation		Governmental Ag	ency	Other	
Substitute IRS				]						-	
Under penalties identification nu withholding, or ( withholding as a no longer subject Internal Revenue certifications red	mber, <u>and</u> the b) I have not result of a fact to backup e Service doe quired to avo	at I am been na ailure to withhole es not re id back	not subject otified by o report all ding, <u>and</u> equire you sup withho	ct to bac the Inte I interes I am a U Ir conse	ckup with ernal Reve st or divide J.S. perso	nold nue ends n (in	ling Ser s, or nclu	because: (a) I a rvice (IRS) that I r (c) the IRS has ding a U.S. resi	m ex am s notif dent a	empt fro subject to fied me t alien). <u>N</u>	om backup o backup hat I am <u>lote:</u> The
SIGN Sig HERE <b>→</b>	nature of U.	S. Pers	son							Date	
Ownership Sta	tus (check a	all that	apply):				Ra	acial/Ethnic St	atus	(check	one):
MBE (Mine WBE (Wor MWBE(Mine	Drity-Owned B nen-Owned B Drity / Women- nbination Busi <b>ness</b>	Business Jusiness -Owned ness En HUD S Ington Sta	Enterprise Enterprise Business Interprise) Section 3 E ate Office of	e) Enterpri Busines	ss v and Wome			Caucasian (1 African Amer Native Ameri Hispanic Ame Asian/Pacific Hasidic Jews	) can (3 can (3 erican Amer	2) 3) 1 (4)	
Method of Co dollars, SHA's m vendor, Bank of issuance of a con	ethod of contr America. Unle	ract pay	ments is th	hrough a	an electror	nic v	/irtua	al credit card iss	ued b	by SHA's	e-payables
SIGN BELOW	1:										
Signature of Author		ative of V	/endor:							Date:	
whi dire Fac b) The Ver To obtain a copy	Vendor certif ch has an inte ct pay or othe t Sheet Instruct Vendor will c idor will be su of the Genera	ies that erest in t er transa ctions, c comply v pplying I Terms	to the best the Vendou action, purs or; with SHA's goods and and Cond	of its kr r's firm, suant to Genera /or servi	nowledge a is ineligible the Certific al Terms an ices throug all (206) 61	nd b e to ation d Co h ar 5-3:	pelie part n of ond n SH 379		conti on sp to Pu er. site a	ract, purc becified in Irchase C	the Vendor of the Vendor Orders, if the
https://	www.seattle	housing	g.org/sites	s/defau	It/files/Pur	cha	se_	Orders_Terms	_Cor	iditions.	pdt

#### Vendor Fact Sheet Instructions

Thank you for your interest in doing business with the Seattle Housing Authority (SHA). We look forward to doing business with you. If you have any questions about completion of the Vendor Fact Sheet, please call us at (206) 615-3379.

In order for SHA to make payments to you or to procure goods or services from you, we need the information requested on the Vendor Fact Sheet, which also serves as a substitute IRS W-9 Form. The information about you will be entered into our computerized payment system and will allow us to make required reports to the Federal government about our business and payment transactions.

**Substitute IRS Form W-9 Certification:** In completing the Vendor Fact Sheet, you must sign the "Substitute IRS Form W-9 Certification" or backup withholding will apply. If you are subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing your correct taxpayer identification number to SHA, you must cross out the portion of the certification after the word "<u>and</u>" in line two, through the end of line five, before signing the form. Detailed instructions about IRS Form W-9 are included on the form, which may be obtained by calling our office at (206) 615-3379 or visiting the IRS web site at <u>www.irs.gov</u>.

Certification of Eligibility: In order to do business with SHA, the Vendor must be eligible to:

- 1) Be awarded contracts by any agency of the U.S. Government, HUD, or the State in which this Contract work is to be performed; or,
- 2) Participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

Use the websites of the <u>General Services Administration</u> and the <u>U.S. Department of Housing and Urban</u> <u>Development</u> to verify eligibility of the firm and its principals. By signing the Vendor Fact Sheet, the Vendor understands that the certification of eligibility is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when SHA agreed to enter into the transaction with the Vendor. SHA may require the Vendor to submit such certification on an annual basis depending on the terms of its contract or the frequency of its business transactions with SHA. If the Vendor subcontracts any portion of the work, the Vendor will be required to submit a similar certification of eligibility to SHA for any Vendor subcontracts. Any written contract executed between SHA and the Vendor shall include these provisions, which may also be referred to as Suspension/Debarment provisions.

**Contract Payments:** Unless SHA grants a waiver, its method of contract payment for contracts of one million or more is through its Bank of America epayables program. Payments will be made electronically through a virtual Visa credit card. Benefits for using this method include reduced labor costs associated with the processing of checks and enhancing cash flow by eliminating float time associated with the mailing of checks. To learn more about the program, please click here or copy and paste the following URL into your browser: www.bankofamerica.com/epayablesvendors</u>. For new vendors, SHA will automatically send an enrollment form upon contract award. If you have questions about the program, please contact Tran Wong, SHA's Accounts Payable Manager, at 206-615-3483 or twong@seattlehousing.org.

**Small Businesses:** The Vendor Fact Sheet also requests information about whether your business is owned and controlled by women or minorities, and/or is a small business. The following are definitions of these terms for your use. This information provides valuable information to SHA in its efforts to ensure its contracting program meets its diversity objectives and requirements.

- <u>WMBE:</u> Minority and women-owned business enterprises must either be self-identified or certified by the Washington State Office of Women's and Minority Business Enterprises (OMWBE) to be at least fifty-one percent owned by women and/or minority group members. For self-identification as WMBE, refer to <u>Minority/Women Owned Business Enterprise Self-Identification Form for Work Performed on Seattle Housing Authority Projects</u>
- <u>Small Business:</u> A small business means a business concern, including its affiliates, that is independently owned and operated, not an affiliate or subsidiary of a business dominant in its field of operation, and qualified as a small business under the criteria and size standards in 13 CFR 121. Furthermore, a business is considered small according to the Small Business Administration's established guidelines provided to such businesses.
- <u>HUD Section 3 Business</u>: A business that meets at least one of the following criteria, documented within the last six-month period: (1) at least 51% owned and controlled by low- or very low-income persons; (2) over 75% of the labor hours performed for the business over the prior three-month period are performed by Section 3 workers; or (3) a business at least 51% owned and controlled by current public housing residents or residents who currently live in Section 8-assisted housing. More detailed information available at the website of <u>the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development</u>.

# DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD) 24 CFR Part 75

#### Section 3 Benchmarks for Creating Economic Opportunities for Low- and Very Low-Income Persons and Eligible Businesses

**Background:** As a condition to receiving financial assistance from HUD, the Seattle Housing Authority (SHA) is required to report to HUD the number of hours worked by Section 3 Workers and Targeted Section 3 Workers on SHA's contracts. To gather that information, SHA is requiring all firms contracting with SHA to track their Section 3 hours and to submit to SHA a Quarterly/Annual Reporting Form. SHA crated the Quarterly/Annual Reporting Form for all contractors and consultants to use for this quarterly and/or annual report.

HUD requires SHA and its contractors to use their best efforts to achieve the following Section 3 benchmarks:

<u>For Section 3 Workers</u> – 25 percent or more of the total number of labor hours worked by all workers employed with public housing financial assistance for SHA's fiscal year.

<u>For Targeted Section 3 Workers</u> – 5 percent or more of the total number of labor hours worked by all workers employed with public housing financial assistance for SHA's fiscal year.

## Definitions:

<u>Section 3 Worker:</u> A Section 3 Worker is any worker who currently fits, or when hired within the past five years fit, at least one of the following categories, as documented:

- 1. The worker's income for the previous or annualized calendar year is below the income limit established by HUD;
- 2. The worker's income for the previous or annualized calendar year is below the income limit established by HUD and:
  - a. The worker is employed by a Section 3 business concern; OR
  - b. The worker is a YouthBuild participant.

Targeted Section 3 Worker: A Targeted Section 3 Worker is a Section 3 worker who:

- 1. Is employed by a Section 3 business concern; OR
- 2. Currently fits or when hired fit at least one of the following categories, as documented within the past five years:
  - a. A resident of public housing or Section 8-assisted housing; OR
  - b. A resident of other public housing projects or Section 8-assisted housing managed by SHA: OR
  - c. A YouthBuild participant.

<u>Section 3 Business Concern:</u> A Section 3 Business Concern is a business that meets at least one of the following criteria, documented within the last six-month period:

- 1. At least 51 percent owned and controlled by low- or very low-income persons: OR
- 2. Over 75 percent of the labor hours performed for business over the prior three-month period are performed by Section 3 workers; OR
- 3. A business at least 51 percent owned and controlled by current public housing residents or residents who currently live in Section 8-assisted housing.

# The Housing Authority of the City of Seattle

# **Section 3 Income Limits**

### **Eligibility Guidelines**

The worker's income must be at or below the amount provided below for an individual (household of 1) regardless of actual household size.

#### Individual Income Limits for King, Snohomish, and Pierce Counties FY 2023

Income Limits	FY 2023			
Category	King County	Snohomish County	Pierce County	
Extremely Low Income Limits (30%)	\$28,800	\$28,800	\$22,600	
Very Low Income Limits (50%)	\$47,950	\$47,950	\$37,650	
Low Income Limits (80%)	\$70,650	\$70,650	\$60,200	

See <u>https://www.huduser.gov/portal/datasets/il.html</u> for most recent income limits.

#### Section 3 Worker Definition:

- A low or very low-income resident (the worker's income for the previous or annualized calendar year is below the income limit established by HUD); OR
- Employed by a Section 3 business concern; OR
- A YouthBuild participant.

#### Targeted Section 3 Worker Definition:

- Employed by a Section 3 business concern; OR
- Currently fits at least one of the following categories as documented within the past five years:
  - A resident of Seattle Housing Authority public housing or Section 8-assisted housing;
  - A resident of other public housing projects or Section 8-assisted housing managed by the public housing authority that is providing the assistance; OR
  - A YouthBuild participant.

# SEATTLE HOUSING AUTHORITY

# Section 3 Business Concern Certification for Contracting

Instructions: Enter the following information and select the criteria that applies to certify your business' Section 3 Business Concern status.

Business Information		
Name of Business:		
Address of Business:		
Name of Business Owner:		
Phone Number of Business Owner:		
Email Address of Business Owner:		
Preferred Contact Information		
Same as above		
Name of Preferred Contact:		
Phone Number of Preferred Contact:		
Type of Business (select from the following options):		
Corporation Partnership Sole Proprietorship		
Limited Liability Company     Other (please specify)		
Select from ONE of the following three options below that applies:		
At least 51 percent of the business is owned and controlled by low- or very low- income persons (Refer to income guidelines on page 6).		
At least 51 percent of the business is owned and controlled by current public housing residents who currently live in Section 8-assisted housing.		
Over 75 percent of the labor hours performed for the business over the prior three- month period are performed by Section 3 workers (Refer to definition on page 6).		

#### **Business Concern Affirmation**

I affirm that the above statements (see previous page) are true, complete, and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand that businesses who misrepresent themselves as Section 3 business concerns and report false information to the Housing Authority of the City of Seattle may have their contracts terminated for default and be barred from ongoing and future considerations for contracting opportunities. I hereby certify, under penalty of law, that the following information is correct to the best of my knowledge.

Print Name:			

Signature: \_\_\_\_\_

Date:

NOTE: Certification expires within six months of the date of signature. Information regarding Section 3 Business Concerns can be found at 24 CFR 75.5

FOR ADMINISTRATIVE USE ONLY
Is the business a Section 3 business concern based upon their certification?
EMPLOYERS MUST RETAIN THIS FORM IN THEIR SECTION 3 COMPLIANCE FILE FOR FIVE YEARS.

#### Section 3 Quarterly/Annual Reporting Form For SHA Projects

# This form must be completed and submitted quarterly for 2023 and beyond and annually for 2021 and 2022.

SHA Contract No.	5831	Contract Title:	Various Hope VI Shower Upgrades - Federal Funding
------------------	------	-----------------	--

# This Report is for the following dates:

Start Date:		End Date:	
-------------	--	-----------	--

# The following hours are for the dates and Contract identified above:

Total Hours Worked for all Workers:	
In calculating total hours worked for all workers, do <u>NOT</u> include hours worked with respect to any "professional services" as defined in 24 CRF 75.5.	
Total Hours Worked for Section 3 Workers:	
In calculating total hours worked for Section 3 Workers, <u>DO</u> include hours worked with respect to any "professional services" as defined in 24 CFR 75.5.	
Total Hours Worked for Targeted Section 3 Workers:	
In calculating total hours worked for Targeted Section 3 Workers, <u>DO</u> include hours worked with respect to any "professional services" as defined in 24 CFR 75.5.	

By submitting this form, the undersigned certifies to SHA (i) it has the full right, title, authority and capacity to execute this document on behalf of the Consultant/Contractor, (ii) all of the documentation and information submitted with this reporting form is true and correct in all material respects, and (iii) that it maintains, and will provide to SHA upon request, documentation in form and substance required by 24 CFR 75.31 sufficient to ensure that applicable workers meet the definition of a Section 3 Worker or Targeted Section 3 Worker. The undersigned acknowledges and agrees that a breach of any of certifications (i) – (iii) above will be considered a default under the Contract.

#### Submitted By:

Name

# SEATTLE HOUSING AUTHORITY

### SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FOR CONTRACTOR

By signing below, the Contractor certifies that to the best of its knowledge and belief neither its firm nor any of its principals as named below are presently debarred, suspended, or have been declared ineligible or are excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal, state or local government.

#### Contractor's Firm Name: \_\_\_\_\_

# Address:

City, State, Zip:

	PRINCIPAL(S) Name(s)	Title(s)
1		
2		
3		
4		
5		

Contractor's Signature	Printed Name	Title	Date

<u>NOTE:</u> This requirement applies to the Contractor's firm as well as its principals. Principal is defined in the regulation (2 CFR 180.995) as follows:

- 1) An officer, director, owner, partner, principal investigator, or other person within a participant with management or supervisory responsibilities related to a covered transaction; or
- 2) A contractor or other person, whether or not employed by the participant or paid with Federal funds, who
  - a) Is in a position to handle Federal funds;
  - b) Is in a position to influence or control the use of those funds; or,
  - c) Occupies a technical or professional position capable of substantially influencing the development or outcome of an activity require to perform the covered transaction.

The federal websites to verify eligibility include: <u>https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/</u> and <u>http://portal.hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/topics/limited\_denials\_of\_participation</u>.

[Add this section if Suspension and Debarment Compliance Certificate for the <u>Sub-Contractors</u> or <u>Sub-</u> <u>Consultants</u> is needed. DO NOT forget to fill in your contact information below] SEATTLE HOUSING AUTHORITY

#### SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FOR SUB-CONTRACTORS

The Prime Contractor may use this form if the Prime can verify that their Sub-Contractors named below, nor any of their principals are debarred, suspended or ineligible from involvement by Federal, State or Local Government. If the Prime is unable to verify this information, the Prime must send the previous SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FOR CONTRACTOR form to each sub- contractor to be completed and returned.

Prime Contractor's Name: \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ certifies that neither any of the sub- contracting firms named below, nor any of its principals are debarred, suspended or ineligible from involvement by Federal, State or Local Government. I understand that the Seattle Housing Authority (SHA) relies on this certification and I understand that I am obligated to submit the following to SHA:

- A certification for any new sub- contractor hired after submission of this certification.
- A renewal certification for every sub- contractor on the anniversary of the Contract execution date if the Contract Time extends beyond one year.

(**Note:** In lieu of this certification, the Prime Contractor may elect to submit a separate certification signed by each sub- contracting firm to SHA as evidence of sub- contractor eligibility. It is the Prime Contractor's responsibility to initiate, obtain, and provide all such individual sub- contractor certifications to SHA.)

Prime Contractor's Signature	Printed Name	Title	Date

Sub- Contractor Firm Listing: (If sub- contractors are not involved in the project, please enter NONE.)

If additional pages are necessary, copy this form to ensure signed statement precedes any listing of sub- contractors.

Please contact <u>Veronica Sharp</u> at 206-615-<u>239-1553</u> or by e-mail at <u>purchasing@seattlehousing.org</u> if you have any questions regarding compliance with this requirement.

#### For-Profit Subgrantee and Contractor Certifications and Assurances

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires that all for-profit Subgrantees and Contractors on HOPE VI projects sign this "Certifications and Assurances" form certifying that they will comply with the specific federal requirements described below. The parties who must sign a "Certifications and Assurances" form are defined below:

- <u>Subgrantees:</u> These are for-profit organizations to which the Housing Authority (Housing Authority or Grantee) has awarded a grant from the HOPE VI grant that the Housing Authority received from HUD. The subgrantee is accountable to the Housing Authority for the use of the funds provided, but the Housing Authority is ultimately accountable to HUD.
- <u>Contractors</u>: This includes any for-profit contractor, consultant, service provider, or supplier that the Housing Authority contracts with for goods or services on any HOPE VI project.

.....

<u>Certification and Assurance</u>: The subgrantee or contractor executing this certification hereby assures and certifies that it will comply with all of the applicable requirements of the following, as the same may be amended from time to time, including adding appropriate provisions to all contracts between Grantee and for-profit Subgrantees or Contractors:

- Administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. (Contracts more than the simplified acquisition threshold)
- (2) Termination for cause and for convenience by the grantee or subgrantee including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. (All contracts in excess of \$10,000)
- (3) Compliance with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR chapter 60). (All construction contracts awarded in excess of \$10,000 by grantees and their contractors or subgrantees)
- (4) Compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 3). (All contracts and subgrants for construction or repair)
- (5) Compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to 276a-7) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5). (Construction contracts in excess of \$2000 awarded by grantees and subgrantees when required by Federal grant program legislation)
- (6) Compliance with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5). (Construction contracts awarded by grantees and subgrantees in excess of \$2000, and in excess of \$2500 for other contracts which involve the employment of mechanics or laborers)

- (7) Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to reporting.
- (8) Notice of awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to patent rights with respect to any discovery or invention which arises or is developed in the course of or under such contract.
- (9) Awarding agency requirements and regulations pertaining to copyrights and rights in data.
- (10) Access by the grantee, the subgrantee, the Federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives to any books, documents, papers, and records of the contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and transcriptions.
- (11) Retention of all required records for three years after grantees or subgrantees make final payments and all other pending matters are closed.
- (12) Compliance with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)), section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (40 CFR part 15). (Contracts, subcontracts, and subgrants of amounts in excess of \$100,000).
- (13) Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94-163, 89 Stat. 871).

The information contained in this certification is true and accurate, to the best of my knowledge.

Name of Subgrantee or Contractor	Name and Contract Number:	
Signature of Authorized Certifying Official:	Title:	Date:

<u>WARNING</u>: Section 1001 of the Title 18 of the United States Code (Criminal Code and Criminal Procedure, 72 Stat.967) applies to this certification. 18 U.S.C. 1001, among other things, provides that whoever knowingly and willfully makes or uses a document or writing knowing the same to contain any false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or entry, in any matter within jurisdiction of any department or agency of the United States, shall be fined no more than \$10,000 or imprisoned for not more than five years, or both.

Return this form to:

Seattle Housing Authority Attn: Veronica Sharp, Purchasing P.O. Box 19028 Seattle, WA 98109-1028



Address 190 Queen Anne Ave N PO Box 19028 Seattle, WA 98109 Telephone 206–615-3300 TTY 1-800-833-6388 Website www.seattlehousing.org

# Certification of Compliance with Wage Payment Statutes

The undersigned hereby certifies that the bidder is now, and in the three-year period immediately preceding the date of this bid solicitation November 9, 2023, has been, in compliance with the responsible bidder criteria requirement of RCW 39.04.350(1)(g) and has not been found to have willfully violated any provision of RCW Chapters 49.46, 49.48, or 49.52 in a final determination by the Department of Labor and Industries or any court of limited or general jurisdiction.

I certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington that the foregoing is true and correct.

Bidder's Business Name

Signature of Authorized Official\*

Printed Name

Title

Date

City

State

Check One:

Sole Proprietorship □ Partnership □ Joint Venture □ Corporation □

State of Incorporation, or if not a corporation, State where business entity was formed:

If a co-partnership, give firm name under which business is transacted:

If a corporation, proposal must be executed in the corporate name by the president or vice-president (or any other corporate officer accompanied by evidence of authority to sign). If a co-partnership, proposal must be executed by a partner.

# NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT

State of Washington )ss County of King )

who is a		
of the firm of		, being first
not a sham or collus therein named; and t indirectly induced or in a sham bid, or any bidder has not in any advantage over any the Seattle Housing	oath, says that the bid herewith ive bid, or made in the interest further states that the said bidd solicited by any bidder on the person or corporation to refra manner sought by collusion to other bidder or bidders, or to s Authority or any person interes its in said proposal or bid are to	or on behalf of any person not ler has or was not directly or above work or supplies to put in from bidding; and that said b secure themselves an ecure any advantage against ited in the proposed contract;
BIDDER (if individual)	PARTNER (if partnership)	OFFICER (if corporation)
Subscribed and swo	rn to before me	
this	day of	, 20
•	for the State of Washington,	<u>.</u>
My commission expi	res,	20